Public Document Pack
COMMITTEE:

BABERGH CABINET

DATE:

THURSDAY, 13 JUNE 2019
9.30 AM

VENUE:

KING EDMUND CHAMBER ENDEAVOUR HOUSE, 8
RUSSELL ROAD, IPSWICH

Members
Conservative

Independent

Liberal Democrat

Jan Osborne
John Ward (Chair)
Michael Holt
Elisabeth Malvisi

Derek Davis
Clive Arthey
Lee Parker

David Busby

This meeting will be broadcast live to Youtube and will be capable of repeated viewing.
The entirety of the meeting will be filmed except for confidential or exempt items. If you
attend the meeting in person you will be deemed to have consented to being filmed and
that the images and sound recordings could be used for webcasting/ training purposes.
The Council, members of the public and the press may record/film/photograph or
broadcast this meeting when the public and the press are not lawfully excluded.
AGENDA
PART 1
MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT
Page(s)
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY COUNCILLORS

3

BCa/19/1 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 1 - 22
ON 7 MARCH 2019

4

TO RECEIVE NOTIFICATION OF PETITIONS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE COUNCIL'S PETITION SCHEME

5

QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS

6

MATTERS REFERRED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY OR
JOINT AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEES

7

FORTHCOMING DECISIONS LIST
Please note the most up to date version can be found via the
website:
https://www.babergh.gov.uk/the-council/forthcoming-decisions-list/
Paper copies will be available at the meeting.

8

BCa/19/2 GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2018/19

23 - 46

Cabinet Member for Finance.
9

BCa/19/3
HOUSING
OUTTURN 2018/19

REVENUE

ACCOUNT

FINANCIAL 47 - 58

Cabinet Member for Finance.
10

BCa/19/4 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE OUTCOME REPORTING

59 - 118

Cabinet Member for Customers, Digital Transformation and
Improvement.
11

BCa/19/5 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 119 - 150
2000 (RIPA) - USE OF LEGISLATION AND UPDATED POLICY
Cabinet Member for Customers, Digital Transformation and
Improvement.

12

BCa/19/6 END OF YEAR RISK POSITION STATEMENT AND 151 - 198
PROGRESS REPORT AND REVISIONS TO RISK MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY
Cabinet Member for Customers, Digital Transformation and
Improvement.

Date and Time of next meeting
Please note that the next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, 11 July 2019 at 5.30 pm.
Webcasting/ Live Streaming
The Webcast of the meeting will be available to view on the Councils Youtube page:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSWf_0D13zmegAf5Qv_aZSg
For more information about this meeting, including access arrangements and facilities for
people with disabilities, please contact the Committee Officer on: 01473 296376 or Email:
Committees@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk

Introduction to Public Meetings
Babergh/Mid Suffolk District Councils are committed to Open Government.
The
proceedings of this meeting are open to the public, apart from any confidential or exempt
items which may have to be considered in the absence of the press and public.

Domestic Arrangements:




Toilets are situated opposite the meeting room.
Cold water is also available outside opposite the room.
Please switch off all mobile phones or turn them to silent.

Evacuating the building in an emergency: Information for Visitors:
If you hear the alarm:
1.

Leave the building immediately via a Fire Exit and make your way to the Assembly
Point (Ipswich Town Football Ground).

2.

Follow the signs directing you to the Fire Exits at each end of the floor.

3.

Do not enter the Atrium (Ground Floor area and walkways). If you are in the Atrium
at the time of the Alarm, follow the signs to the nearest Fire Exit.

4.

Use the stairs, not the lifts.

5.

Do not re-enter the building until told it is safe to do so.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of the BABERGH CABINET held in the King Edmund Chamber Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich on Thursday, 7 March 2019.
PRESENT:
Councillor:

John Ward (Chair)
Jan Osborne (Vice-Chair)

Councillors:

Kathryn Grandon
Margaret Maybury
Derek Davis
Simon Barrett

Tina Campbell
Nick Ridley
Frank Lawrenson

In attendance:
Councillor(s):

Clive Arthey
Alastair McCraw

Officers:

Chief Executive (AC)
Corporate Manager - Financial Services (ME)
Assistant Director - Assets and Investments (EA)
Corporate Manager - Sustainable Environment (JB)
Corporate Manager - Business Improvement (KC)
Corporate Manager - Democratic Services (JR)
Governance Support Officer (MS)
Professional Lead - Key Sites and Infrastructure (CT)

124

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY COUNCILLORS
124.1 Councillor Frank Lawrenson declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 13
(BCa/18/76) Adoption of Conservation Area Appraisals for Brent Eleigh,
Naughton and Great Waldingfield.
124.2 Councillor Simon Barrett declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 16
(BCa/18/79) Business Rates Retention Pilot - Sudbury Town Centre Projects
– PART 1.
124.3 Councillor Osborne declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 18 (BCa/18/80)
Sale of Land in Sudbury.

125

BCA/18/69 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6
FEBRUARY 2019
It was RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2019 be approved as a true
record.

Page 1

126

TO RECEIVE NOTIFICATION OF PETITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
COUNCIL'S PETITION SCHEME
126.1 There were no petitions received.

127

QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS
127.1 There were no questions received.

128

MATTERS REFERRED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY OR JOINT AUDIT
AND STANDARDS COMMITTEES
128.1 A draft minute of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 14
February 2019 and a recommendation from the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee was attached to Item 6, Recommendation from the Joint Overview
and Scrutiny Committee held on 14 February 2019, BCa/18/70.

129

BCA/18/70 RECOMMENDATION FROM THE JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE HELD ON 14 FEBRUARY 2019
129.1 Councillor McCraw introduced report BCa/18/70 and stated that the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee believed that the proposals being made in 3.0 to 3.7
of the information bulletin relating to the disabled facilities grant presented at
the meeting would properly address the situation as it existed, but a review
would be required in sixteen months’ time.
129.2 Councillor Ward highlighted two minor errors in the draft minute from
Overview and Scrutiny.
129.3 Councillor Osborne stated that issues had been identified about eighteen
months ago and the recommendations in the report under 1.2 in the report
would resolve those issues and address them should the recommendations
be approved by Cabinet.
129.4 On the proposal of Councillor Simon Barrett and seconded by Councillor
Osborne
By a unanimous vote
It was RESOLVED:
(i)

That Cabinet notes that the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee
strongly endorsed the proposed ‘Changes to Disabled Facilities Grant
3.0 to 3.7’ in the Information Bulletin to Cabinet.

(ii)

That the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive a report back
following the Cabinet meeting in March 2019 on the agreed future
arrangements for the Disabled Facilities Grant and that the report
include the conclusions and the legal implications of the contract.

Page 2

Reason for Decision: To inform Cabinet of the findings and recommendations of
the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee relating to the Disabled Facilities Grant.

130

FORTHCOMING DECISIONS LIST
130.1 The updated Forthcoming Decisions List was noted.

131

BCA/18/71 GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING 2018-19 - APRIL TO
DECEMBER 2018
131.1 Councillor Ward, Cabinet Member for Finance, introduced report BCa/18/71
and stated that the report presented the latest position regarding the
expenditure budget variances for the General Fund Revenue Account and the
General Fund Capital Programme.
131.2 Councillor Ward stated that the key variations on expenditure and income
compared with the budget had been identified and were presented in the
table in paragraph 5.8 of the report, there had been a number of
improvements since the last report and there now was a favourable variance
of £829k which was an improvement of £290k.
131.3 Councillor Ward advised that the overall picture meant that the Council was
able to increase the contribution to the business rates equalisation reserve
from £661k to £937K. A new earmarked reserve for the Joint Local Plan had
also been set up with £108k being transferred to this fund.
131.4 Councillor Ward also stated that the current Transformation Fund projects
were listed in Appendix B of the report and as reported in the budget the
Transformation Fund was down to £25K after accounting for outstanding
commitments as shown in the high-level summary table in paragraph 5.10 of
the report.
131.5 Councillor Ward reported that the General Fund Reserves were just over £5
million opposed to the predicted amount of £3.75 million in the previous report
which was a significant improvement and there was now a favourable
variance of £8.4 million excluding CIFCO anticipated for capital expenditure
with the reasons for this being summarised in paragraph 5.19 of the report.
The capital programme was set out in Appendix D of the report.
131.6 Councillor Ward MOVED the recommendations in the report which Councillor
Barrett SECONDED.
By a unanimous vote
It was RESOLVED:(i)

That subject to any further budget variations that arise during the rest of
the financial year, the following net transfers of £829k be noted;

Page 3

a) Transfer from reserves of £108k being the net amount, for the
following specific earmarked reserves, referred to in section 5.8 and
Appendix C of the report;


£108k to Joint Local Plan (a new earmarked reserve)



£31k to Waste



£10k to Elections


£115k from Commuted Maintenance Payments



£59k from Planning for appeal costs



£58k from Homelessness



£25k from Government Grants (Economic Development)

b) Of the remaining balance of the General Fund surplus £937k be
transferred to the Business Rates Equalisation reserve, as referred to
in section 2.1 (c) of the report.
Reason for Decision: To ensure that Members are kept informed of the current
budgetary position for both General Fund Revenue and Capital.
132

BCA/18/72 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) FINANCIAL MONITORING
2018/19 - APRIL TO DECEMBER 2018
132.1

Councillor Osborne, Cabinet Member for Housing, introduced report
BCa/18/72 and stated that the HRA was reporting a surplus of £544k at the
end of December 2018 which was a favourable variance of £299k for the
year and a favourable movement of £724k since August. The main reasons
for these variances were:


Rental income was predicted to show an adverse variance of £84k for
the year, and adverse movement of £64 from the August report which
was due to higher than anticipated voids and the reallocation of
homeless rental to the General fund.



Planned maintenance, heating costs were £100k higher than budget
mainly due to increases in material costs and the amount of work
required to be carried out, this was a favourable movement of £14k
since the August report.



Asbestos surveys were showing an adverse movement of £15k from
August which was an adverse variance of £80k for the year, this was
due to an increase in the requirement to carry out these surveys due to
higher than anticipated planned works, remedial works and tenant
friendly asbestos reports.

Page 4



Void repairs were now anticipated to show a favourable variance of
£125k for the year, an improvement of £58k since August, this was due
to a review of the revenue costs and subsequent reallocation of some
of these to capital.



Responsive repairs were anticipating an adverse variance of £169k for
the year, an adverse movement of £134k, this was due to an increase
in material costs and the number of repairs anticipated to be carried
out.



BMBS were showing an adverse variance of £512k for the year this
was an adverse movement of £324k from the August report. The main
reason for these were an increase in external contractor’s work being
carried out on voids and timing delays in recharging these back to the
relevant service area.



General management costs were £32k higher than the budget however
this was a favourable movement of £101k mainly due to savings on
salary costs and professional fees.



Sheltered accommodation was now anticipated to show a favourable
variance of £43k for the year, a favourable movement of £115k since
August and this was mainly due to a savings on salaries of £40k and
lower than anticipated repairs carried out by BMBS of £64k.

132.2

Councillor Osborne reported that following a review of the depreciation
calculations within the business model to align them to 17/18 outturn an
increase of £514k was anticipated for this year, revenue contribution to
capital spend was showing a favourable variance of £1.6 million for the year,
a favourable movement of £1.4 million from August. The variances were
explained in more detail in paragraph 5.6 of the report.

132.3

Councillor Osborne MOVED the recommendations which Councillor Ridley
SECONDED.

132.4

Councillor Ridley stated that BMBS was becoming a long-term challenge
and enquired if they were adequately staffed and able to retain staff.

132.5

Councillor Osborne agreed that BMBS continued to have challenges and
staffing issues was one of them. Regular meetings were being held with
staff to identify what their issues and problems are. Councillor Osbourne
stated that she would ask the Corporate Manager for BMBS to email
members to keep them informed.

132.6

Councillor Ward welcomed the offer of more detailed updates particularly
around the issue of sickness and morale.

132.7

Councillor Lawrenson stated that it was incumbent to make sure that that
value for money was delivered as well as providing an adequate service for
our tenants.

Page 5

132.8

Councillor Maybury raised that when there was an ongoing problem with
building maintenance there was a knock-on effect to tenants and that as it
had been stated that we are having to rely on external contractors again,
their costs maybe higher than anticipated which gave cause for concern.

132.9

In response Councillor Osborne stated that the problems being experienced
with BMBS were the same as when the department was previously
managed by the previous contractor, however there were now less
complaints and the tenants were reporting that the service had improved.

132.10 Councillor Barrett raised that self-employed workers are less likely to be off
sick and questioned whether the BMBS model should be continued.
Councillor Barrett suggested that Overview and Scrutiny investigate if this
model was sustainable.
132.11 Kathy Nixon, Strategic Director, stated that work was being done regarding
sickness absence and stress related absence in the organisation at the
moment with new policies being brought in and ongoing training
programmes for all managers to upskill them to deal with sickness absence
and early identification of people who may be getting stressed. The
Strategic Director also reported that there had been a four-month downward
trend in mental health related absence and there had been a three-month
downward trend for overall sickness absence.
132.12 Councillor Ridley asked if this report just reflected Babergh’s half of the
adverse variances and if this was the case, he would support Councillor
Barrett’s comments that this was clearly an area that needs some very
careful examination.
132.13 Councillor Lawrenson stated that the downward trend in long term sickness
was to be welcomed and that the Cabinet would welcome seeing the
comparable figures from the past few years before BMBS was incorporated
until now. Councillor Lawrenson also suggested that a review be carried out
in a years’ time to see if there was any improvement.
132.14 Councillor Maybury agreed with the comments made and asked if spot
checks were being carried out to assess value for money.
132.15 Councillor Osborne stated that issues had been raised before regarding the
level of performance and the standard of the work that has been undertaken,
this had been addressed and quality checks were due to be started. An
update would be sought from the Corporate Manager as to whether quality
checks had been implemented. Councillor Osborne agreed that a deadline
for a review was needed and that a 12-month timeline was a sensible one.
By a unanimous vote

Page 6

It was RESOLVED:(i)

That the potential or likely variations in relation to the HRA both
Revenue and Capital compared to the Budget be noted.

(ii)

That, subject to any further budget variations that arise during the rest
of the financial year, the increase in funds of £299k, referred to in
section 5.6 of the report, be transferred to the Strategic Priorities
reserve, as referred to in 2a of the report.

Reason for Decision: To ensure that Members are kept informed of the current
budgetary position for both the HRA Revenue and Capital Budgets.
133

BCA/18/73 QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE OUTCOME REPORTING
133.1

Councillor Davis, Cabinet Member for Organisational Delivery introduced
report BCa/18/73 and stated that this was the third of the revised quarterly
performance reports submitted to Cabinet and that ongoing refinement of
the performance framework would ensure that the performance measures
reflected the outcomes in the Joint Strategic Plan and particularly the agreed
priorities.

133.2

Councillor Davis pointed out the revised method for recording the figure for
missed bins. This measure was a recognised method for recording missed
bins and would allow the Council to undertake benchmarking in the future.

133.3

Councillor Davis also summarised improvements to the number of days lost
to sickness and the reduction of the average telephone wait time.

133.4

Councillor Davis MOVED the recommendations in the report which
Councillor Osborne SECONDED.

133.4

Councillor Ward reiterated the good work carried out to improve the wait
times in the call centres and also pointed out the reduction in abandoned
calls which was also a significant improvement.

133.5

Councillor Lawrenson stated that the graphics used in the report were very
useful and suggested another measure to be included in the future would be
to compare the Councils performance measures to other authorities and
establish best practice. Councillor Lawrenson also stated that using
different timescales to compile the graphs could cause confusion and that he
would like to see more consistency in the data and the timescales used.

133.6

Councillor Ward agreed that being able to compare performance measures
against other authorities would be a very useful exercise.

133.7

Councillor Grandon agreed that the graphs were useful and requested a
graph showing the usage of the customer service points and the type of
information people are accessing at the customer services points be
included in future reports.

Page 7

133.8

Councillor Davis stated that the figures had not yet been compiled but these
figures could be included in the future.

133.8

Councillor Osborne also agreed that the report was a good mechanism for
advising performance and thanked the team for their hard work.

By a unanimous vote
It was RESOLVED:(i)

That the performance report and the performance outcome information
tabled at Appendices A to G of the report be agreed as adequately
reflecting Babergh District Council’s performance for October –
December 2018.

Reason for Decision:
performance objectives.
134

To provide assurance that the Council is meeting its

BCA/18/74 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) - CIL EXPENDITURE
BUSINESS PLAN MARCH 2019
134.1

Councillor Ridley, Cabinet Member for Planning, introduced the report and
stated that the report included a business plan which included an update
on progress on decisions in CIL Bid Round One (Appendix A) and the
assessments for the individual CIL bids (Appendix B). Councillor Ridley
suggested it would be better to go through each recommendation one by
one.

134.2

Councillor Ward agreed that each bid should be approved individually.

134.3

Councillor Ridley introduced CIL Bid B19-18 which was for £100,000 from
the strategic infrastructure fund to support the £2.5 million project
refurbishment of Kingfisher Leisure in Sudbury which was an important
capital project for the Council and included refurbishment of the gym. The
proposal was a worthy strategic infrastructure proposal which should be
supported and was recommended for approval.

134.4

B19-18 was approved unanimously.

134.5

Councillor Ridley introduced bid B06-18 for tiered seating at East Bergholt
High School, this was for £45,000 which was part of a larger education
improvement project of £539,222. The proposal accommodates proposed
community use of the seating and a community use contract would be
used to secure this. It was considered this CIL bid should be supported
and recommendation was also for approval. Councillor Ridley asked
Cabinet if there were any questions and if they were happy to approve.

Page 8

134.6

Councillor Davis stated it was important that schools were supported and it
was also important was that it was for the wider community use and that
schools needed to recognise that they may need to change their approach
and become more encompassing.

134.7

Councillor Osborne asked that as East Bergholt High School was an
academy was there confidence that they would make this available for
community use.

134.8

The Professional Lead for Key Sites and Infrastructure, stated that
community use had been negotiated with a legal contract created and the
offer of any CIL bid funding, should Cabinet approve the bid today, would
be subject to that legal contract being completed.

134.9

Councillor Lawrenson stated as Chairman of a local school considering
becoming an academy it was his belief that it was a requirement that the
school facilities be available for the use of the community and that he was
glad that this was being enforced.

134.10 Councillor Davis asked if it mattered if the education facility was an
academy or just within the LEA when being considered for a CIL bid.
134.11 In response the Professional Lead for Key Sites and Infrastructure stated
that currently the framework did not specify a difference in approach
between the two but could be included in the next review of the CIL
expenditure framework as more extensions to schools were being put
forward which may become more of an issue.
134.13 Councillor Ridley stated that it was likely there would be an increasing
number of schools making applications for CIL and not for small sums and
suggested that there needed to be a discussion between Babergh officers
and County officers responsible regarding giving proper advice.
134.16 Councillor Lawrenson stated that academy schools were still state schools
which are funded directly from government and not from Suffolk County
Council.
134.17 Councillor Ridley asked for approval of CIL Bid B06-18 which was given.
134.18 Councillor Ridley introduced CIL Bid B07-18 for Preston St Mary and
stated that a question had been raised in Council briefing regarding how
much the Parish Council or any other fund within the village might be
contributing towards the village hall project. Councillor Ridley informed
Cabinet that the Village Hall Committee had £9,611. and their income was
very close to their expenditure but they were spending £2,000 on the
extension. The Parish Council had only £4,500 with very little surplus and
that the recommendation was for approval.

Page 9

134.19 Councillor Lawrenson stated it was a very significate amount of money
being requested and questioned whether the Council should be funding
the whole project.
134.20 Councillor Ridley replied that the Council would not be funding the project
as the whole bid was for £195,000 reduced to £160,000.
134.21 Councillor Ward stated that the overall cost estimates had been reduced
and that in this case approval should be granted but agreed but that a
review in the future would be a good idea.
134.22 Councillor Grandon suggested that in the future for grants over a certain
amount the Council should look to provide a percentage of the costs rather
than such a large amount and look at whether they should be match
funded and whether this should be included in our policies.
134.24 Councillor Ridley stated that this was a small village which had not had a
great deal of development and this was what the CIL fund was for.
134.25 CIL Bid B07-18 was approved.
134.26 Councillor Ridley introduced CIL Bid B12-18 for Lavenham and stated that
the total cost of the project was £45,000 with £12,500 being invested by
the parish council, £2,500 from locality funding and the CIL bid was for
£30,000.
134.27 Councillor Ward stated that this was part of the long-term plan to support
Lavenham to create a community hub and take over the tourism service
there and should be supported.
134.28 CIL Bid B12-18 was approved.
134.30 Councillor Ridley introduced CIL Bid B13-18 Lavenham electric charging
point and stated that the most common EV charge point being offered was
a rapid charger which was capable of recharging a vehicle to
approximately 80% capacity in about 30 minutes however, visitors to
Lavenham would be more likely to park their car medium to long term and
in this scenario rapid charge was not required so the chargers could be
slower and cheaper.
134.31 Councillor Barrett enquired if Lavenham had considered that there were
commercial options available that would provide electric charge points
without having to pay for it.
134.32 The Senior Environmental Management Officer stated that he had not
spoken to the company that Councillor Barrett was familiar with but had
spoken to another installer and that his understanding was that the
commercial organisations preferred locations with 30 minute turn arounds
for example petrol stations and service centres on trunk roads and visitors
to Lavenham tended to visit for longer periods of time so that model was

Page 10

not what they were looking for and therefore the cost of the rapid charger
at around £20,000 was not appropriate. There had been a deliberate
decision made to not speak to commercial organisations about Lavenham
because it was believed that there was potential for an income to be
retained within the Council.
134.33 Councillor Barrett enquired if the charging point was one where you used a
card or if you needed to be registered to use it.
134.34 The Senior Environmental Management Officer replied that it would be the
same as the Kingfisher Leisure charging point which would require a sign
up to a particular provider, however that provider was expanding their
network of chargers. He also pointed out that this bid was on behalf of
Babergh District Council and not Lavenham Parish Council so the charge
point would be owned by the Council.
134.35 Councillor Ward asked for approval for CIL Bid B13-18 which was granted.
134.36 Councillor Ridley introduced CIL Bid B14-18 which was a delegated
decision for £3,440 and asked for it to be noted and also asked for
paragraph 3.2 and 3.3 of the recommendations in the report to be agreed.
134.37 Councillor Ridley stated that the CIL bid spend in this round was
£241,986.99, £100,000 to the strategic infrastructure fund, the remainder
to the local infrastructure fund. The amount carried forward to the next bid
round in May 2019 for the local infrastructure fund was £279,728.96.
Councillor Ridley reminded members that 3.1 in the recommendations was
to approve all of the bids, 3.2 to note and indorse all of the outstanding
valid and invalid bids that continue to be worked upon and in paragraph
3.3 Cabinet are asked to note and indorse the CIL business plan and the
reasons are as given on the paper.
134.42 Councillor Ridley MOVED the recommendations which Councillor Barrett
SECONDED.
By a unanimous vote
It was RESOLVED:
1.1

That the CIL Expenditure Business Plan (March 2019) and
accompanying technical assessments of the CIL Bids forming
Appendices A and B of the report and which included decisions on
valid Bids for Cabinet to make and those for Cabinet to note be
approved as follows:

Page 11

Decisions for Cabinet to take: Strategic Infrastructure Fund
CIL Bid, Location and
Infrastructure Proposed
B19-18 SUDBURY
Kingfisher Leisure
Centre

Amount of CIL Bid
£100,000
Total Cost £2,456,000

Recommendation
Recommendation
to Cabinet to
approve CIL Bid
for £100,000

Decisions for Cabinet to take: Local Infrastructure Fund
CIL Bid, Location and
Infrastructure Proposed
B06-18 EAST
BERGHOLT
East Bergholt High
School

Amount of CIL Bid and
total cost of the
Infrastructure
£45,000
Total cost £539,222 (of
bigger project including
tiered seating)

Delegated
Decision
Recommendation
to Cabinet to
approve CIL
Bid for £45,000

Tiered Seating for
Community and
Education Use
B07-18 PRESTON ST
MARY Preston St Mary
Village Hall

£130.091
Total cost £130,091
(excluding VAT)

Provision of extension
to provide kitchen and
cooking facilities and
inside toilets
B12-18 LAVENHAM 2
Lady Street provision of
Community facilities

Recommendation
to Cabinet to
approve
CIL Bid of
£130,091

£30,000
Total cost £45,000

Recommendation
to Cabinet to
approve
CIL Bid for
£30,000

B13-18 LAVENHAM Car
Park to the rear of the
Cock Inn

£33,455.99
Total Cost £33,455.99

Recommendation
to Cabinet to
approve
CIL Bid for
£33,455.99

Page 12

Decisions for Cabinet to note and endorse: Local Infrastructure Fund
CIL Bid, Location and
Infrastructure Proposed

Amount of CIL Bid and
total cost of the
Infrastructure

Delegated
Decision

B14-18 COCKFIELD
Restoration of twin
brick culvert

£5,155.00 originally;
subsequently revised to
£3,440.00

Delegated
decision.

Total Cost Originally
£12,366.00 (including
VAT); subsequently
revised to £6,880.00
(excluding VAT)

for Cabinet to
note £3,440.00

1.2

That Cabinet noted and endorsed that except for CIL Bids B18-18 which
was not CIL 123 compliant respectively (such that the Bid could be
progressed), all other non-determined valid or invalid Bids continue to
be worked upon and all will be carried forward to the next CIL bid round
3 for consideration.

1.3

That Cabinet noted and endorsed the CIL Business Plan (which
included all those valid CIL Bids where offers of other sources of
funding have been made for projects as part of the CIL process such
that the value of that original CIL Bid is reduced).

Reason for Decision: Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) monies have been
collected since the implementation of CIL on the 11 th April 2016. The CIL
Expenditure Framework adopted in April 2018 requires the production of a CIL
Business Plan for each District which contains decisions for Cabinet to make or
note and endorse on CIL Bids for CIL expenditure. These decisions relating to the
expenditure of CIL monies form the one of the ways which necessary infrastructure
supporting growth is delivered.
135

BCA/18/75 AMENDMENTS TO THE PLANNING PRE-APPLICATION
CHARGING ADVICE SERVICE AND CHARGING SCHEDULE
135.1

Councillor Ridley, Cabinet Member for Planning, introduced report
BCa/18/75 and stated that the Planning Pre-Application issue was recently
introduced and that it was currently being reviewed. The Planning PreApplication was not allowed by Government to be a profit centre but it was
allowed for reasonable charges to be made against the costs to the
Council to give the advice. The service had been operating successfully
for over a year and had been affective in recovering a portion of the costs.
The scope of the service had remained under review since it was brought
in and it was now appropriate to improve the pre-application service and
charges. The aim was to improve the service to small and medium size

Page 13

enterprises including small scale builders and those businesses in receipt
of other support from the Council, in those cases it was proposed to
include a full exemption from the Councils planning charges and a 50%
exemption from heritage charges. The charges were also to be fine-tuned
to cover the costs of some of the enquiries that had proved to be more
popular than expected, at the same time advice will be offered on the
potential CIL charge an applicant might expect.
135.2

Councillor Ridley PROPOSED the recommendations in the report, which
Councillor Barrett SECONDED.

135.3

Councillor Maybury enquired if any charges were applied if the
Enforcement Team visit a site for any reason.

135.3

It was stated that this was not pre-application.

By a unanimous vote
It was RESOLVED:(i)

That the proposed changes to the charged pre-application advice
service and associated charges as set out in the attached draft
Schedule at Appendix (a) of the report be approved.

(ii)

That the Assistant Director Planning and Communities to, at least
annually, review the Schedule of charges and as need be to amend the
Schedule in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning to
reflect current good business practice in pre-application charging.

Reason for Decision: The decision to agree the changes to the pre-application
advice service and associated charges will refine and improve the service offered
to users and the delegation of authority will enable continued service improvement
in an iterative way.
136

BCA/18/76 ADOPTION OF CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISALS FOR BRENT
ELEIGH, NAUGHTON AND GREAT WALDINGFIELD
136.1

Councillor Campbell, Cabinet Member for Environment, introduced the
report and stated that this was something which must be done as heritage
was important and must be recognised and architectural heritage must be
celebrated.

136.2

Councillor Lawrenson stated that as a resident of the Great Waldingfield
conservation area it was clearly important as the last time this conservation
area was reviewed was in the 1970’s. Councillor Lawrenson asked
Cabinet Members to note that in the report it recommended expanding the
conservation area which was not something that has been seen before in a
conservation area report and for that Councillor Lawrenson commended
the Conservation Officers and Mr Patrick Taylor who had prepared the
report.

Page 14

136.3

Councillor Lawrenson proposed an amendment to item 3.3 as follows:
That following appropriate public consultation, to take place before the end
of May and complete before the end of July, the Corporate Manager Sustainable Environment be authorised to amend the Great Waldingfield
Conservation Area boundary as it was proposed in the Appraisal in
Appendix C of the report and subject to other minor consequential
amendments, the document be adopted as non-statutory Supplementary
Planning Guidance.

136.4

The Corporate Manager – Sustainable Environment stated that he agreed
with this amendment and that it would not need to be brought back to
Cabinet subject to Cabinet approving the recommendation for the
Corporate Manager - Sustainable Environment be authorised to make
amendments.

136.5

Councillor Ridley stated that Patrick Taylor undertook the majority of the
work to prepare the reports and had also prepared in draft three more that
were still to be done and thanked him publicly for all of the work he had
undertaken.

136.6

Councillor Maybury stated that Great Waldingfield was a unique area and
that she agreed with the proposals to expand the conservation area.

136.7

Councillor Arthey stated that the Parish Council for Brent Eleigh would
welcome the recommendations and that the conservation area appraisals
were finally happening but the comments from the Suffolk Preservation
Society regarding the methodology in the preparation of conservation area
appraisals had moved on a bit and although correct were not particularly
helpful. This report showed consistency with all the Council’s other
conservation area appraisals which were carried out by Patrick Taylor
some years ago. Councillor Arthey enquired if the amendment proposed
by Councillor Lawrenson only applied to recommendation 3.3 as he hoped
that he would be able to go to the Brent Eleigh Parish Council meeting and
announce that their conservation area appraisal had been adopted.

136.9

Councillor Barrett questioned what the upside was of the conservation
areas being appraised.

136.10 Councillor Ward reiterated the amendment proposed by Councillor
Lawrenson to recommendation 3.3 was to be ‘That following appropriate
public consultation, to take place before the end of May, the Corporate
Manager - Sustainable Environment be authorised to amend the Great
Waldingfield Conservation Area boundary as it was proposed in the
Appraisal in Appendix C of the report, and subject to other minor
consequential amendments, the document be adopted as non-statutory
Supplementary Planning Guidance’ and asked for a seconder to that
amendment.

Page 15

136.11 Councillor Lawrenson requested that it be noted that his wished to vote on
recommendations 3.1 and 3.2 but would be abstaining for recommendation
3.3.
136.12 Councillor Campbell MOVED the recommendations which Councillor
Lawrenson SECONDED.
By a unanimous vote
It was RESOLVED:(i)

That the Conservation Area Appraisal for Brent Eleigh (Appendix A) be
adopted as non-statutory Supplementary Planning Guidance with
immediate effect.

(ii)

That the Conservation Area Appraisal for Naughton (Appendix B) be
adopted as non-statutory Supplementary Planning Guidance with
immediate effect.

(iii)

That following appropriate public consultation, to take place before the
end of May, the Corporate Manager - Sustainable Environment be
authorised to amend the Great Waldingfield Conservation Area
boundary as is proposed in the Appraisal in Appendix C, and subject
to other minor consequential amendments, the document be adopted
as non-statutory Supplementary Planning Guidance.

Reason for Decision: To enable Planning decisions to be made with the best
available background information.
137

BCA/18/77 REGULATORY REFORM ORDER POLICY ON MINOR DISABLED
ADAPTATION SCHEME
137.1

Councillor Osborne introduced report BCa/18/77 and MOVED the
recommendations in the report stating that a regulatory reform order gave
powers to local authorities to use disabled facilities grant budget more
innovatively and with greater flexibility. This flexibility allowed authorities to
apply appropriate solutions to problems which they face within their area.
The mandatory disabled facilities grant was out of date and the application
process could be complex, long and come at a time when people were at
crisis. Babergh had a significant underspend of the disabled facilities grant
budget and a great concern was that vulnerable residents were not receiving
the assistance they needed to enable them to remain at home and live
independent lives. The proposed Regulatory Reform Order Policy aimed to
address some of the issues which were contributing to the underspend at
Babergh whilst helping as many people as possible to be safe, well and
remain at home by expanding the circumstances in which help would be
available. A wider piece of work to consider the Suffolk picture and the
current Orbit home improvement agency was also underway.

Page 16

137.2

Councillor Ward asked for a seconder and stated that simplifying these and
making minor improvements made a lot of sense and would help things
considerably.

137.3

Councillor Barrett SECONDED the recommendations in the report.

137.4

Councillor Lawrenson stated that this was a fabulous policy being brought
forward and that was very important that support was given to those less
fortunate in the community and suggested that there be a review in a years’
time to check how the money had been allocated.

137.5

Councillor Osborne stated that the recommendation did state that it would
be reviewed in 12 months’ time.

137.6

Councillor Maybury asked that paragraph 4.20 be reviewed as it mentioned
over bath showers which were not suitable for disabled people. Councillor
Maybury also stated that she was glad that it was stated in paragraph 5.2
that there was a chronic shortage of retirement homes and that this was
something which should be reviewed.

137.7

Councillor Osborne replied to Councillor Maybury’s comment about over
shower baths by stating that there are quite a few people disabled or not that
actually preferred a bath to a shower and that facilities were available such
as lifts.

137.8

Councillor Davis thanked Councillor Osborne and the team for compiling this
report.

137.9

Councillor Grandon stated there was a need to publicise this to make people
aware that there were funds available.

137.10 Councillor Osborne stated that other agencies were keen to work with the
Council and that a model had been agreed that included working with GP’s
and making sure that staff in hospitals were aware of the availability of this
fund. Councillor Osborne stated that there may be a lot of demand for this
funding but the understanding was that the more that could be delivered and
the more funding that the Council could demonstrate could be used to useful
affect then the government would increase the funding available.
137.11 Councillor Ridley expressed his concern that £5,000 was not going to go
very far.
137.12 Councillor Lawrenson stated that there needed to be awareness of budget
considerations.
137.13 Councillor Campbell commented that on the information bulletin 1.4 stated
that the additional money must be committed by 31 st March 2019 and asked
if this was possible.

Page 17

137.14 Councillor Osborne replied that the additional funding criteria was to spend it
by 31st of March and it was being used to buy equipment and to look at
providing temporary accommodation in both Babergh and Mid Suffolk to use
the money and not lose it.
137.15 The Senior Environmental Health Officer, stated that a list was being drafted
of equipment to ensure the money was not lost and regarding the temporary
housing this was intended to be used as a first step for people when
returning home from hospital and it was being investigated whether this
money could be used for that project.
137.16 Councillor Osborne commended the team for their hard work and innovate
thinking.
By a unanimous vote
It was RESOLVED(i)

That the Regulatory Reform Order Policy on Minor Disabled Adaptation
Scheme as described in Option 1 of the report be adopted and reviewed
in 12 months.

Reason for Decision: For a Regulatory Reform Order Policy on Minor Disabled
Adaptation Scheme to be used legally, members need to have adopted such a
scheme.
138

BCA/18/78 MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT POLICY AND MEMBER
ROLE DESCRIPTIONS
138.1

The Corporate Manager – Democratic Services, introduced report
BCa/18/78 and stated that the draft Member Learning and Development
Policy and proposed Member Role Profiles were prepared following works
carried out by the Joint Member Learning and Development Working Group.
The purpose of the Member Learning Development Policy was to provide a
framework for future member training and development focussing on the
Council’s commitment to provide an effective induction programme and
ongoing training and professional development for members.
The
introduction of role profiles was intended to guide members in terms of
expectations associated with their role, to inform the public and officers and
provide a useful tool for future member development. The roles were
currently in existence across both councils but may only be pertinent to one
Council. The profiles were not an exhaustive list of every specific duty the
might be carried out and would be subject to change as roles evolved and
would be reviewed by the Member Learning and Development Working
Group on an annual basis.

138.2

Councillor Ward PROPOSED the recommendations which Councillor
Osborne SECONDED.

Page 18

138.3

Councillor Ward stated that the work in the report was excellent and would
be of great use to councillors old and new in May. Councillor Ward
reminded members that further information was required around time
required to carry out roles and asked for this information to be given to the
Corporate Manager as soon as possible.

138.4

Councillor Lawrenson questioned that within the profile of Cabinet Member
without Portfolio, which was a Mid Suffolk role, under key relationships it
mentioned ‘the public and outside organisations’ which was not mentioned
within the profile for Cabinet Members.

138.5

The Corporate Manager replied that this was an omission which she would
rectify.

138.6

Councillor Osborne stated that improved communications were needed
regarding the commitment and hours worked as a Councillor.

By a unanimous vote
It was RESOLVED:(i)

That the Member Learning and Development Policy and Role Profiles be
approved to provide a framework for future Member training and
development.

Reason for Decision: To provide a framework for future Member learning and
development and to clarify the responsibilities and expectations for prospective
Members, newly elected Members and existing Members, members of the public,
partner organisations and officers.
139

BCA/18/79 BUSINESS RATES RETENTION PILOT - SUDBURY TOWN CENTRE
PROJECTS - PART 1
139.1

Councillor Ward, Cabinet Member for Finance, introduced report BCa/18/79
and stated that the report sought cabinet approval for use of up to £100,000
of Business Rate Retention allocation to grant support a major new town
centre renaissance project – the St Peter’s Cultural & Arts Centre ‘Built for
Exchange’ Regeneration. This was a joint project being run by the
Churches Conservation Trust and the Friends of St Peter’s and the total cost
was estimated at £2.5 million. The amount requested represented the gap
in funding needed to meet a match fund target for making a stage two
heritage lottery fund application by March 2020 the project will build on the
existing use of St Peter’s as a location for events to deliver a much-needed
versatile community space and multi-function venue with full and modern
facilities. This project was in alignment with Babergh’s vision for prosperity
for Sudbury, Sudbury Town Council’s vision for the town centre and was
supported by the Sudbury Steering Group. It also supported the visitor
economy objectives within the Joint Open for Business Strategy and the

Page 19

works to seek funding from the Government’s recently announced future
high streets fund. Key questions and answers were provided in the
confidential appendix to this report.
139.2

Councillor Ward MOVED the recommendations which Councillor Lawrenson
SECONDED.

139.3

Councillor Ridley proposed to remove ‘up to’ in recommendation 3.1 which
Councillor Barrett seconded.

139.4

The recommendations where approved unanimously.

It was RESOLVED:1.1

That use of £100,000 from the Business Rate Retention allocation for
Sudbury Town Centre projects for supporting the St. Peter’s ‘Built for
Exchange’ Regeneration Project Heritage Lottery Funding Phase 2
application, due for submission by March 2020 be approved; and

1.2

That delegation be given to the relevant Strategic Director with
responsibility for Economy and Business Growth, in liaison with the
Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance, to resolve via agreement
appropriate criteria and conditions to enable the grant funding to be
released

Reason for Decision: To tangibly support significant town centre renaissance and
investment in line with established priorities and strategies – benefitting local
communities, the visitor economy and local businesses.
Councillor Lawrenson asked to make a public statement as this was his last Cabinet
meeting and expressed his thanks for being involved with Cabinet which had been a
real experience and a pleasure.
Councillor Ward thanked all of the members of the Cabinet for their support and
assistance over the time that he had been Leader, which had been quite a learning
curve but had also been enjoyable and hard work and particular thanks were passed
onto Councillor Campbell and Councillor Lawrenson as they are not standing in the
next election.
Councillor Davis expressed his thanks for being made welcome on the Cabinet as
the only non-conservative member. Councillor Davis also stated that Councillor
Maybury’s comments disputing the statement made by the Headmaster of Holbrook
school had offended him and requested that Councillor Maybury apologised for
publicly questioning Councillor Davis’ integrity when she stated that what Councillor
Davis regarding Dr Letman was not true. Councillor Davis provided the slides from
the presentation made by Dr Letman which included the following quote ‘as a result
students in take away, hot lunches or their own cold pack lunches in corridors,
outside on benches, sitting on grass etc and it is even the case that some students
eat their lunch in the toilets such is the shortage of space when the weather outside
is wet and windy’.

Page 20

Councillor Maybury apologised and stated that she questioned Councillor Davis
statement because it had been reported in the local media that the Headmaster was
retracting that statement because it was damaging to the school.
Councillor Ward asked for a vote to exclude members of the public for the remaining
two items.
140

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC (WHICH TERM INCLUDES THE PRESS)
By a unanimous vote
It was Resolved:That under section 100(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be
excluded from the meeting for the following item on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Act in the paragraph registered against the item:

141

BCA/18/79 BUSINESS RATES RETENTION PILOT - SUDBURY TOWN CENTRE
PROJECTS - PART 2 (EXEMPT INFORMATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3
OF PART 1)
141.1 The information contained in the exempt appendix of the report was noted.

142

BCA/18/80 SALE OF LAND IN SUDBURY (EXEMPT INFORMATION BY VIRTUE
OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 1)
142.1

On the proposal of Councillor Lawrenson and seconded by Councillor Ward

By unanimous vote
It was Resolved :That Recommendations be approved.
143

BCA/18/81 TO CONFIRM THE CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES OF 6 FEBRUARY 2019
MEETING
It was Resolved:That the confidential Minutes of the meeting held on the 6th February 2019 be
approved as a true record.

The business of the meeting was concluded at 11.10 am.
……………………………………..
Chair

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL

BCa/19/2

TO:

Cabinet

REPORT NUMBER:

FROM:

Cabinet Member for Finance

DATE OF MEETING: 13 June 2019

OFFICER:

Katherine Steel, Assistant
Director, Corporate
Resources
Melissa Evans, Corporate
Manager, Finance
Sharon Bayliss, Senior
Finance Business Partner

KEY DECISION REF NO. CAB123

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2018/19
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report summarises the 2018/19 financial outturn for the General Fund and
Capital Programme.

1.2

This is subject to the external auditors’ report on the Statement of Accounts for the
year, which will be presented to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee later in the
year once the audit is complete.

1.3

Key changes since the previous report total £1.452m. This can be broken down as
follows; additional Business Rates S31 grants (£846k), Revenues and Benefits
(including Housing Benefit Subsidy £287k), recharges to HRA and Capital (£171k)
and an increase to planning fee income (£112k).

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

The options that have been considered are;
a) Transfer of surplus funds of £2.281m to the Transformation Fund.
b) Transfer of surplus funds of £2.281m to the Business Rates Equalisation Reserve
c) Transfer surplus funds of £1.846m to the Business Rates Equalisation reserve as
explained further in the table in section 5.4, surplus funds of £293k to the
Transformation Fund and net transfers of £143k to specific earmarked reserves
as detailed in 3.2(a) below.
d) To recommend carry forward requests for the General Fund (£75k) and Capital
(£7.850m).

Page 23

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That the 2018/19 financial outturn as set out in this report be noted.
3.2 That, the following net transfers of £2.281m be noted;
a) Transfer to reserves of £143k being the net amount, for the following specific
earmarked reserves, referred to in section 5.7 and Appendix C of this report;
b) Of the remaining balance of the General Fund surplus £1.846m be transferred to
the Business Rates Equalisation reserve and £293k to the Transformation Fund,
as referred to in section 2.1 (c).
3.3

That the General Fund carry-forward requests totalling £75k referred to in paragraph
5.8 of this report be approved.

3.4

That the total Capital carry-forward requests referred to in paragraphs 5.16 of this
report totalling £7.850m be approved.
REASON FOR DECISION
To ensure that Members are kept informed of the outturn position for both
General Fund Revenue and Capital and to approve the carry forward requests.

4.

KEY INFORMATION
Strategic Context

4.1

In February 2018 Babergh District Council approved the Joint Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS). This confirms the direction of travel, in that the Council continues
to respond to the financial challenges.
The strategic response to those challenges, to ensure long term financial
sustainability, is set out in five key actions:

4.2

(1)

Aligning resources to the Councils’ refreshed strategic plan and essential
services.

(2)

Continuation of the shared service agenda, collaboration with others and
transformation of service delivery.

(3)

Behaving more commercially, generating additional income and considering
new funding models (e.g. acting as an investor).

(4)

Encouraging the use of digital interaction and transforming our approach to
customer access.

(5)

Taking advantage of various forms of local government finance (e.g. New
Homes Bonus (NHB), Business Rates Retention) by enabling sustainable
business and housing growth.

Funding arrangements for councils have changed significantly; Babergh has seen a
92.7% cumulative cut in revenue support grant over the five years from 2013/14 to
2018/19. As a result of the Business Rates pilot in 2018/19 the revenue support grant
of £204k is funded from the 100% Business Rate growth retained. The Council has
Page 24

become reliant on Business Rates income and ‘incentivised’ funding such as the New
Homes Bonus to support the Council’s service cost budget. Since New Homes Bonus
was introduced in 2011/12 the Council has received in total £7.6m, most of which has
been used to balance the budget and the rest transferred to the Transformation Fund
or in 2017/18 the Business Rates Equalisation Reserve.
4.3

For 2018/19 Babergh was part of the Suffolk Business Rates Pilot, for retention of
100% of growth. The financial benefits were shared between the councils in Suffolk
and a proportion used to achieve sustainable economic growth. Babergh benefited
from an additional £1.370m in retained business rates to spend on various growth
initiatives as set out in 5.10 and Appendix A of this report. It is also important that
capital resources are used in ways to support the new business model. The Council
is looking to use its assets and borrowing capacity to generate income from
alternative sources in order to protect key services and with the aim of becoming selfsufficient in relation to income that the Council can generate itself.

4.4

The total estimated core funding for future years is not a fixed guaranteed amount as
it is dependent on variations in Business Rates income. This is carefully monitored
and the volatility and risks, for example, rate relief for schools converting to
academies and the level of appeals, will affect the amount of income received.

5.

2018/19 Outturn Position

5.1

In relation to funding:
(a)

Council Tax (£5.2m): at the end of March, collection rates were 98.45%,
compared with 98.5% for the previous year. The collecting of Council Tax
remains challenging, especially from those receiving Council Tax reductions
under the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme (LCTR).

(b)

Government Grants: baseline Business Rates (£2.5m) and New Homes Bonus
(£0.9m) were allowed for in the Budget. NHB is fixed but the actual amount of
Business Rates will vary as explained further in the table in 5.4.

(c)

Business Rates: at the end of March, collection rates were 98.62% compared
with 98.47% for the previous year.

(d)

Based on the final outturn position from Suffolk County Council the Business
Rates Pool position will be £277k, a favourable variance of £71k.

5.2

The unaudited accounts show a favourable variance (reduced expenditure and/or
increased income) of £2.281m. This is before the proposed reserve transfers as set
out in paragraph 5.7 and Appendix C. The favourable variance can mainly be
attributed to; Business Rates including S31 grants (£1.846m), Strategic Planning
(£342k) and other items net (£93k). It is worth noting that expenditure on services is
generally in line with the budget.

5.3

Details of the financial position at the end of the year are outlined in the table below.

Page 25

Service Area
BMS Invest
Corporate Resources
Customer Services
Economic Development and Regeneration
Environment Commercial Partnerships
Housing
Law and Governance
Planning for Growth
Senior Leadership Team
Net expenditure on services ***

Revised Original
Budget
Actual
£'000
£'000
88
271
2,578
2,505
1,458
1,511
154
159
3,287
3,217
173
448
991
1,020
1,759
1,126
690
723
11,177 10,979

Recharge to HRA
Recharge to Capital
Capital financing costs
Transfers to / (from) reserves
Total budget requirement ***

(1,106)
(227)
46
(1,564)
8,327

(1,262)
(242)
(131)
(1,453)
7,892

Council Tax
Collection fund (Surplus)
Business Rates less Tariff
Business Rates - Pooling Benefit
17/18 distribution of deficit
S31 Grant
New Homes Bonus

(5,214)
(12)
(2,488)
(206)
1,256
(797)
(866)

(5,214)
(12)
(2,607)
(277)
1,256
(2,453)
(866)

Total funding

(8,327) (10,173)

Total Favourable variance

-

Other
Revised
Earmarked
Carry Total Reserve Revised Actual LESS
Reserve Adj Forwards Adjustments
Actual
Budget
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
271
183
18
18
2,523
(55)
1,511
53
(12)
(12)
147
(7)
(50)
8
(42)
3,174
(112)
(16)
(16)
432
259
35
35
1,055
64
186
49
235
1,362
(397)
723
32
143
75
218 11,197
20

(2,281)

(143)
-

(75)
-

(218)
-

(1,262)
(242)
(131)
(1,672)
7,892

(157)
(15)
(176)
(108)
(435)

(5,214)
(12)
(2,607)
(277)
1,256
(2,453)
(866)

(119)
(71)
(1,656)
-

-

-

-

(10,173)

(1,846)

-

-

-

(2,281)

(2,281)

***

Actual expenditure and budgets from the Transformation Fund have been excluded
from the table above. Full details of spend in 2018/19 are detailed in Appendix B.

5.4

The table below shows in detail the items that are included in the net favourable
variance of £2.281m. A number of these have been reported in previous budgetary
control reports to Cabinet. December 2018 variances have been included for
comparison. Most of the variances identified within this report have been taken into
consideration when setting the budgets for 2019/20.

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Strategic Planning
• Income for the 5% administrative
charge for the operation of CIL is a
favourable variance of £94k, an
increase of £26k since the previous
report.
• A favourable variance of £159k for
professional fees and legal costs
associated with the Joint Local Plan,
an increase of £45k since the previous
report.

(239)

Page 26

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
(342)

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
(103)

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

-

(287)

(287)

(166)

(185)

(19)

Strategic Planning Cont’d
• Other items (net) – a favourable
variance of £2k.
£159k of the overall variance has been
transferred to the new Joint Local Plan
earmarked reserve to support ongoing
professional and legal costs in future years.
•

In March 2019, the Council received
government grants for Brownfield
sites (£4k) and the Custom Build
Grant (£30k). Both of these grants
have been placed in the Strategic
Planning earmarked reserve to spend
during 2019/20.
• Community Housing Fund expenditure is budgeted for and met
from the earmarked reserve. Actual
spend for 2018/19 is much lower,
resulting in £53k less to be
transferred from the earmarked
reserve.
Revenues and Benefits
The favourable variance of £287k can be
broken down as follows;
• In March 2019, following the
Department of Work and Pensions
(DWP) audit of the 2017/18 Housing
Benefit Subsidy claim, the Council
received reimbursement of £158k.
• Additional grants received not
budgeted for including the Council
Tax Family Annex Grant has resulted
in a favourable variance of £29k.
• Recovery of Housing Benefit
overpayments was greater than
expected resulting in a favourable
variance of £97k.
• Other items (net) – a favourable
variance of £3k.
CIFCO
• A favourable variance of £185k, an
improvement of £19k since the
previous report. The change is due
to the timing of the acquisitions and
changes to the interest rate.

Page 27

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Recharge to HRA and Capital
• A net favourable variance of £171k.
This can be attributed to a number of
increased costs within the General
Fund support services some of which
are mentioned in this table and
includes ICT, HR and Organisational
Development, Finance and Health
and Safety. These costs are shared
between the General Fund and HRA,
so a proportion of the additional costs
have been charged to the HRA,
resulting in the variance from budget.

-

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
(171)

Waste
• A favourable variance for the Material
Recycling Facility (MRF) of £41k, an
increase of £10k since the previous
report. This has been transferred to
the waste earmarked reserve (current
balance £119k).
• Domestic waste – a favourable
variance of £41k, a reduction (£9k)
since the previous report.
• Garden Waste – an overall favourable
variance of £16k.
• Other items (net) – a favourable
variance of £11k.

(65)

(109)

(44)

Other items (net) – a favourable variance
of £108k.
This includes a favourable variance of £6k for
grants received in 2018/19 for Suffolk County
Lines (£5k) and Private Sector Housing
(£1k). It is recommended that the £6k be
transferred to the Government Grants
earmarked reserve at year end.

(21)

(108)

(87)

Elections
• A favourable variance of £98k, an
improvement of £64k since the
previous
report resulting from
reimbursement
from
Central
Government of election costs that
have previously been met by the
Council.

(34)

(82)

(48)

Page 28

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
(171)

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

(35)

(79)

(44)

Building Control
• There has been little change since the
previous report, a £9k improvement as
a result of other items (net).

(67)

(76)

(9)

Community Development Grants and
Contributions
• A favourable variance of £70k for
which a carry forward of £30k has
been
requested
to
support
commitments in 2019/20.

-

(70)

(70)

Elections cont’d
• Other items (net) – an adverse
variance of £16k.
£35k of the total favourable variance has
been transferred to a new reserve to support
the ad hoc cost of purchasing elections
related equipment in future years.
Sustainable Environment
• Income received from pre-application
advice has resulted in a favourable
variance of £17k. This was not
budgeted for in 2018/19 and has
been reflected in the budget for
2019/20.
• A positive outcome from an historic
enforcement issue (clearance of an
untidy site) has resulted in a
favourable variance of £43k.
• Legal expenses and contracted
services – a favourable variance of
£5k.
• Other items (net) – a favourable
variance of £14k.
£68k of the total favourable variance has
been transferred to the planning enforcement
earmarked reserve to support ongoing work
within the service.

Page 29

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Shared Legal Services
• There has been little change since the
previous report, a £7k decrease as a
result of other items (net).

(44)

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
(37)

Policy Strategy Health and Well-being
• A favourable variance of £19k, an
increase of £16k since the previous
report, which can be attributed to the
fact that the carry forward from
2017/18 (£35k) to support the
delivery of the Joint Leisure, Sport
and Physical Activity Strategy action
plan was not fully spent in 2018/19. A
further carry forward of £19k has
been requested.

(3)

(19)

(16)

Investment Income (net) - CCLA, UBS,
Schroeder and Funding Circle
• A net favourable variance of £9k, a
reduction of £18k since the previous
report. The majority of the change is
attributed to Funding Circle, an
impairment
charge
has
been
necessary due to an increase in
defaults and bad debts. As Funding
Circle is an investment where the
Council’s funds are lent to UK
businesses it is likely that the current
economic climate and Brexit has
contributed to struggling trading
conditions.

(27)

(9)

18

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
• A favourable variance of £4k, £16k
less than the previous report as a
result of capital spend for the year
being finalised.

(20)

(4)

16

PV Panels
• An adverse variance of £185k, an
increase of £52k since the previous
report. The majority of the change can
be attributed to lower than expected
Feed in Tariff (FiT) income (£33k) and
the cost of repairs / services being
greater than anticipated (£19k).

133

185

52

Page 30

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
7

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

ICT costs
• Skype costs as mentioned in the
previous report has resulted in an
adverse variance of £62k, an increase
of £4k.
• Other items that have contributed to
the overall adverse variance are;
Software Licences – Finance Capita
Hosted (£36k), BT Telephone Lines
(£46k) and a number of other smaller
items (£12k). The expenditure for
software licences has been identified
as ongoing and so the budget for
2019/20
has
been
adjusted
accordingly.
• An external review of the ICT Contract
towards the end of 2018/19, the aim
of which is to identify savings and to
ensure that the Council has a robust
and modern ICT programme going
forward
has
resulted
in
an
unbudgeted cost of £29k.

121

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
185

Street and Major Road Cleansing
• Grounds Maintenance Contract – an
adverse variance of £189k, an
increase of £74k since the last report.
The adverse variance is now in line
with the cost pressure identified as
part of the 2019/20 budget setting
process.
• Surplus income from the late receipt of
Government Grants (March 2019)
resulting in a favourable variance of
£40k. Pocket Parks (£14k) and Parks
Improvement (£26k).
• Other items (net) – an adverse
variance of £29k.

115

178

The commuted maintenance payment
earmarked reserve balance has been utilised
to support the £189k adverse variance on the
Grounds Maintenance contract, £10k of the
other items (net) variance and the £40k
income for Pocket Parks and Parks
Improvement has been transferred to the
Government Grants earmarked reserve.
Page 31

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

63

64

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Car Parks
• There has been little change since the
previous report, a nominal £4k
reduction as a result of other items
(net).

145

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
141

Borehamgate Rental Income
• An adverse variance of £97k, an
increase of £57k since the last report,
due to lower than expected income.
This is despite the inclusion of a
vacancy factor in the 2018/19 budget.
Currently records show a vacancy
factor of approximately 26% - 2 units
in Kings House and 4 retails units
within the Borehamgate Precinct.
• An adverse variance of £16k - monies
due to tenants in respect of overpaid
rents that must be repaid to the
management agent Carter Jonas.
• Other items (net) – an adverse
variance of £14k.

64

127

63

Transfers to / (from) reserves
• The net transfer from reserves is
£110k less than budgeted. This can
be attributed to contributions made to
reserves that were not anticipated
including Carry Forwards (£35k).
• An element within the £110k variance
is that the amount spent from the
Community Housing Fund to support
activity within the service was also
less than expected (£75k).

-

110

110

Corporate Subscriptions
• An adverse variance of £45k. As
reported previously, £20k for Suffolk
Office of Data and Analytics (SODA).
A conscious decision to subscribe to a
number of other bodies to give insight
to the Council has resulted in an
increase to the adverse variance
previously reported. These include
subscriptions for the Haven Gateway
Partnership, EMAP and the National
Fraud Initiative (NFI).

20

45

25

Page 32

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
(4)

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

HR and Organisational Development
• An adverse variance of £53k –
includes
contracted
services,
recruitment costs and professional
and legal expenses.
• Corporate Training - a favourable
variance of £18k for which a carry
forward request has been submitted.

-

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
35

Finance
• Payment cards - an adverse variance
of £12k, an increase of £5k since the
last report.
• Bank Charges – costs associated with
the banking merchant are higher than
budget resulting in an adverse
variance of £11k, an improvement of
£3k since the previous report.
• Other items (net) – an adverse
variance of £7k.

21

30

9

Land Charges
• An adverse variance of £33k - the land
charges team has seen a reduction in
the number of searches performed.
For those searches that have been
carried out, a number of these were
'no fee' personal searches.
• New Burdens grant income for
personal searches has resulted in a
favourable variance of £9k.

-

24

24

Democratic Services
• There
has
been
an
£18k
improvement since the previous
report. This follows a conscious effort
to reduce printing and postage costs.

41

23

(18)

Health and Safety
• An adverse variance of £18k, an
improvement of £9k since the
previous report. The change can be
attributed to lower than expected
costs associated with the Skyguard
lone working system.

27

18

(9)

Page 33

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
35

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Housing Solutions (Homelessness)
• Ringfenced grants due to the Council
in support of the Homelessness
Reduction Act 2017 legislation are
less than budgeted resulting in an
adverse variance of £9k, an
improvement of £23k since the last
report.
• An increase in the demand for B&B
services has resulted in an adverse
variance of £48k, an increase of £23k
since the previous report.
• Homeless prevention payments - an
adverse variance of £15k.
• Other items (net) – a favourable
variance of £10k.

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

58

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
18

25

12

(13)

(40)

The £62k adverse variance has been met
from the homelessness earmarked reserve.
Housing Solutions (other temporary
accommodation
• Surplus net income for rental income
and service charges for the provision
of homelessness in both the General
Fund (Old School House) and HRA
properties (Sandringham Court and
other temporary accommodation), has
resulted in a favourable variance of
£44k.
This has been transferred to a new temporary
accommodation reserve to support future
expenditure.
Economic Development
• In 2017/18, the Council received a
grant of £25k for growing the visitor
economy
through
Destination
Management
/
Marketing
Organisation (DMO) work, which was
transferred to an earmarked reserve
for spending in 2018/19. A little under
50% of this work has taken place
during the year, so a transfer from the
Government Grants reserve of just
£12k has been required to offset
expenditure incurred in 2018/19.
Page 34

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Development Management
• Planning income – a favourable
variance of £172k, an improvement of
£123k since the previous quarter. The
change can be attributed to higher
than expected applications including
fees from Brantham (£56k) and
Bentley (£13k).
• Consultants and Professional Fees –
an increase in the need to obtain
professional ecology and landscape
advice for planning applications has
resulted in an adverse variance of
£109k, a nominal reduction of £1k
since the last report.
• Appeal related costs has resulted in
an adverse variance of £84k, an
improvement of £7k since the
previous report.
• Other items (net) – a favourable
variance of £10k.

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

123

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse
11

(1,001)

(1,846)

(845)

(112)

The net adverse variance has been funded
from the Planning earmarked reserve.
Business Rates
•

•

•

2018/19 Baseline Business Rates netof Government tariff and levy has
resulted in a favourable variance of
£119k, an improvement of £47k since
the previous report.
Business Rates Pooling Benefit – a
pooling benefit of £277k was
achieved, a favourable variance of
£71k.
The impact of the Business Rates
Pilot is an additional benefit to the
Council over and above the
earmarked growth in the form of S31
grants of £1.656m, an improvement of
£799k, since the last report. The
majority of S31 grant (£1.207m) is
one-off for 2018/19.

Page 35

Explanation

December 2018
Amount (£’000)
(Favourable) /
Adverse

Outturn
Amount
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

Movement
(£’000)
(Favourable)
/ Adverse

(829)

(2,281)

(1,452)

Business Rates cont’d
The favourable variance from the pilot can be
attributed to;
• the threshold for small Business
Rates relief
being lowered,
changes to the multiplier cap,
growth decline and the percentage
for business rates retention
increasing from 40% to 80%
(£1.454m).
• an increase in Rural Rate Relief
(£59k).
• receipt of additional discretionary
grants (£143k).
As referred to in section 3.2(b) of this report,
it is recommended that the overall favourable
variance of £1.846m be transferred to the
Business Rates Equalisation reserve.
Total favourable variance

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
5.5

CIL income received by the Council for the year ending 31st March 2019 is £1.895m
(£1.423m at the last report). Following any necessary expenditure and adjustments
for the 5% administration charge, the balance is transferred to the earmarked reserve
for spend on infrastructure in accordance with the Regulation 123 list in 2019/20 and
beyond.

Earmarked Reserves
5.6

Earmarked reserve balances total £9.6m as at 1 April 2019. Appendix C outlines the
specific earmarked reserve movements detailed in paragraphs 5.7 and 5.8 as well as
the Transformation Fund movements detailed in section 5.9.

5.7

The overall net favourable variance of £2.281m means that the Council has been
able to supplement the Business Rates Equalisation reserve by £1.846m, the
Transformation Fund by £293k and has made the following contributions to
earmarked reserves;- £159k to Joint Local Plan, £68k to Planning Enforcement, £46k
to Government Grants, £44k to Temporary Accommodation, £41k to Waste, £35k to
Elections Equipment and £34k to Strategic Planning. A small number of transfers
from reserves has also been required, £199k Commuted Maintenance Payments,
£62k Homelessness, £12k Government Grants and £11k Planning (Legal).

Page 36

5.8

Members should note that the overall outturn position includes a small number of
carry forward requests totalling £75k and are asked to approve these as per the
recommendation in section 3.3 of the report.
(£’000)

Carry Forward Requests
Community Development – grant aid committed, but not yet spent

30

Corporate training – to support employee development through postentry training.

18

Sports and Leisure – to support a range of projects that will deliver
Leisure, Sport and Physical Activity Strategy priorities including the
commissioned Active Wellbeing programme and a contribution to
salary costs for the temporary Strategic Leisure Advisor post

17

Other carry forward items (less than £10k)

10

Total

75

Transformation Fund
5.9

The table below provides a high-level summary of the movement in the
Transformation Fund during 2018/19. A more detailed breakdown is shown in
Appendix B.
BABERGH

£'000

Balance at 31st March 2018

653

New Homes Bonus Allocation *
Business Rates Grant *
2018/19 surplus
Total contributions 2018/19
Revised Balance Available

866
797
293
1,956
2,609

LESS;
New Homes Bonus to balance the budget *
Transformation Fund to balance the budget *
Business Rates Grant to balance the budget *
Actual spend - April to March 2019
Actual Spend - Delivery Plan projects (Staffing) *

(866)
(329)
(797)
(133)
(27)

Balance at 31st March 2019

457

* identified in 2018/19 budget
Current future commitments

Page 37

(122)

Business Rates Retention Pilot
5.10

The 8 local authorities in Suffolk collaborated in 2017 to submit a bid to become a
pilot area for the retention of 100% Business Rates growth in 2018/19. The bid was
successful, along with 9 other areas across the country, and was for 2018/19 only. A
list of schemes developed by officers to support growth initiatives and submitted to
SCC for consideration and sign-off was submitted to Cabinet on 11 October 2018
(BCa/18/39). See Appendix A for further details and spend as at 31 March 2019.

Capital
5.11 Use of capital and one-off funds is critical and needs to be linked into our future
delivery plans.
5.12 With complex capital schemes it is difficult to accurately assess the level of payments
that will be made during the financial year.
5.13

Capital expenditure for 2018/19 totals £23.8m, against a revised programme
(including carry forwards) of £23.1m as set out in Appendix D.
£’000
Revised Capital Programme
Actual expenditure
Contractual commitments as at 31 March 2019
(paragraph 5.15)
Carry forward requests (paragraph 5.16)
Total expenditure and carry forward requests
Net capital programme adverse variance

23,084
15,609
296
7,850
23,755
671

5.14 The main variances that contribute to the £671k adverse position are set out below:
•

CIFCO – Following approval by Full Council in April 2017 to set up a holding
company, activity to invest the £25m for the Capital Investment began with its
first purchase in December 2017. During 2017/18, £12.3m of the £25m was
spent, with a further £13.7m invested during 2018/19. As part of the 2017/18
Capital Investment Company Business Trading and Performance Report
(presented to Full Council in July 2018) , the Holding Company Board
requested from the Council (via its holding company shareholders) a maximum
10% (£2.5m) contingency against the full investment of £25m previously
approved to ensure that it makes its final acquisition in line with the business
plan criteria. This was after the budget was set, hence the adverse variance of
£1.055m.

•

Grants for Empty Homes – the Council is pro-active in working with
homeowners to bring empty homes back into use including offering grants to
assist with repairs. Despite this there has been a reticence by homeowners to
participate in the scheme during 2018/19 which has resulted in an underspend
of £236k.

Page 38

•

ICT costs – following a carry forward request to support a number of projects
in 2019/20 including a full capital refresh, enabling customer services and data
capture, there remains a favourable variance of £99k.

•

Community Grants – historically, any unspent grant money has been carried
forward for use in future years. Following a review of the grants allocation
process, only expenditure that is genuinely committed will be carried forward
for use in 2019/20 resulting in a favourable variance of £92k.

•

Other items (net) – an adverse variance of £43k.

5.15 Contractual commitments are detailed in the table below. These funds were
committed in 2018/19 and will be spent in 2019/20. The resources to fund these
commitments will also be transferred to 2019/20.
Contractual Commitments as at 31 March 2019

5.16

(£’000)

Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants
Community Development Grants

166
130

Total

296

The following items are schemes where no contractual commitment yet exists, but
they represent either plans or aspirations for investment, for which carry forward to
the 2019/20 capital programme is requested, again with the requisite capital
resources to fund this. It is proposed that these capital resources are carried forward
into 2019/20 and reviewed as part of the Joint Strategic Plan to assess whether the
original requirement still exists, how it contributes to the strategic priorities and hence
whether the resource can be redirected or removed.
Carry Forward Requests as at 31 March 2019

(£’000)

Land Assembly, property acquisition and regeneration opportunities
Leisure Centres
Grants - Affordable Housing
ICT
Play Equipment
Planned Maintenance – Corporate Buildings

6,365
837
400
160
50
38

Total

7,850

6.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

6.1

Ensuring that the Councils make best use of their resources is what underpins the
ability to achieve the priorities set out in the Joint Strategic Plan. Specific links are to
Financially Sustainable Councils, Managing our Corporate Assets Effectively, and
Property Investment to Generate Income.

Page 39

7.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

These are detailed in the report.

8.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are no specific legal implications.

9.

RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1

This report is closely linked with risk number 5d of the Council’s Significant Risk
Register – If we do not understand our financial position and respond in a timely and
effective way, then we will be unable to deliver the entirety of the Joint Strategic Plan.
Other key risks are set out below:
Risk Description

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation Measures

If the forecast
savings and
efficiencies are not
delivered, then it will
have a detrimental
impact on the
resources available
to deliver services
and the strategic
priorities

3 - Probable

2 - Noticeable

Monitored throughout the
year by Finance Teams,
Corporate Managers and
Assistant Directors

If economic
conditions and other
external factors
change for the
worse then it could
have an adverse
effect on the
Councils financial
position

3 - Probable

2 - Noticeable

Focus is on monitoring key
income and expenditure
streams – but Government
changes and economic
conditions continue to affect
costs and income for a
number of services

If the Capital
3 - Probable
Programme delivery
is not on target, then
the strategic
priorities will not be
delivered as
anticipated

2 - Noticeable

Regular monitoring by key
officers

10.

CONSULTATIONS

10.1

Consultations have taken place with Assistant Directors, Corporate Managers and
other Budget Managers as appropriate.

Page 40

11.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

11.1

An equality analysis has not been completed because there is no action to be taken
on service delivery as a result of this report.

12.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1

There are no specific environmental implications.

13.

APPENDICES
Title

14.

Location

APPENDIX A – Business Rates Retention Pilot

Attached

APPENDIX B – Transformation Fund

Attached

APPENDIX C – Earmarked Reserves

Attached

APPENDIX D – Capital Programme

Attached

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
20 February 2018 Budget Report 2018/19 – BC/17/29
9 August 2018 Quarter 1 General Fund Financial Monitoring 2018/19 – BCa/18/22
5 November 2018 General Fund Financial Monitoring 2018/19 (April to August 2018)
– BCa/18/43
7 March 2019 General Fund Financial Monitoring 2018/19 (April to December 2018)
– BCa/18/71

Page 41

Appendix A
BABERGH – BUSINESS RATES PILOT

1
2
3
4
5
6

Scheme Description
Belle Vue, Hamilton Road and wider Sudbury Town
Centre Development
Angel Court Housing Development
Delphi Site / Newton Road (Sudbury) / South Suffolk
Business Area
St Peters Church Regeneration
Establishment of a Central Suffolk Chamber of
Commerce
Inclusive Growth Engagement Officer
Unallocated
Total

Page 42

BRR
Funding
£'000

Actual
Spend
£'000

500

46

200

-

200

20

100

-

30

30

60
280

-

1,370

96

Appendix B
Transformation Fund
Commitments
Project

Responsible
Officer

Date
of
Approval

Budget

Cumulative spend to
2017/18

Variance
Total
- favourable
Spend
/ + adverse

Apr 18 - Mar 19

BDC

MSDC

BDC

MSDC

BDC

MSDC

1,739

1,739

CONTINUING PROJECTS
Assets & Investments

Page 43

Strategic Leisure Review - comprehensive condition survey of all 4 leisure facilities to understand future costs
requirements.
Additional Resources required for;
Phase 1 - will be informed by the evidence from the strategic review of our built sports facilities and playing pitches
and will allow us to undertake a joint leisure strategy and investment plan for both Councils.
1
Chris Fry
Phase 2 - to undertake an independent review of the current contractual arrangements (with SLM and SSL) and
deliver future delivery options in line with the strategy. This will involve a review of all existing legal and contractual
documentation, leases and management agreements, options appraisal, and our capital investment strategy for
these assets and for making recommendations
Funding to pay for two Leisure Industry specialists ( Project Manager for phase 1, external consultant for phase 2)
2

Capital Investment Strategy (CIS) – external professional advisers to support the development of the Capital
Emily Atack
Investment Strategy, as well as the associated governance framework and delivery model to support implementation
Business Growth

May-16

186,100

58,500

57,910

33,106

33,106

182,622

-3,478

Aug-16

136,285

88,658

88,658

147

147

177,610

41,325

4,876

0

30,100

-13,900

13,900

4,218

3

To support the installation of one or more Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points - Sudbury. Babergh only - Capital James
Buckingham

Mar-17

44,000

25,225

4

Hadleigh Market - consultancy costs to test whether it is possible to develop and grow Hadleigh Market into a
successful town market. BDC Only

Lee Carvell

Apr-16

22,000

11,428

0

6,354

0

17,782

-4,218

5

Additional Economic Development capacity to support a number of initiatives aimed at increasing economic growth
Lee Carvell
e.g. key sites, market towns and engaging businesses - 18 month extension

Feb-17

427,770

143,395

143,301

26,972

26,972

340,640

-87,130

Lee Carvell

May-17

8,500

0

0

0

0

0

-8,500

Lee Carvell

Jun-18

350,000

0

0

0

6,937

6,937

-343,063

David Clarke

Apr-18

35,000

0

0

23,062

23,063

46,125

11,125

Town Visioning Engagement Project - the Open For Business Team will lead the work with local communities to
deliver a Vision that can be used to inform later policy-making and decisions that affect the towns. The Vision is
6 intended to establish a high-level aspiration for the towns, setting out the community’s key desires and wishes for
the town they would like to live in and for businesses to operate from. This is a new way for the communities to be
involved in Strategic Planning of the towns (the innovation).
7 Shop front & access improvement grants (MSDC only)
Community Capacity Building
8 New engagement post within Communities to support the development of key sites

Remaining budget
no longer required

4,250

4,250

343,063

Appendix B
Transformation Fund
Commitments
Project

Responsible
Officer

Date
of
Approval

Budget

Cumulative spend to
2017/18

Variance
Total
- favourable
Spend
/ + adverse

Apr 18 - Mar 19

BDC

MSDC

BDC

MSDC

BDC

MSDC

CONTINUING PROJECTS
Efficient Organisation
To extend the current room rental agreement with The Mix in Stowmarket from it’s current end date of 31 March
2017 to match the final end of contract date of 31 December 2017. This will enable the delivery of the current Mygo
Lee Carvell
9
contract to continue from the current location ensuring continuity for service users to the end of the project lifetime.
MSDC only
Efficient Organisation
J Buckingham
10 LED replacement for streetlights/carpark lights, funding of the capital expenditure to install LED fittings. (Capital)

11

Additional resources to enable Senior Planning Officer level to be released to support delivery of the planning
transformation programme

Apr-17

40,000

0

0

0

40,000

40,000

Dec-16

88,750

0

0

55,409

31,357

86,765

-1,985

Phil Isbell

Oct-16

205,000

47,509

47,551

0

0

95,061

-109,939

54,970

54,970

Robert Hobbs

Jan-15

475,000

194,159

132,050

0

0

326,209

-148,791

43,341

105,450

Robert Hobbs

Jun-16

98,000

40,744

39,339

10,438

10,438

100,960

2,960

16,643

185,271

0

49,340

251,254

251,254

3,350
3,350
6,190
6,190
1,759,008 1,759,008
160,364 1,989,908 3,470,612
0
0
160,364 1,989,908 3,470,612

-11,650
-3,810
275,008
-154,793

Housing Delivery/Business Growth

Page 44

12

Commissioning of external specialist feasibility / viability work on key sites as required, to be able to move them
forward for approval and development to support economic and housing growth
Housing Delivery/Business Growth

13

Additional staffing capacity to migrate historic and future developer contribution information to the new ICT system
supporting the Community Infrastructure Levy
General Transformation - other projects

14 - Other

Melissa Evans

15 Trees for Life (MSDC only)
16 FISONs Building - dangerous structure. Cost of survey (MSDC only)
17 Strategic Purchase - Aldi, Stowmarket (MSDC only)
CONTINUING PROJECTS SUB-TOTAL
COMPLETED PROJECTS SUB-TOTAL

Melissa Evans
Paul Hughes

0
0
15,000
0
0
10,000
1,484,000
694,080
626,260
3,625,405
600,359 2,591,416
3,267,638
6,893,043 1,226,619 3,285,497

0
0

-154,793 122,418

11,650
3,810

524,932

Appendix C
General Fund Earmarked Reserves
Balance
01 April 2018

Transfers
Out

Transfers
In

Balance
31 March 2019

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

(224)
(653)
(788)
(339)
(248)
(259)
(232)
(50)
(20)
(20)
(123)
(119)
(55)

224
2,152
943
96
53

(75)
(1,956)
(1,846)
(1,370)
(34)
(159)
(46)

(75)
(457)
(1,691)
(1,274)
(320)
(159)
(282)
(197)
(44)
(627)
(70)
(35)
(88)
(20)
(112)
(160)
(55)

(3,129)

3,751

(6,289)

(5,667)

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

(2,496)

228

(1,693)

(3,960)

TOTAL GENERAL FUND

(5,625)

3,979

(7,981)

(9,628)

Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves

Page 45

General Fund
Carry Forwards
Transformation Fund
Business Rates Equalisation Reserve
Business Rates Retention Pilot
Strategic Planning
Joint Local Plan
Government Grants
Homelessness
Temporary Accommodation
Commuted Maintenance Payments
Elections Fund
Elections Equipment
Planning Enforcement
Growth & Sustainable Planning
Planning (Legal)
Waste
Revocation of personal search fees
Sub-total General Fund (exc CIL)

12
62
199

(44)
(595)
(20)
(35)
(68)

11
(41)

Note; includes the transfers to the Business Rates Equalisation Reserve (£1.846m) and Transformation Fund (£293k) shown in
section 3.2 (b).

Appendix D
BABERGH
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19
GENERAL FUND
Supported Living
Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant
Discretionary Housing Grants
Empty Homes Grant
Total Supported Living
Planning for Growth
Grants for Affordable Housing
Total Planning for Growth
Environment and Projects
Replacement Refuse Freighters - Joint Scheme
Recycling Bins
LED Streetlights
Electric Vehicle Charging Points
Total Environment and Projects
Communities and Public Access
Community Development Grants
Play Equipment
Planned Maintenance / Enhancements - Car Parks
Open Spaces (funded by s106)
Total Community Services
Leisure Contracts
Total Leisure Contracts
Capital Projects
Planned Maint / Enhancements - Other Corp Buildings
Total Capital Projects
Investment and Commercial Delivery
Land assembly, property acquisition and regeneration opportunities
Total Investment and Commercial Delivery
Corporate Resources
ICT - Hardware / Software costs
Total Corporate Resources
CIFCO
Total General Fund Capital Spend

Variance
Full Year
Uncommitted
after Carry
Actual
Contractual
Forecast LESS
Carry
Forwards
Spend
Commitments
Budget
Forwards (favourable)/
adverse
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

Original
Budget

Carry
Forwards

Current
Budget

£'000

£'000

£'000

409
100
100
609

13
199
212

422
100
299
821

256
55
63
374

(166)
(45)
(236)
(447)

-

400
400

400
400

-

(400)
(400)

185
65

60
(15)
44

245
50
44

250

89

339

236
49
55
5
346

(9)
(1)
11
5
7

117
50
36

175
100

292
150
36

203

275

478

70
100
16
101
287

(222)
(50)
(20)
101
(191)

1,412

576

(837)

1,412

166

166

-

-

400
400

-

-

130
50

130

50

(45)
(236)
(281)

-

(9)
(1)
11
5
7

(92)
(0)
(20)
101
(11)

837

-

48
48

-

48
48

10
10

(38)
(38)

-

38
38

-

2,973
2,973

3,595
3,595

6,568
6,568

203
203

(6,365)
(6,365)

-

6,365
6,365

-

200
200

150
150

350
350

91
91

(259)
(259)

-

160
160

-

12,667

12,667

13,722

1,055

5,696

17,389

23,084

15,609

(7,475)

Page 46

(99)
(99)
1,055

296

7,850

671

Agenda Item 9
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL

BCa/19/3

TO:

Cabinet

REPORT NUMBER:

FROM:

Cabinet Member for Finance

DATE OF MEETING: 13 June 2019

OFFICERS:

Gavin Fisk, Assistant
Director, Housing
Tricia Anderson, HRA
Accountant

KEY DECISION REF NO. CAB122

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2018/19
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report summarises the 2018/19 financial outturn for the Housing Revenue
Account and Capital Programme.

1.2

This is subject to the external auditors’ report on the Statement of Accounts for the
year, which will be presented to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee later in
the year once the audit is complete.

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

The option that has been considered is:
a) To recommend the carry forward of £6.169m HRA Capital costs.

3.

Recommendations

3.1

That the 2018/19 financial outturn as set out in this report be noted.

3.2

That the transfer of £491k, being the HRA surplus for the year (£247k more than
planned) per paragraph 5.5, to the Strategic Priorities Reserves be noted.

3.3

That the HRA Capital carry-forward requests referred to in paragraph 5.14 of this
report totalling £6.169m be approved.

REASON FOR DECISION
To ensure that Members are kept informed of the outturn position for both
Housing Revenue and Capital and to approve the carry forward requests.
4.

KEY INFORMATION
Strategic Context

4.1

In February 2018 Babergh District Council approved the Joint Medium-Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS). This confirms the direction of travel, in that the Council
has been developing a new business model to respond to the financial challenges.
Page1 47

4.2

The financial position of the HRA for 2018/19 should be viewed in the context of the
updated 30-year business plan. The favourable position on both revenue and
capital for the HRA in 2018/19 is as a result of decisions taken during the year to
assist with the 30-year position. The business plan, made possible by the change
in funding for HRAs in April 2012, sets out the aspiration of the Council to increase
the social housing stock by either buying existing dwellings or building new ones.

4.3

The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 stipulated that Council rents for 2016/17
and the following three years would need to be reduced by 1% per annum. The
previously agreed rent strategy was based on applying the maximum level of rent
increase to support the business plan, whilst keeping our average rent level within
the limit rent. The overall impact of the change is substantial; however, this will be
reduced following the announcement by the Government that we can increase rent
by a maximum of CPI + 1% for five years from 2020/21.

4.4

With the Council’s housing stock at 3,425 homes there will always be unplanned
events that affect the level of income and expenditure in any one financial year.

5.

2018/19 Outturn Position

5.1

Based upon financial performance and information from April to March and
discussions with budget managers, key variations on expenditure and income
compared to budget have been identified.

5.2

The report covers:

5.3

5.4

•

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Revenue Budget

•

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Capital programme

Budget monitoring is a key tool and indicator on the delivery of the council’s plans
and priorities for the year. There will, of course, always be reasons why there are
variances such as:
•

Economic conditions and those services that are affected by demand

•

Base budgets being over or understated (a number were identified in the
2017/18 financial outturn report to Members)

•

Uncertainties relating to funding or other changes that were not known at the
time the budget was approved.

Taking each area in turn, the position on key aspects of the 2018/19 budget is
summarised below:

Revenue
5.5

The original budget set for the HRA for 2018/19 showed a surplus of £244k, which
would be transferred to reserves to achieve a balanced budget position. The final
figure for 2018/19 is a surplus of £491k, resulting in a net favourable variance of
£247k for the year representing an increase in resources available for investment.

5.6

The outturn compared to budget is shown in the table below.

Page
2 48

Budget
YTD

Actual
YTD

£'000
(16,656)
1,736
968
2,414
947
2,721
2,847
500

£'000
(16,557)
2,404
1,215
2,420
970
3,530
2,831
500

Variance
(Favourable) /
Adverse
£'000
99
668
247
6
23
809
(16)
0

4,124

2,196

(1,928)

155

0

(155)

(244)

(491)

(247)

Reserves
Balance at 1 April 2019
(Surplus) for year (as above)
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
Balance at 31 March 2019

(12,655)
(244)
0
(12,899)

(12,655)
(491)
(20)
(13,166)

0
(247)
(20)
(267)

Working Balance 31 March 2019
Strategic Priorities Reserve 31 March 2019
"Big 20" Reserve
“Building Council Homes Programme” Reserve

(1,000)
(11,799)
(100)
0

(1,000)
(12,046
(100)
(20)

0
(247)
0
(20)

Income
Repairs and Maintenance
Property Services
Housing Management
Sheltered Housing
Depreciation and impairment
Capital Financing Costs
Debt Repayment
Net transfers (to)/from reserves
contributions to Capital
Bad Debt Provision

inc

revenue

(Surplus) for Year

5.7

The table below explains the key items included in the net favourable variance of
£247k.
December
Outturn
Movement
2018
Amount
(£'000)
(£'000)
(£'000)
(Favourable)
(Favourable) (Favourable)
/Adverse
/Adverse
/Adverse

Explanation

Rental Income and Service Charges
• Rental Income –higher than anticipated voids
has led to an adverse variance of £29k
(0.18%). This is a favourable movement of
£15k since the last report.
• A review of the Homeless rents has identified
£42k of rental income to be moved to the
General Fund at year end leading to a further
adverse variance. This is the same as reported
in the last report.
• Garage Rents are showing an adverse
variance of £24k for the year, an adverse
movement of £3k since the last report. This is
due to higher than anticipated voids.
Page3 49

105

99

(6)

December
Outturn
Movement
2018
Amount
(£'000)
(£'000)
(£'000)
(Favourable)
(Favourable) (Favourable)
/Adverse
/Adverse
/Adverse

Explanation

Rental Income and Service Charges cont’d
• Interest received shows a favourable variance
of £9k for the year due to higher than
anticipated interest rates.
• Other minor adverse variances total £13k, an
adverse movement of £15k since the last
report.
Repairs and Maintenance
The net adverse variance can mainly be
attributed to the following;
• Voids Repairs - a favourable variance of £85k
for the year, an adverse movement of £40k
since the last report. This was mainly due to
the reallocation of costs between revenue and
capital.
• Responsive Repairs - an adverse variance of
£147k for the year mainly due to an increase
in material costs and the number of repairs
being carried out. This is a favourable
movement of £22k since the last report due to
less work being carried out by BMBS than
anticipated as it is difficult to predict how
many repairs will be required.
• BMBS is showing an adverse variance of
£606k for the year, an adverse movement of
£94k from the last report, which has been
partially offset by the £22k reduction in
responsive repairs. This is mainly due to
higher than expected external contractor work
being carried out on the voids project to
reduce the number of days and timing
differences on jobs being carried out and
recharged to the relevant service area.

556

668

112

247

73

Note: At the time of writing, the overall number of
voids days has reduced by 33 days, from 54 in
September 2017 to 21 days in March 2019.
Property Services
• Planned Maintenance - heating - an adverse
variance of £138k for the year on the Whole
House Servicing contract with Blueflame. This
is an adverse movement of £38k from the last
report mainly due to an increase in material
costs and work carried out to maintain our
properties.
Page
4 50

174

December
Outturn
Movement
2018
Amount
(£'000)
(£'000)
(£'000)
(Favourable)
(Favourable) (Favourable)
/Adverse
/Adverse
/Adverse

Explanation

Property Services cont’d
• Planned Maintenance – external painting - an
adverse variance of £27k for the year and
adverse movement since the last report. This
is due to higher than anticipated works being
carried out.
• Asbestos Surveys - an adverse variance of
£93k for the year. This is an adverse
movement of £13k since the last report and
mainly due to an increase in remedial works,
tenant friendly asbestos reports and asbestos
surveys on planned works. We have also
reallocated costs from capital for asbestos
surveys that did not result in capital work
being required.
• Other minor favourable variances total £11k in
the year, a favourable movement of £5k since
the last report.
Housing Management
• Following advice from the Auditors all
employee costs and Agency Fees relating to
the Capita System Support Team are now
being treated as revenue costs, rather than
capital as in previous years. This has led to an
adverse variance of £134k, the same as
reported in the last report.
• Employee Costs - a favourable variance of
£73k, has been offset by an adverse variance
of £52k on Agency fees to give an overall
favourable variance of £21k for the year. This
is an adverse movement of £11k since the
last report.
• Pension Fund Contribution – a favourable
variance of £41k for the year and movement
since the last report.
• Professional and Consultancy Fees - a
favourable variance of £40k following the
recruitment of permanent staff to vacant
posts. This is a £5k adverse movement from
the last report.
• Following a decision to reduce the reserves
carried forward there is a favourable variance
of £49k, a £19k favourable movement from
the last report.

Page5 51

32

6

(26)

December
Outturn
Movement
2018
Amount
(£'000)
(£'000)
(£'000)
(Favourable)
(Favourable) (Favourable)
/Adverse
/Adverse
/Adverse

Explanation

Housing Management cont’d
•

Overheads - £56k higher than Budget for the
year, a £29k adverse movement since the last
report. This is mainly due to higher than
anticipated ICT costs and Insurance
Premiums.
• Surplus income from the late receipt of a
Building Council Homes Programme Grant
(BCHP) has led to a favourable variance of
£20k. This has been transferred to the BCHP
earmarked reserve.
• Other minor favourable variances total £13k,
an adverse movement of £9k from the last
report.
Sheltered Housing
• Employee costs – a favourable variance of
£22k is predicted for the year, an adverse
movement of £18k since the last report. This
is mainly due to an increase in Out of Hours
agency staff being required to ensure tenants
safety at our very sheltered schemes following
the fire at Sydney Brown Court.
• Repairs and maintenance – an adverse
variance of £24k for the year and adverse
movement of £16k from the last report due to
higher than anticipated legionella testing on
Elizabeth Court.
• Overheads are showing a £27k adverse
variance for the year and adverse movement
since the last report. This is mainly due to
higher than anticipated ICT costs and
Insurance Premiums.
• Other minor favourable variances total £6k for
the year, an adverse movement of £5k.
Depreciation
• Depreciation charged has resulted in an
adverse variance of £809k for the year, an
adverse movement of £295k since the last
report. This is mainly due to the Budget being
underestimated, which has been amended for
2019/20. The opposite effect of this will be to
increase the funds available in the Major
Repairs Reserve.
Page
6 52

(43)

23

66

514

809

295

December
Outturn
Movement
2018
Amount
(£'000)
(£'000)
(£'000)
(Favourable)
(Favourable) (Favourable)
/Adverse
/Adverse
/Adverse

Explanation

Capital Financing Costs
• Lower than anticipated interest charged on
loans has resulted in a favourable variance of
£16k for the year.
Net transfers (to)/from Reserves including
Revenue Contribution to Capital (RCCO)
• RCCO - The reduction in the funding required
from revenue amounts to £1,948k, a
favourable movement of £381k from the last
report. This is due to the Capital underspend
of £599k per note 5.11 and an increase in
funding of £1,349k from the Major Repairs
reserve, as mentioned in Depreciation, and
capital receipts.
• Transfers to Earmarked Reserves – an
adverse movement of £20k following the
transfer of funds to the BCHP reserve
mentioned above under Housing
Management.
Bad Debt Provision
• The implementation of Universal Credit has
not had the impact on Bad Debts anticipated
when setting the 2018/19 Budget. This,
together with a 92% recovery of outstanding
arrears, has led to no Bad Debt Provision
being required for the year, resulting in a
favourable variance of £155k for the year, a
£85k favourable movement from the last
report.
TOTAL ADVERSE/(FAVOURABLE) VARIANCE
5.8

0

(16)

(16)

(1,567)

(1,928)

(361)

(70)

(155)

(85)

(299)

(247)

52

The net position means that the total HRA balances as at 31 March 2019 amount to
£13.166m. This includes a minimum working balance of £1m, £12.046m in the
Strategic Priorities Reserve, £20k in the BCHP earmarked reserve and £100k in the
‘Big 20’ earmarked reserve.

Capital
5.9

A zero-based approach was adopted for the preparation of the capital programme
for 2018/19 to 2022/23, to ensure that resources are aimed at delivering the
Council’s strategic priorities.

5.10 With complex capital schemes it is difficult to accurately assess the level of
payments that will be made during the financial year. The Council continues to
embark on new projects e.g. building new homes, where it is difficult to accurately
predict at the planning stage how payments will fall.
Page7 53

5.11

The level of capital investment undertaken during 2018/19 amounted to £5.601m.
Further details are shown in Appendix A. The outturn shows a net favourable
variance of £599k (after carry forward requests) as summarised in the table below
and is described further in paragraph 5.12.
£’000
13,994

Capital Programme
Actual expenditure
Contractual commitments as at 31 March 2019
(see paragraph 5.13 (below)
Carry forward requests (see paragraph 5.14 below)
Total expenditure, commitments and carry- forward requests
Net capital programme favourable variance

5,601
1,625
6,169
13,395
599

5.12 The favourable variance of £599k can be attributed to a number of items as follows;
•

Planned maintenance - a favourable variance of £73k due to less work being
carried out than anticipated. This is an adverse movement of £669k since the
last report and is mainly due to a capital programme of fire prevention works
being identified as required, and an increased cost when conducting
Electrical works due to changes in standards.
A 10-year capital programme was not available in 2018/19 however,
following the appointment of two stock condition surveyors in March 2019, an
informed programme of capital works will be developed in 2019/20.
•

ICT and total mobile - £344k favourable variance due to salaries and
asbestos surveys being transferred to revenue and savings on consultancy
fees as a result of completing tasks in house combined with a reduction in
the number of consultancy days needed from Capita on the Open Housing
system. This is a favourable movement of £65k from the last report.

•

Environmental Improvements – a favourable variance of £19k due to less
work being carried out than anticipated.
•

Disabled adaptions to council dwellings – a small favourable variance of £1k.

•

New build and Acquisitions – a favourable variance of £162k. This is a
reduction of £3.1m since the last report following the carry forward of funds to
be utilised against developments that will be completed in 2019/20

5.13 Contractual commitments are detailed in the table below. These funds were
committed in 2018/19 and will be spent in 2019/20. Resources to finance the
capital expenditure e.g. capital receipts will also transfer from 2018/19 into 2019/20.

Page
8 54

Contractual Commitments as at 31 March
2019
Planned maintenance
Disabled adaptions to council dwellings
New Build programme including acquisitions
Total

(£’000)
166
2
1,457
1,625

5.14 The remainder represents plans or aspirations for investment, for which a carry
forward to 2019/20 is requested along with the appropriate capital resources to fund
this. It is proposed that the capital resources are carried forward into 2019/20 and
reviewed as part of the Joint Strategic Plan to assess whether it meets the
objectives to build new homes and make the best use of our existing assets.
Carry forwards as at 31 March 2019
New Build programme including acquisitions
Planned maintenance
Environmental Improvements
Horticulture and Play equipment
Disabled adaptions to council dwellings
Total

(£’000)
3,325
2,712
29
23
80
6,169

6.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

6.1

Ensuring that the Councils make best use of their resources is what underpins the
ability to achieve the priorities set out in the Joint Strategic Plan. Specific links are to
financially sustainable Councils, managing our housing assets effectively, and
property investment to generate income.

7.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

These are detailed in the report.

8.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are no specific legal implications.

9.

Risk Management

9.1

This report is closely linked with risk number 5d of the Council’s Significant Risk
Register – If we do not understand our financial position and respond in a timely
and effective way, then we will be unable to deliver the entirety of the Joint Strategic
Plan. Other key risks are set out below:

Page9 55

Risk Description

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation Measures

If we do not consider the ongoing
impacts of the Welfare and
Funding Reforms, then it could
lead to unpreparedness for
further changes. This links to the
Council’s Significant Business
Risks no. 5h.
If there are increases in inflation
and other variables, then Council
Housing self-financing could
result in a greater risk to
investment and service delivery
plans.
If we fail to spend retained Right
to Buy receipts within 3-year
period, then it will lead to
requirement to repay to
Government with an additional
4% interest.
If we borrow too much to fund
New Homes, we will not be able
to pay the loan interest.

Unlikely - 2

Bad – 3

Unlikely - 2

Noticeable – 2

Unlikely - 2

Bad - 3

Ensure adequate bad debt
provision and that the Income
Management Strategy seeks to
mitigate the impact of the
changes on residents, the
Council’s income streams and
budgets.
Inflation and interest rate
assumptions have been
modelled in the HRA business
plan. Capital receipts and
capital programme funding
reviewed.
Provision has been made in the
updated HRA Investment
Strategy to enable match
funding and spend of RTB
receipts.

Unlikely - 2

Bad – 3

Brexit could have an impact on
interest rates/inflation/house
prices and demand/jobs

Probable
3

If Capital data is inaccurate it
could lead to problems with
treasury management debt and
cashflows.

Unlikely - 2

10.

- Bad – 3

Bad – 3

Follow the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA)
Prudential Code which states
Capital investment plans must
be affordable, prudent and
sustainable.
Understanding and acting on
intelligence from Local
Government Associations
(LGA), CIPFA.
Work closely with treasury
management when setting
capital budgets and how this
will be financed. Monitor the
capital spend quarterly and
raise any changes with treasury
management.

CONSULTATIONS

10.1 Consultations have taken place with Assistant Directors, Corporate Managers and
other Budget Managers as appropriate.
11.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

11.1 An equality analysis has not been completed because there is no action to be taken
on service delivery as a result of this report.
12.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1

There are no specific environmental implications.
Page
10 56

13

14

Appendices
Title

Location

APPENDIX A – HRA Capital Programme

Attached

Background Documents
20 February 2018 Budget Report 2018/19 – BC/17/29
9 August 2018 Housing Revenue Account Financial Monitoring 2018/19 – Quarter
One BCa/18/23
8 November 2018 Housing Revenue Account Financial Monitoring 201819 – April to
August 2018 BCa/18/44
7 March 2019 Housing Revenue Account Financial Monitoring 2018/19 – April to
December 2018 – BCa/18/72

Page
1157

APPENDIX A
CAPITAL PROGRAMME
HRA

BABERGH
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19

Original
Budget

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

£'000

Revised
Budget incl
Carry
Forwards
£'000

Actual
Spend
Apr - Mar
£'000

Variance Uncommited
revised
Contractual
Carry
budget LESS Commitments
Forwards
actual spend
£'000
£'000
£'000

Full Year
Forecast
LESS Budget
£'000

Page 58

Housing Maintenance
Planned maintenance
ICT Projects
Environmental Improvements
Disabled adaptions to council dwellings
Horticulture and play equipment

4,587
300
50
200
23

6,466
359
50
258
23

3,515
16
2
175
0

(2,951)
(344)
(48)
(83)
(23)

166
0
0
2
0

2,712
0
29
80
23

(73)
(344)
(19)
(1)
0

New build programme inc acquisitions

3,415

6,837

1,893

(4,945)

1,457

3,325

(162)

Total HRA Capital Spend

8,575

13,994

5,601

(8,394)

1,625

6,169

(599)

12

Agenda Item 10
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL
TO: Babergh Cabinet

REPORT NUMBER:

FROM: Cabinet Member for Customers,
Digital Transformation &
Improvement
OFFICER: Corporate Business
Improvement Manager: Karen
Coll

BCa/19/4

DATE OF MEETING: 13 June 2019
KEY DECISION REF NO. CAB110

QUARTER FOUR PERFORMANCE OUTCOME REPORTING
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide the Cabinet of Babergh District Council with the fourth quarter
performance outcome report (January – March 2019) in delivering the key outcomes
in the Joint Strategic Plan (JSP).

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

It is a requirement to report this information to Cabinet, therefore there are no other
available options.

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the performance report and the performance outcome information tabled at
Appendices A to H be agreed as reflecting Babergh District Council’s performance
for January – March 2019.
REASON FOR DECISION
To provide assurance that the Council is meeting its performance objectives.

4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

This is the final quarterly performance report for the financial year 2018/2019. The
appendices are integral as they provide detailed information on the agreed individual
measures and trends. They are designed to provide a robust reporting system to
ensure confidence in the Council’s progress to achieving the agreed priorities. In
addition, key achievements are summarised in the appendices, providing an overall
feel of performance and the difference the Council is making in the community.

4.2

This is the first time that Councillors will have seen Economic Development and
Regeneration included in the report and the appendix provides details of the main
achievements for the year. The suite of Cabinet performance measures agreed
between the Interim Assistant Director and Cabinet Member for Economic
Development will be included from quarter one in 2019. Some examples of these are
detailed below:
• Total amount of funding through grants for local businesses.
Page 59

• Number of vacant premises in the main industrial sites. Including floorspace,
impact and trend analysis (1/2 yearly measure)
4.3

The Assistant Director for Assets and Investments will also be working with the
relevant Cabinet Member to agree the performance measures that will be included
from quarter one in 2019.

4.4

The Assistant Director for Planning and Communities will be working with the relevant
Cabinet Member to undertake a review of the communities’ performance measures
in the next financial year.

4.5

The following highlights have been lifted from the appendices, through using a 10%
tolerance, to identify areas where good performance is demonstrated, or where
performance improvement is required. With the latter, the appendices detail the
reasons for not meeting the target and the corrective action that is underway:
Law and Governance
➢ IM02 – Average number of days taken to complete land searches. There
has been a significant improvement relating to this work, the average now being
5 days which is better than the target of 10 days.
Corporate Resources
➢ HR01/HR02 – No. of days lost to sickness and No. of staff on long term
sickness. For both measures there has been a significant improvement
throughout the year. With regard to days lost there has been a decrease of 22%
compared to quarter one and an 18% reduction on the same period in the
previous year. With regard to the long-term sickness there has been a
decrease of 67% compared to quarter one and a 69% reduction on the same
period in the previous year.
➢ F05 – Average time taken to process new Housing Benefit/Council Tax
Reduction claims. This has reduced throughout the year with average time of
17 days at quarter four which is better than the target of 24 days.
➢ F06 – Average time taken to process Housing/ Council Tax Benefit
Changes of Circumstance request. This has also reduced throughout the year
with average time of 2 days at quarter four which is better than the target of 7
days.
➢ F07 – Online housing benefit new claims as a % of all housing benefit new
claims. 98% of new claims are made online which is better than the target of
85%.
Customer Services
➢ CS06 – Average time taken to answer calls (mins). The average time has
increased over the past quarter to 2.07 minutes, this can be attributed in part
to the New Year Billing, and the continued cross skill training. This is worse
than the target of 1.45 minutes, however the average for the month of March
was 1.27 minutes.

Page 60

➢ CS07 - % of overall calls abandoned. Calls abandoned have increased during
quarter four to 15.51%, for the same reasons as in CS06 above. This is worse
than the target of 10%, however the percentage for the month of March
reduced to 11.82%.
➢ CS08 – Customer Satisfaction rate, of those achieving good, very good or
excellent. Babergh’s satisfaction rate for quarter four is better than the annual
target of 85% with rates of 100%.
Planning for Growth
➢ GSP01 - % of major applications processed ‘in time’ (13wks, 16wks, or
within agreed Extension of Time/Planning Performance Agreement).
Performance has improved steadily throughout the year with the final quarter at
100% which is better than the annual target of 60%.
➢ GSP02 - % of non-major applications processed ‘in time’ (8wks, or within
agreed Extensions of Time/Planning Performance Agreement).
Performance for the final quarter stands at 95.83% which is better than the
annual target of 70%.
➢ GSP06 - % of delegation rate. A rate of 99.98% for quarter four is recorded
which is better than the target of 90% and reflects the fact that fewer planning
committees were held in this period.
Housing
➢ BMBS01 - % repairs completed within agreed timescale (by priority/trade)
– Although this measure is lower than the target of 93%, there has been an
improvement in the percentage of completed jobs by trade. This includes an
increase of 41% in work carried out by electricians compared to the previous
quarter.
➢ PS04 - £committed budget for Disabled Facilities Grants. Working with Orbit
Housing Improvement Agency we have been able to commit 42% (£186,285) of
the total budget. This is lower than the target of £444,252.
➢ HP01 – No. of households in B&B accommodation more than six weeks.
This figure rose to 15 in quarter four which is worse than the target of 0.
Note: Members have previously asked for a measure to be included on the
number of people placed in B & B and Temporary Accommodation (TA). The
Assistant Director for Housing suggests that there are concerns with the
usefulness of having both measures as the data changes frequently with people
often being placed in B & B and later in the same month (or following month)
being moved into TA. Hence there would be data that is double counted. The
housing team would suggest providing a snapshot measure which identifies the
number of households accommodated in B & B and TA at the end of each
quarter, sub-dividing this to show how many households have children. As an
example, this would show the following for 2018/19:

Page 61

With Children

Without
Children

11
8
11
9

2
2
6
1

9
6
5
8

Babergh

Babergh

End of Q1
End of Q2
End of Q3
End of Q4

Total
Households
Placed in B&B

End of Q1
End of Q2
End of Q3
End of Q4

Total
Households
Placed in Temp.
Accommodation
33
30
35
37

With Children

Without
Children

25
21
24
28

8
9
11
9

➢ HP03 – No. of households where homelessness has either been prevented
or relieved through intervention by the Housing Solutions Officers. The
number of households assisted over the year reached 171 which is better than
the annual target of 100.
➢ HP06 – No. of cases in which the Tenancy Support Officers (Financial
Inclusion) has likely prevented eviction. A total of 32 cases for the year
where reported which is lower than the annual target of 75.
➢ HF03 – No. of houses sold through Right to Buy. There was a total of 15
houses sold through Right to Buy during the year which is lower than the
budgeted figure of 25.
Environment and Commercial Partnership
➢ WS07 – Missed Bins – rate/ 100,000 collections. At quarter four, the
cumulative total of 1195 missed bins per 100,000 is better than the annual
target of 1500 missed bins per 100,000.
➢ FS01 – No. of interventions carried out in line with the Food Safety Act
Code of Practice. The number of interventions for this year has increased to
1017 which is better than the target of 788 and is a result of reactive working
being carried out.
4.6

To further develop the performance reporting benchmarking information will be used
in future where available, to provide like for like comparisons with other local
authorities, or organisations.

5.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

5.1

Effective performance management enables our Officers, Councillors and
Communities to track progress against the delivery of the JSP to understand our key
risks and to share in the celebration of our achievements.

6.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no immediate financial impacts arising from this report.
performance monitoring has a positive impact on the Council.

7.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.

Page 62

Effective

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1

This report does not link to any of the Council’s Significant Risks, however it does link
to Risk No.5G06 on the Business Support Operational Risk Register ‘If we do not fully
embed performance management and support the organisation to understand and
monitor current performance, then we will not have oversight of our performance in
delivering the JSP, proactively deal with poor performance, align our resources
effectively, learn by our mistakes and celebrate achievements and we may suffer
from reputational damage, with the potential for financial shortfall, inefficiencies and
a de-motivated workforce’. Further key risks are set out below:
Risk Description

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation
Measures

Without an
effective
performance
framework, it is
unlikely that the
Council will deliver
its priorities and
outcomes and
achieve value for
money.

Unlikely (2)

Bad (3)

The performance
framework is
intrinsically linked
to the Council’s
Risk Management
Strategy, creating
an approach
where it is clearly
understood what
stops effective
performance and
ensuring remedial
actions are in
place.

9.

CONSULTATIONS

9.1

Officers and Councillors continue to develop and refine the outcome performance
framework through discussions at Briefings and Cabinet meetings.

10.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS
There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report. This report
should have a positive impact on equality.

11.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1

There are no environmental implications arising from this report.
performance measures show a positive impact on the environment.

12.

APPENDICES
Title

The Councils

Location

(a) Law and Governance Performance Qtr.4

Attached

(b) Corporate Resources Performance Qtr.4

Attached

Page 63

(c) Customer Services Performance Qtr.4

Attached

(d) Planning for Growth Performance Qtr.4

Attached

(e) Housing Performance Qtr.4

Attached

(f)

Attached

Communities Performance Qtr.4

(g) Environment & Commercial Partnerships Qtr.4

Attached

(h) Economic Development and Regeneration
Qtr.4

Attached

Page 64

Appendix A

Law and Governance
Assistant Director Emily Yule
The Law and Governance teams are predominantly support services and contribute to the delivery of the Joint Strategic Plan by providing professional
support and advice to all other service areas. The team have an essential role in maintaining and promoting good governance throughout the
organisation.
July - September 2018

October - December 2018

January - March 2019

Main Achievements

1. The Council has introduced a
new online payments system for
those buying homes in their
districts. The new system allows
those requesting a Local Land
Charge Search – which carries
with it a search fee – to pay
quickly and easily online, via credit
or debit card. Most Land Charge
Service customers are solicitors
and agents delivering
conveyancing services to those
buying a house although anyone
can request this service regarding
any property. In addition we have
added a new online form and
payment system for personal
searches, which include only
selected parts of the full official
search.

1. The Property Team within
Legal Services completed the
acquisition of 8 residential
properties across the two
districts in September - ensuring
that we continue to add to our
housing stock.
2. The Local Government
Boundary Commission for
England published its final
recommendations for the
warding of Mid Suffolk and
reconfirmed proposals to reduce
the number of Councillors to 34.
The Council is now working on
implementing these changes for
elections to be held on 2 May
2019.

1. The Annual Canvass of Electors was
concluded, and revised register
published on Saturday 1 December
2018. The overall response rate was
98.06% with 39.56% of respondents
using an electronic response method
(telephone, online and text
message).
2. The Babergh (Electoral Changes)
Order 2018 was made on 6 December
2018 and brings into effect,
unamended, the final
recommendations of the Local
Government Boundary Commission
for England in respect of the number
of Councillors (32) and warding
arrangements for Babergh

1. We have achieved bronze level status with
the National Land and Property Gazetteers,
this recognises the high standard of our data.
2. Further work has been completed in
relation to GDPR, with robust systems in
place for monitoring at both officer and
Statutory Officer levels.

Main Achievements (continued)

2. The Council is GDPR compliant.
GDPR or General Data Protection
Regulations came into effect on
the 25 May 2018. We have been
training staff, updating privacy
notices and introducing new
procedure and policies to ensure
we are compliant and that we
treat people’s personal data
accordingly in line with the new
regulations.

Page 65

April - June 2018

Impact on communities / the way we
work

1.The new processes is easier and
more convenient for our
customers and by reducing
administration time associated
with payment by cheque this will
reduce the time required for
searches to be completed, giving
customers the information they
need faster. It will also help
control the cost of delivering the
service and there have been no
increases in the Land Charges
search fees this year.

1. A number of digital initiatives have
contributed to a higher response rate,
including the use of tablets by our
canvassing staff. This will enable the
register to be updated on a monthly
basis.

Key for trend graph:
l 2015/16
l 2016/17
l 2017/18
l 2018/19
target

Key:
n/a not applicable
n/av not available
highlighted measure, further detail in main report

Page 66

Internal Audit
Corporate Manager John Snell
Performance measure
IA01 % of 'high priority' Internal Audit
recommendations implemented

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: John Snell

Period

Data

2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

Target

Council

Trend

Comments
This measure has been reviewed, there are a
number of proposals being discussed for
more meaningful measures relating to our
Internal Auditing process to be reported in
the coming year.

Trend

Comments
Details of meetings where 15 or more
members of the public were in attendance.
Planning Committee 20/02/19 - 38
Planning Committee 03/04/19 - 21

100%
Both

Democratic Services
Corporate Manager Janice Robinson
Performance measure
DS02 No. of members of the public
attending formal Council, Cabinet and
Committee meetings

Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Claire Philpot

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
74
84
136
67

Target
n/a

Council
150

`

100

BDC

50
0
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Shared Legal Services
Service Manager Teresa Halliday
Performance measure
SLS01 % of legal challenges successfully
defended
(context of success means the outcome is a
ruling in the Council's favour)

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
100%
100%
100%
100%

Target
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Council

Trend

Comments
During Q4 there were 4 challenges all of
which were successfully defended, relating to
the following subjects;
Dangerous building
Fly tipping
Licensing appeal
Planning judicial review

100%
80%
60%

Both

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Teresa Halliday

40%
20%
0%
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Information Management
Corporate Manager Carl Reeder
Performance measure
IM01 % of Freedom of Information
requests responded to in 20 working days

Page 67

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Martyn Jackson

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
95%
94%
91.60%
93.40%

Target
100%
100%
100%
100%

Council

Trend
100%
80%
60%

Both

40%
20%
0%
Qtr.1

Performance measure
IM02 Average number of days taken to
complete land searches

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Val Stoner

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
7.84
9.7
11.6
5

Comments
During Q4 we received a total of 238
Freedom of Information requests, as well as
84 Environmental Information requests and
19 Subject Access requests. Of the responses
due in Q4 270 requests were dealt on time
and 19 were late.

100%
Target
10 days
10
10
10

Council

Both

10

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Trend
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Comments
Having successfully reduced the search time
for land searches we will be reviewing the
target associated to this in the coming year.
Actual income for Q4 is £342 above the
budget of £53,465. We continue to cleanse
the data to improve the quality and speed of
the searches. In the last year we have
doubled the speed, on average a search takes
half an hour.

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B

Corporate Resources
Assistant Director Katherine Steel
The Corporate Resources teams are predominantly support services and contribute to the delivery of the Joint Strategic Plan by providing professional
support and advice to all other services areas.

Page 69

April - June 2018

July - September 2018

October - December 2018

January - March 2019

Main Achievements

1. Following the closure of the Staff
Survey the results have been
analysed in detail and a series of
briefing sessions for staff and
members have been held.
Following these sessions an action
plan is being developed.
2. Approximately 1 in 4 people in
the UK will experience a mental
health problem each year and in
England 1 in 6 people report
experiencing a common mental
health problem (such as anxiety
and depression) in any given week.

1. 2017/18 Statement of
Accounts have been finalised
and signed off with an
unqualified audit opinion, and
are available to view on the
Council website.

1. At Cabinet on 10 December a
new Modern Slavery Policy was
adopted, which should enable the
Council to eliminate any form of
modern slavery in our supply chain.

1. Two new joint strategies were approved
by full Council in February, the Capital
Strategy and the Investment Strategy. The
Capital Strategy set out capital expenditure
and investment decisions and the associated
risks and rewards along with how risk is
managed for future financial sustainability.
The Investment Strategy relates to the capital
programme specifically related to assets
bought/owned by the Council to generate a
return, for regeneration or development of
the local area.

Main Achievements (continued)

Babergh and Mid Suffolk District
Councils have responded to this by
holding a series of events to
promote positive mental health
during Mental Health Awareness
week and by providing managers
with skills to help promote positive
mental health at work and support
people with their mental health.
They have also trained their first
cohort of Mental Health First
Aiders with further courses
planned. Mental Health First Aiders
are trained to identify, understand
and help someone who may be
experiencing a mental health issue.

2. In March 2019 both Councils adopted the
Unison End Violence at Work Charter. This
commits the two councils to working through
the 10 standards in the Charter and to take
action to meet the requirements within a 12
month period. To take this forward a
combined group of Councillors, Officers and
union representatives will first review where
the two councils are in relation to the
standards and then produce a work
programme for any further action needed to
fully meet the Charter.

Impact on communities / the way we
work

1. The action plan will be
monitored by the Senior
Leadership Team, to ensure that
the survey results in positive
actions and change in the
organisation.
2. Providing these skills can help
people talk about mental health
more openly, give people tools to
help keep themselves and others
well, encourage people to access
support and enable people with
long term mental health issues or
disabilities to thrive in work.

1. The Statement of Accounts
ensures that the Council has a
sound financial basis on which
to deliver its priorities.

Key for trend graph:
l 2015/16
l 2016/17
l 2017/18
l 2018/19
target

Key:
n/a not applicable
n/av not available
highlighted measure, further detail in main report

1. The approval of these strategies ensures
that the Council has a sound and transparent
financial basis on which to deliver its
priorities.
2. Staff welfare is a key feature in our values
and this work and adoption of the Charter
are mutually supportive.

Page 70

Human Resources and Organisational Development
Interim Corporate Manager- Tricia Palmer
Performance measure
HR01 No. of days lost to sickness
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Magda Brauer

Period

Data

Page 71

Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Magda Brauer

Council

2017/18

Trend

Comments
The new policies for Health and Wellbeing
and Sickness Absence are now in place. In
addition newly developed toolkits are in
place to support managers with employee
absence. There has been a marked reduction
in the number of days lost to sickness
throughout the year. The Q4 figure is the
lowest for the period shown.

1400

Qtr.1

949

Qtr.2

908

Qtr.3
Qtr.4

1191
1072

2018/19

Performance measure
HR02 No. of staff on long term sickness
(Absent for 4 or more weeks)

Target

1200
1000
800

Decrease

Qtr. 1

1128

Qtr. 2

1125

Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

963
875

Period
2016/17

Data

Qtr.3

13

Qtr.4

14

2017/18

BDC

600
400
200
0

Target
n/av

Council

2017/18

2018/19

Trend
25

20

n/av

Qtr.1

15

Qtr.2

16

Qtr.3
Qtr.4

21
13

2018/19

15

Both
Decrease

Qtr. 1

12

Qtr. 2

14

Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

8
4

10

5

0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Comments
The trend data indicates that we are
continuing to see a reduction in long term
sickness and is now at the lowest level over
the period shown. This is as a result of
proactive early interventions by HR Business
Partners and Corporate Managers.

Finance
Corporate Manager Melissa Evans
Performance measure
F01 Tax base - No. of Band D equivalent
properties

Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Jacqui Richmond
Performance measure
F02 £ Income generated from investing
cash £'000
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Edward Banyard

Page 72

Performance measure
F03 % Council tax collected
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Bethany Nibloe
Operations Manager: Andrew Wilcock

Period
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
Period
2017/18
Qtr1.
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data
32,020
32,627
32,887
32,986
33,169
33,164
Data

Target

Council

136
125
114
117
Data
30.06%
57.96%
85.97%
98.50%

Comments
There remains a steady increase throughout
the year in the number of Band D equivalent
properties. The slight drop from Q3-Q4 is due
to an increase in local Council Tax Support
cases.

40,000

32,489
32,822
32,822
32,822
32,822
32,822
Target

30,000

BDC

20,000
10,000
0
Qtr.1 Qtr.2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

Council

Trend

Comments
Q4 includes forecast figures for Pooled
Funds. Q3 continued with decreased
performance for Pooled Funds due to slowing
markets from Brexit uncertainty.

160

88
98
96
100
130
130
119
113

Trend

140
120

112
112
112
112
112
107
107
107
107
107
Target
98.40%
98.40%
98.40%
98.40%
98.40%

100

BDC

80
60
40
20
0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Council

Trend

Comments
Target Met.

100.00%
90.00%

80.00%
70.00%
60.00%

30.05%
57.79%
85.73%
98.57%

30.06%
57.96%
85.97%
98.40%

50.00%

BDC

40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

2017/18

2018/19

Performance measure
F04 % Business rates collected
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Bethany Nibloe
Operations Manager: Andrew Wilcock

Performance measure
F05 Average time taken to process new
Housing Benefit/Council Tax Reduction
claims
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Bethany Nibloe
Operations Manager: Amy Mayes

Page 73

Performance measure
F06 Average time taken to process
Housing/Council Tax Benefit Change of
Circumstance requests
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Carl Dersley
Operations Manager: Amy Mayes

Period
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr.4
Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr.4
Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr.4

Data
29.88%
57.95%
82.36%
98.47%

Target
98.40%
98.40%
98.40%
98.40%
98.40%

5
6
3

29.88%
57.95%
82.36%
98.40%
Target
24 days
24
24
24
24
24 days
24
24
24
24
24 days
24
24
24
24
Target
10 days
10
10
10
10
10 days
10
10
10
10
7 days
7
7
7

2

7

29.13%
57.12%
83.90%
98.49%
Data
26
26
23
21
23
30
28
21
24
22
22
18
Data
7
7
7
3
6
6
5
3

Council

Trend

Comments
Target Met.

100.00%

80.00%

BDC

60.00%
40.00%
20.00%
0.00%

Council

2018/17

2018/19

Trend
35
30
25

Comments
The New Claims outturn for 2018/19 was
20.28 days as a cumulative figure. This
compares favourably to the 25.93 days
recorded for the year ending 2017/18. The
Q4 figure is the lowest for the period shown.

20

BDC

15
10
5
0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Council

Trend
12
10
8

BDC

6
4
2
0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Comments
The Change of Circumstances outturn for
2018/19 was 3.91 days as a cumulative
figure. This compares favourably to the 5.12
days recorded for the year ending 2017/18.
The Q4 figure is the lowest for the period
shown.

Performance measure
F07 Online benefit housing new claims as a
% of all housing benefit new claims
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Carl Dersley
Operations Manager: Amy Mayes

Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target

Council

Comments
There has been incremental improvements
in the numbers of online claims received.
These online claims are freely available and
customers are directed to correspond online
at every interface. These ‘customer friendly’
intelligent claim forms determine which
benefit can be applied for (Housing Benefit or
Universal Credit) and are promoted to
customers in correspondence as well as by
third party partner organisations.
Additionally, advice pages for Universal
Credit (UC) carry a ‘make a claim for Council
Tax Reduction’ link which links back to the
benefit pages. All UC claims are made
‘digitally by default’ and this ethos is helping
to encourage change in the numbers of
electronic claim forms received by SRP.

100%

74%
66%
68%
76%

90%
80%
70%

71%
82%
86%
95%
91%
87%
96%
98%

Trend

60%

85%
85%
85%
85%

BDC

50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Page 74

Performance measure
F08 % of business rates payers using Direct
Debit
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Bethany Nibloe
Operations Manager: Andrew Wilcock

Performance measure
F09 % of council tax payers using Direct
Debit
Cabinet Member: John Ward
Data Owner: Bethany Nibloe
Operations Manager: Andrew Wilcock

Period
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr.4
Period
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr.4

Data

85%
Target

Council

2016/17 2017/ 18 2018/19

Trend

Comments
This measure currently shows the
percentage of business rate payers using
Direct Debit. We are in the process of
obtaining the data which will include all
digital options. Once this has been received
this measure will be updated accordingly.

60%

55%
55%
55%
54%

50%
40%

n/av
55.05%
55.06%
55.11%
52.68%
Data

BDC

20%
10%
0%

Target

Council

79%
79%
80%
79%

2017/18

2018/19

Trend

80%
60%

n/av

BDC

Comments
As above.

100%

n/av

80.06%
80.26%
80.71%
79.07%

30%

40%
20%
0%

2017/2018

2018/2019

Appendix C

Customer Services
Assistant Director Sara Wilcock
The Customer Services teams work to provide all our customers with flexible and efficient access to services, ensure our most vulnerable
customers receive additional support to meet their needs, and drive business improvement across the organisation through tracking performance,
utilising insight and intelligence and raising project management standards.

Main Achievements

Page 75

April - June 2018

July - September 2018

October - December 2018

January - March 2019

w Average telephone wait times
this quarter 1 min 42s compared
to 3 mins for the same period last
year.
w In April we answered on average
83% of calls, increasing to 86% in
May and June.
wContinuing with our programme
of staff development. The
Customer Service team have
trained First Aiders, Fire Wardens
and a Health and Safety
representative on the Health and
Safety board.

w Babergh's first Pop-Up
Customer Access Point was
launched in Shotley in August,
officers have joined Suffolk
Libraries in attending Shotley
Village Hall on Monday
afternoons offering a face to face
service, this is a pilot scheme until
the end of September.
w Average telephone wait times
this quarter 1 min 7s compared
to 2 mins 22 secs for the same
period last year.
w In July we answered on average
90.91% of calls, increasing to
92.77% in September.

w Average telephone wait times
this quarter 1 min 4s compared to
1 min 50 secs for the same period
last year.
w %Abandoned Calls in Oct 2017
was 16.5%. This year was 6.93%.
w Hadleigh Customer Access Point
opened in Hadleigh Library in
October 2018. Staff are on hand
every Thursday afternoon. There
is also a permanent self service
point providing anyone access to
online services available every day
during library opening hours.
w Following the successful pilot the
Shotley Customer Access Point
pop-up will remain.

w The main activity other than New Year
Billing affecting our figures has been the
continuation of cross skill training.
w We are now receiving figures from SRP
to show how many Citizen Access moves
we have processed – January’s total was
2363 and of these, only 2 errors were
recorded. These do take us longer to
process at the front end but have sped
the processing times up for the
customers.
w Housing Procedure Review project
started to identify and resolve
inconsistencies/inefficiencies in how we
deal with Housing customers.

w Piloting a customer satisfaction
survey for our in person
customers. Initial results are
promising with (of those
completing the survey), 94% of
customers seen within 5 minutes
or less, and 100% customers rating
us either good, very good or
excellent in respect of our staff and
their helpfulness, information and
advice provided, and taking time to
listen and understand their query.
w Further development of the
performance reporting has now
enabled collection and reporting of
performance information to
Cabinet on a quarterly basis, this is
the first of such reports.

w Continuing with our
programme of staff development,
with training provided on the new
Citizens Access system. 'Citizen
Access' is a digital tool for council
tax, allowing customers to view
account details, submit changes of
address, apply for or cancel a
single person discount, set up a
direct debit or sign up for e-billing.

Impact on communities / the way we
work

wIncreased calls answered leading
to less abandoned phone calls by
customers
wCross skilling our team enabling
them to answer different types of
call enquiries leading to improved
resilience.
w Learning from the pilot will help
us develop a telephony satisfaction
survey also.

wIncreased calls answered leading
to less abandoned phone calls by
customers
wCross skilling our team enabling
them to answer different types of
call enquiries leading to improved
resilience.
w Learning from the Shotley pilot
will help us develop a framework
for any future similar schemes.

Key for trend graph:
l 2015/16
l 2016/17
l 2017/18
l 2018/19
target

Key:
n/a not applicable
n/av not available
highlighted measure, further detail in main report

Page 76

Main Achievements (continued)

w The Royal Mail's Happiness Index
which is composed of eight measures
including reported personal wellbeing,
life expectancy, earning and access to
services, was commissioned in early
2019 showed Babergh as the 2nd
happiest place to live in the UK.
A full year of performance information
(including achievements) has been
presented to Cabinet and SLT.
Complaints training has been provided to
complaint responders across the
organisation by the LGO with
approximately 40 people in attendance.
Equalities workshops have been
arranged for Managers with a range of
excellent community speakers.

w Increased calls answered leading
to less abandoned phone calls by
customers.
w Analysis to be completed on the
first period Hadleigh been open.
w Set up as a pilot scheme in
partnership with Suffolk Libraries,
the Shotley initiative has proven
invaluable for residents living in
more remotes parts of the district.

wCross skilling allowing us to manage
resources better to allow us to answer
calls more evenly across teams.
Improved processes for Housing
queries reducing the need to contact
customers more than once for
information.
The performance information has
enabled us to take actions where
necessary but also to celbrate our
achievements.
The complaints training will improve our
customer service and the equalities
training will ensure that our duties under
the Equalities Act are met.

Customer Services
Corporate Manager Samantha Lake
Performance measure
CS01 Average number of daily visitors to
joint website
Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: John Broadwater

Performance measure
CS02 No. of daily transactions completed
via website
Page 77

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: John Broadwater

Period

Data

Target

Council

n/av

2017/18
Qtr.1

2310

Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

2397
2432

Trend

Comments
A further increase of 4% on last quarter
has been achieved.

4000
3500
3000
2500

Both

3147

2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
Period

2762
3027
3475
3613
Data

2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

250
245
218
204

1500
1000

Increase - No
target set as
establishing
benchmark
Target

2000

500
0

2017/18

Council

2018/19

Trend
300
250

Increase - No
target set as
establishing
benchmark

200

Both

150

100
50
0
Qtr.1 Qtr. 2 Qtr.3

Performance measure
CS03 No. of payments collected digitally
(automated telephony, web payment)

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Marie Fletcher

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target

Council

Qtr.4

Trend
300,000

243,833
244,864
242,478
208,022

250,000

200,000

Increase - No
target set as
establishing
benchmark

150,000

Both
100,000

50,000

0
Qtr.1 Qtr. 2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

Comments
This includes all online forms completed
directly from the Council's website. The
advice pages for Universal Credit(UC)
carry a ‘make a claim for Council Tax
Reduction’ link which links back to the
benefit pages, signposting this directly
negates the need to search via the
Councils website.
Comments
This measure currently includes all the
Direct Debits collected in respect of
Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing
Benefit Overpayment Repayment, Rents
& Sundry Charges across both BDC &
MSDC. The count also includes all Debit
and Credit Card payments made via Web
Pages, the Automated Telephone
Payment line (ATP) and through End Call
via Customer Services colleagues for all
service areas ( that is those listed already
plus for example Building Control,
Planning, Waste Services etc.) Reduction
in Qtr 4 expected due to 10 month
instalment plans available to Local
Taxation customers.

Performance measure
CS04 No. of face to face visitors to
customer access point (Sudbury)

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Helen Austin
Performance measure
CS05 No. of calls answered

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Helen Austin

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target

Council

Trend

Comments
Recording system is manual so some
customers may not be captured.

1500

1219
1135
1170
1357

Decrease No
target set as
establishing
benchmark

1000

BDC

500
0
Qtr.1 Qtr. 2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
35014
37231
33947
34685

Target

Council

Trend

Comments
Q4 encompasses New Year Billing period
(new Council Tax bills, Housing Benefit
adjustments, rent letters).

40000

No target to be
set as
establishing
benchmark

30000

Both

20000
10000
0
Qtr.1 Qtr. 2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

Performance measure
CS06 Average time taken to answer calls
(mins)
PLEASE NOTE GRAPH CONVERTED TIME TO
DECIMAL

Page 78

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Helen Austin

Performance measure
CS07 % of overall calls abandoned
Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Helen Austin

Performance measure
CS08 Customer Satisfaction rate, of those
measured achieve good, very good or
excellent

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Helen Austin

Period
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
Period
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target
1.00

2.49
2.08
2.19
1.38

Council
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

1.45
1.42
1.07
1.04
2.07
Data
22.33%
15.33%
15.81%
10.96%
14.31%
8.85%
8.16%
15.51%
Data
100%
100%
100%
100%

Comments
Q2's lowest average was September at
58 seconds. Q3's lowest was 52 seconds
in October. Q4's lowest was 1 min 27
secs in March.

3
2.5
2

Both

1.75
1.75
1.75
1.75
Target
n/av

Trend

1.5
1
0.5
0

Council

2017/18

2018/19

Trend
25%
20%
15%

10%
10%
10%
10%
10%
Target
85%
85%
85%
85%

Both

10%
5%
0%

Council

2017/18 2018/19

Trend
100%

BDC

50%

0%

85%

Comments
Q3 - This average includes October figure
of 6.93% which was a reduction on the
best month of Q2 which was September
7.23%. Abandoned rate peaked in
January at 20.4% and reduced to 11.82%
in March.

Qtr.1 Qtr. 2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

Comments
Further work is being undertaken to
improve and enhance the current system
to provide more detailed information of
both the services requested and the
service provided.

Performance measure
CS09 No. of complaints to Ombudsman
where Council is at fault

Cabinet Member: Derek Davis
Data Owner: Helen Austin

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
0
0
0
0

Target
n/a

Council

BDC

Trend

Comments
1 result pending

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix D

Planning for Growth
Assistant Director Tom Barker
The Planning for growth agenda is supported by a number of teams including Strategic Planning and Development Management. The focus is on
delivering more of the right homes, in the right places, creating resilient and well served communities and encouraging and facilitating new
employment opportunities.
July - September 2018

October - December 2018

January - March 2019

Main Achievements

Performance on planning applications (as judged by
Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government statistics) is good, with 80% of majors
and 83% of non-majors delivered on time.
Fifteen communities are working towards
Neighbourhood Plans, Aldham and Assington have
recently designated their plan areas.
The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Expenditure Framework was approved by
Councillors in April and the first round of bids have
been received.
Further Member briefings on the Joint Local Plan
were delivered in April, with further public
consultation expected in the Autumn.
The 'Visioning for Prosperity’ recommendations for
Greater Sudbury were approved by Cabinet in June,
final documents were presented at a public open
day .
Planning permission for infrastructure elements of
the Sproughton Enterprise Zone site and permission
for the first occupier were achieved in April.
The Open for Business Team is working with
partners including the New Anglia LEP to develop
an options appraisal for the Delphi site, Sudbury.

Performance on planning applications (as judged
by MHCLG statistics) is good. Statistics for majors
(78%) and non majors (77%) are broadly similar
with performance in the last Quarter although
there has been a slight drop.
Neighbourhood Plans continue to be of interest to
communities. In the three months ending 30 Sept
2018, five new areas were designated.
The first round of bids for Community
Infrastructure funding have been dealt with. The
Suffolk Design project was launched with an event
held on 9 July. It will produce an updated Suffolk
Design Guide for adoption as supplementary
planning guidance. It will also further develop
the design skills of planning teams and
communities working towards Neighbourhood
Plans. The Joint Local Plan remains an important
piece of work. The new National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) has placed additional
responsibilities on Councils. Officers are addressing
the further evidence required. The Local
Development Scheme, which sets out the timetable
for the Joint Local Plan, was adopted in July.

Performance on planning applications (as
judged by MHCLG statistics) is good, with
Babergh delivering 90.9% of majors in time in
the three months to the end of December
2018. In relation to non-majors Babergh is at
80.8 % in time.
Neighbourhood Plans continue to progress
within our communities. Elmsett are
intending to submit theirs later this month
and Aldham are understood to be close to
pre-submission stage. Copdock & Washbrook,
Stutton and Woolverstone have each
designated their areas for Neighbourhood
Planning purposes.
As part of the CIL expenditure framework
review a number of Joint Member Panels
have been undertaken in November and
December. Work is in progress to report the
outcomes and proposed changes in March.
As part of the Suffolk Design project a Suffolk
Development Briefing for developers and
professionals to showcase good design across
the County was held in early December and
was well attended. Work is ongoing to draft
the new County wide guidance.

Performance on planning applications (as
judged by MHCLG statistics) showed further
improvement at 100% for majors in time in
the three months to the end of March 2019.
On non-majors Babergh decided 95.83%
applications in time.
We have now introduced the changes to our
charged pre-application service which were
recently agreed by Cabinet.
The redevelopment of the former BDC offices
in Hadleigh has been approved subject to
resolving outstanding technical aspects.
Conditions associated La Doria’s new site in
Sproughton have also been approved and
work has commenced on site.
While the level of interest in Neighbourhood
Planning (NP) continues to grow, no new NP
Areas were designated in Babergh during this
period. Elmsett's NP remains the most
advanced in terms of progress, it having
undergone Reg 16 Submission consultation in
Feb/March. The Long Melford NP underwent
Reg 14 Pre-submission consultation in Jan
/Feb.

Main Achievements cont.

Statistics show that across Babergh and Mid Suffolk
the direction of travel for completion of timely
planning application processing based on median
days has improved. For major applications in 2017 it
was 133 days, in 2018 it was 130 days and in 2019 it
was 80 days. This is also reflected in the nonmajors, in 2017 it was 53 days, in 2018 it was 54
days and in 2019 it was 45 days. This means that we
not only dealing with more in time according to
government targets but we are also dealing with
these more quickly across the average.

Page 81

April - June 2018

Impact on communities / the way we
work

The Joint Local Plan will shape how development
happens across both Districts. The various
consultation stages provide a meaningful
opportunity for communities to engage in the planmaking process and therefore influence the policy
backdrop against which planning decisions are
made.

Key for trend graph:
l 2015/16
l 2016/17
l 2017/18
l 2018/19
target

Key:
n/a not applicable
n/av not available

The Joint Local Plan will shape how development
happens across both Districts. The various
consultation stages provide a meaningful
opportunity for communities to engage in the planmaking process and therefore influence the policy
backdrop against which planning decisions are
made.

The Joint Local Plan will shape how
development happens across both Districts.
The various consultation stages provide a
meaningful opportunity for communities to
engage in the plan-making process and
therefore influence the policy backdrop
against which planning decisions are made.

The Joint Local Plan will shape how
development happens across both Districts.
The various consultation stages provide a
meaningful opportunity for communities to
engage in the plan-making process and
therefore influence the policy backdrop
against which planning decisions are made.

Strategic Planning
Corporate Manager Robert Hobbs
Performance measure
SP01 No. of dwellings completed

Period
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19

Data
226
331

Target
325
325
420

Council

Trend
450
400
350

Page 82

300

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: Matt Deakin

250
200

BDC

150
100
50
0
2016/17

Performance measure
SP02 Effective Land Supply

Period
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19

Data
3
6.7 see comment

Target
6.5

Council

6.5

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: Matt Deakin
BDC

2017/18

2018/19

Trend

Comments
The 2017/18 data for Babergh shows 331
completions, which is a significant
improvement on 2016/17 and has exceeded
the target. In February 2019, the Babergh
Core Strategy became five years old, which
meant the new housing requirement was that
as identified by the Government's standard
method for assessing housing need, which set
the requirement at 420 dwellings per year.
The data for 2018/19 is expected to be
available in June 2019. It will then be
published in the Annual Monitoring Report in
September.
Comments
The Annual Monitoring Report published in
2018 demonstrated a Housing Land Supply of
6.7 years. Being able to demonstrate a fiveyear housing land supply gives the Council
more room to shape housing delivery within
the district and ensure we build the housing
our communities need, with local influence
over developments within the district. The
Annual Monitoring Report for 2018/19 will be
published in September and will include the
land supply figure for 2018/19.

Performance measure
SP03 No. of neighbourhood plans at
preparation stage (cumulative total)

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: Paul Bryant

Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data
3
3
3
4
5
7
9
10

Target
n/a

Council

Trend
25

20

5
n/a

15

5
n/a

BDC
10

14
20
22
22

5

0

Performance measure
SP04 No. of neighbourhood plans entering
examination stage (cumulative total)

Page 83

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: Paul Bryant

Performance measure
SP05 No. of neighbourhood plans made
(cumulative total)

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: Paul Bryant

Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target
n/a

Council

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Trend
3

2
0
0
3

2

n/a
1
1
1
0
0
0
0
0
Data

Comments
No NPs were at a sufficiently advanced
enough stage to qualify for this performance
measure but, as noted above, the Elmsett
Plan is the most advanced and will be
submitted for independent examination in
early April 2019.

BDC
1

n/a

0

Target
n/a

Council

Trend

2

n/a
0
0
1
1

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

3

0
2
2
2

BDC
1

n/a
0
0
0
0

Comments
While the level of interest in N'hood Plng
continues to grow, no new NP Areas were
designated in Babergh during the last three
months (Jan - Mar 2019). A formal re-launch
of the Hadleigh NP has still not been
confirmed but this plan continues to be
recorded here as the NP Area has been
designated. Elmsett's NP remains the most
advanced in terms of progress, it having
undergone Reg 16 Submission consultation
btwn 11 Feb and 27 Mar. Of note also, the
Long Melford NP underwent Reg 14 Presubmission consultation in Jan / Feb 2019.
For more info please
see: https://www.babergh.gov.uk/planning/n
eighbourhood-planning/neighbourhoodplanning-in-babergh/

0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Comments
See also SP04 above. No NP’s have been
made (adopted) in Babergh since Lawshall’s
Plan went to a local referendum in Oct 2017.

Growth & Sustainable Planning
Corporate Manager Philip Isbell
Performance measure
GSP01 % of major applications processed ‘in
time’ (13 wks., 16 wks. or within agreed
Extension of Time/ Planning Performance
Agreement)

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: John Mawdsley

Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data
94.70%
100.00%
96.00%
100.00%
100.00%
87.50%
61.50%
93.30%
80.00%
77.78%
90.90%
100.00%

Target
95%
95%
95%
95%
95%
95%

Council
120.00%

100.00%

80.00%

95%
95%
95%
95%
60%
60%
60%
60%

Trend

60.00%

Comments
Qtr 4 Performance on planning applications
(as judged by MHCLG statistics) at 100% is
well above the 60% benchmark set by Central
Government with an improvement on the
previous 3 quarters. With relatively few
majors being determined each quarter the
data can skew.
The target set for 2018/19 aligns with the
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local
Government assessment thresholds.

BDC
40.00%

20.00%

0.00%

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Page 84

Performance measure
GSP02 % of non major applications processed
‘in time’ (8 wks, or within agreed Extension of
Time/ Planning Performance Agreement)

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: John Mawdsley

Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

86.70%
75.30%
77.40%
85.80%

60%
Target
85%
85%
85%
85%
85%
85%
85%
85%
85%
85%

83.26%
77.41%
80.80%
95.83%

70%
70%
70%
70%
70%

Data
81.00%
80.00%
84.50%
90.60%

Council

Trend
100.00%

90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%

BDC

50.00%
40.00%
30.00%

Comments
Qtr 4 performance on planning applications
(as judged by MHCLG statistics) is above the
benchmark and an improvement on the
previous three quarters. Management
intervention to ensure that agreed Extension
of times are met has helped to improve
performance and there has been continued
progress to develop and customise
“Enterprise” application workload
management software to operational needs.
This will enable officers to track and prioritise
their workload with greater efficiency.

20.00%

The target set for 2018/19 aligns with the
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local
Government assessment thresholds.

10.00%
0.00%

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Performance measure
GSP03 % of the total number of major
decisions made by the authority on
applications that are then subsequently
overturned at appeal

Period
2018/19

Data
1.70%

Target
<10%

Council

BDC

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: John Mawdsley

Trend

Comments
Data reflects the position to date for planning
decisions 01 July 2016 to 30 June 2018.
MHCLG allow 9 months following the
planning decision for appeals to work their
way through the process which would take
the period through to 31 March 2019.

Performance measure
GSP06 % of delegation rate

Cabinet Member: Nick Ridley
Data Owner: John Mawdsley

Period
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data
93.70%
95.80%
94.50%
97.40%
96.70%
95.40%
94.50%
94.80%
94.60%
95.10%
94.40%
99.98%

Target
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%
90%

Council

Trend
100.00%
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%

60.00%
50.00%

BDC

40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Comments
Performance for Qtr 4 for 2018/19 is an
estimate and reflects the fact that fewer
committees were held in this period.

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix E

Housing
Assistant Director Gavin Fisk
The Housing Service Area includes: Home Ownership, Sheltered Housing, Tenancy Management, Income Collection,
Property Services, Building Services (BMBS), Private Sector Housing, Housing Development, Housing Solutions, Choice
Based Lettings and HRA Finance. Our Vision is for residents of Babergh & Mid Suffolk to live in districts where people
have access to affordable and high-quality homes that enable them to build settled, safe and healthy lives, within
sustainable and thriving communities.
Main Achievements

Page 87

Impact on communities / the
way we work

April - June 2018

July - September 2018

October - December 2018

1. As at June 2018, standard void times
have reduced by 37 Days for BDC and 17
Days for MSDC. This exceeds the 10-day
target previously set and a positive
downward trend towards the long-term
target of 21 days.
2. A bid has
been submitted to the LGA Housing
Advisers Programme to ‘Improve access
to the Private Rented Sector’. The bid is
requesting specialist adviser support to
deliver a project with the Housing
Solutions Team to increase access to the
private rented sector for those at risk of
homelessness.
1.Delivering an effective and efficient
VOID service means we are making
effective use of our assets and
maximising our rental income.
3. This is a key focus of the new
Homelessness Reduction Act and if
successful it would enable the team to
bring this project forward and deliver it
sooner than currently planned.

1. Officers submitted a bid to
Government to remove the HRA
Headroom Cap. The deadline was
before the Conservative Party
Conference where Theresa May
announced the debt cap was being
removed.
2.
Officers have written a draft
Homelessness Reduction Strategy
and Housing Strategy which are due
out for wider consultation in
October.

Ministry of Housing, Communities
and Local Government visited the
Housing Solutions Service to review
the implementation of the
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017
in November. They were very
complimentary of the service being
provided and want to recommend
us to other Councils as an example
of Best Practice.

1. The hard work involved in putting
together the bid has resulted in
Officers being aware and confident
in what finances each authority has
to use to support the council build
programme.
2. Having these Strategies in place
will mean we are doing all we can to
meet the challenges our
communities face - with either
Homelessness or the challenging
Housing Market.

January - March 2019
Both Babergh and Mid Suffolk Full Councils
approved the Homes and Housing Strategy
and Homelessness Prevention Strategy in
March
2019.

The strategies set out our visions for the
future (2019-2024) along with
principles on how we will achieve success.

Key for trend graph:
l 2015/16
l 2016/17
l 2017/18
l 2018/19
target

Key:
n/a not applicable
n/av not available

Tenancy Services
Corporate Manager Lee Crowdell
Performance measure
TS01 % of local authority housing
rent (incl. garages) collected
Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Lee Crowdell/Polly
Bearman

Page 88

Performance measure
TS02 Value/percentage of arrears
caused by Universal Credit

Period
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
Period
2018/19
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data
98.39%
98.33%
98.17%
98.11%
98.24%
97.71%
97.39%
97.67%
Data

Target
98%
98%
98%
98%
98%
98%
98%
98%
98%
98%
Target
n/a

26.35%
30.37%
31.37%

Council

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Lee Crowdell/Polly
Bearman

Comments
Universal Credit is undoubtedly having an
effect with total current arrears for Universal
Credit claimants as a % of total dwelling
arrears currently at 31.37%. However, the
team have adapted to the challenges well
and are involved in the development of the
new Income Management Policy and
associated procedures.

100.00%
80.00%
60.00%

BDC

40.00%

20.00%
0.00%

2017/18 2018/19

Council

Trend

Comments

40.00%
30.00%
20.00%

BDC

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Lee Crowdell/Polly
Bearman
Performance measure
TS03 £Levels of write off against
bad debt provision

Trend

10.00%
0.00%
Qtr. 2

Period
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data
£13,587.25
£43,550.87
£57,796.26
£66,222.69

Target
£65,000
Annual

Council

Qtr. 3

Qtr. 4

Trend
£70,000.00
£60,000.00
£50,000.00
£40,000.00

BDC

£30,000.00
£20,000.00
£10,000.00
£0.00
Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4

Comments
The higher than expected figure is largely the
result of a recent review of historic debts, a
significant number of which are considered
unrecoverable. The new Income
Management Policy will implement measures
that will prevent many former tenant debts
occurring in the future by limiting house
moves for tenants in arrears, and fewer
former tenant debts will be written off.

Property Services
Corporate Manager Heather Worton
Performance measure
PS02 No. of privately owned
properties empty, in excess of two
years, brought back into use (non
cumulative)

Period
2017/18
Qtr.2
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 4

Data

Target

Council
40

11
22

30

n/a
BDC

33
18

20
10

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Theresa Grzedzicki
Performance measure
PS03 No: of House in Multiple
Occupation licenses issued

Trend

0
Qtr.2

Period
2018/19
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target
n/a

Qtr. 4 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 4

Council

Trend

Comments
We are working closely with the other Suffolk
District and Borough Councils and Suffolk Fire
and Rescue to ensure we have a consistent
approach to the new HMO legislation. A joint
protocol is being produced which details the
required standards in all HMO’s. All
associated documentation e.g. application
forms and information material will be the
same across all Suffolk authorities.

6

5
1

5
4

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner:

BDC

3
2

Page 89

1
0

Qtr. 3

Performance measure
PS04 £ Committed budget for
Disabled Facilities Grants
(cumulative)

Period
2018/19
Qtr. 1

Qtr. 2
Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Theresa
Grzedzicki/Christine Ambrose

Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data
£74597.10
(17% of budget)
£110551.07 (25%
of budget)
£136994.48 (31%
of budget)
£186285.36 (42%
of budget)

Target
£444,252

Council

Qtr. 4

Trend
We are working with Orbit Home
Improvement Agency to improve their
performance in responding to the incoming
demand for DFG's. Their performance is
steadily improving, however it remains an
area of concern.

£400,000.00
£300,000.00

BDC

Comments
We are still offering empty homes loans to
encourage owners to bring properties back in
to use, but at this time we are not actively
promoting or contacting owners to inform
them of this. Information is available on the
website, so we are being approached by
owners. Staff resourcing issue has led to this
current approach.

£200,000.00

£100,000.00
£0.00
Qtr.1 Qtr.2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

BMBS Housing Maintenance
Corporate Manager Justin Wright-Newton
Performance measure
BMBS01 % of repairs completed
within agreed timescale (by
priority/trade)

Period
2018/19
Qtr. 1

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Justin Wright-Newton

Data
Job Priority
Percentage
Completed in time
1 Day 51%
3 Day 41%
5 Day 30%
20 Day 43%
60 Day 75%

Target
93%
for all subsets

Council

Trend

Job Priority %
completed on time
80%
70%

60%

By Trade Percentage
Completed in time
Brick Layer 33%
Carpenter 41%
Day Rate 24%
Electrician 50%
Plumber 42%
Various 51%

50%

40%

30%

20%

Page 90

10%

Qtr. 2

Job Priority
Percentage
Completed in time
1 Day 65%
3 Day 40%
5 Day 25%
20 Day 55%
60 Day 67%

Qtr 2, Qtr 3 & Qtr 4 figures are consolidated
for YTD.

0%
1 day 3 day 5 day 20
day
Qtr.1

By Trade Percentage
Completed in time
Brick Layer 41%
Carpenter 39%
Day Rate 43%
Electrician 62%
Plumber 41%
Various 57%

Both

Comments
Following the work done to complete the
paper trail of works orders in Qtr 1 and the
implementation of Total Mobile, a number of
works order priority anomalies have come to
light. An error in system set up means that
all Schedule of Rates (SOR) are raised with a
5 day priority unless changed at the point of
contact. This immediately throws the figures
out. A review of the Right to repair
classifications and service standard is
underway. This will formulate system
changes to the way in which work is
prioritised at the point that it is raised. These
system changes are still to take place. The
Administration team have been working hard
to reduce the amount of outstanding jobs
and scheduling these in and getting them
completed on Total mobile has affected the
figures and thrown out the percentage.

Qtr.3

60
day

Qtr.4

Both
Qtr. 3

Job Priority
Percentage
Completed in time
1 Day 54%
3 Day 32%
5 Day 26%
20 Day 50%
60 Day 53%

Job Priority %
completed by trade
70%

60%

By Trade Percentage
Completed in time
Brick Layer 35%
Carpenter 26%
Day Rate 37%
Electrician 24%
Plumber 30%
Various 47%

50%

40%

30%

Qtr. 4
Page 91

Job Priority
Percentage
Completed in time
1 Day 53%
3 Day 32%
5 Day 16%
20 Day 50%
60 Day 52%
By Trade Percentage
Completed in time
Brick Layer 37%
Carpenter 27%
Day Rate 37%
Electrician 65%
Plumber 33%
Various 44%

20%

10%

0%

Qtr.1

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Housing Solutions
Corporate Manager Heather Tucker
Performance measure
HP01 No. of households in B&B
accommodation more than six
weeks (not cumulative)

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target
0

4
6
8
15

Council
20
15

BDC

Cabinet Member - Jan Osborne
Data Owner - Victoria Stuart
Performance measure
HP03 No. of households where
homelessness has either been
prevented or relieved (cumulative)

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Responsible Officer: Victoria Stuart

Trend

10
5
0
Qtr.1

Period
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
121
187
259
362
23
69
104
171

Target
150
150
150
150
150
100
100
100
100
100

Council

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Trend
400

350

300

Comments
Historically, we used to report Prevention
and Relief figures quarterly through a system
called the P1E. Since April, we are now
expected to report outcomes through a new
system called H-Clic. This system reports in a
different way and as a result our statistical
returns look very different.

Page 92

Previously, under the P1E, not only would we
include all the work carried out by Officers,
but we were able to include successful
Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP)
applications too. However, under the new
system, that is no longer possible. The DHP
figures used to account for a significant
amount of positive outcomes and therefore,
when we first started to look at our
performance this year, it looked dramatically
less. However, when we have compared like
for like figures, we are actually able to see an
improvement in performance.

250

200

BDC
150

100

50

0

Comments
We will continue to work hard to manage the
demands for emergency accommodation and
will be conducting a review of provision in
2019/20 to ensure we have adequate
temporary accommodation available to
ensure no one is accommodated in B&B
more than six weeks.

2017/18

2018/19

Performance measure
HP04 Movement (-/+) on the
housing register (including total
divided by bands)

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Victoria Stuart
Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Page 93

Qtr.4

Data
Band A - 49
Band B - 143
Band C - 212
Band D - 40
Band E – 474
Band F – 1
TOTAL- 919
Band A - 57 (+)
Band B - 148 (+)
Band C - 224 (+)
Band D - 36 (-)
Band E - 455 (-)
Band F - 0 (-)
TOTAL - 939 (+)
Band A - 46 (-)
Band B - 152 (+)
Band C - 224
Band D - 32 (-)
Band E - 444 (-)
Band F - 0
TOTAL - 898 (-)
Band A - 47 (+)
Band B - 153 (+)
Band C - 224
Band D - 39 (+)
Band E - 446 (+)
Band F - 0
TOTAL - 909 (+)

Target
No Target
Information
Only

Council

BDC

Trend
n/a

Comments

Performance measure
HP05 £ of Discretionary Housing
Grants awarded by Shared Revenue
Partnership (cumulative)

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
£26,070.64
£65,564.56
£107,972.00
£112,504.89

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Victoria Stuart

Target
£106,396.00
£106,396.00
£106,396.00
£106,396.00

Council

Trend

Comments
These grants are administered by Shared
Revenues Partnership and they are used to
help people in financial difficulty, to top up
rent payments, to prevent homelessness and
keep people in their current home. The
money is awarded to the SRP from the
Department of Work and Pensions.

£120,000.00
£100,000.00

£80,000.00

BDC

£60,000.00

£40,000.00
£20,000.00

£106,396.00

£0.00
Qtr.1 Qtr.2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

Performance measure
HP06 No: of cases in which the
Tenancy Services Officers (Financial
Inclusion) has likely prevented
eviction (cumulative)

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
0
3
11
32

Target
75
75
75
75

Council

Trend

Comments
The Tenancy Support Officers deal with a
wide variety of cases, of which, not all will be
at imminent risk of eviction. This means the
number of interventions where
homelessness has been prevented will vary.

80
60

BDC

40
20

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Victoria Stuart

Page 94

Performance measure
HP07 No: of Personal Budgeting
Support interventions for Universal
Credit

Cabinet Member: Jan Osborne
Data Owner: Victoria Stuart

0

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
26
22
36
21

75
Target
No Target
Information
Only

Qtr.1

Council

BDC

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Trend

Comments
The Personal Budgeting Support we are were
providing and being funded ended in March
2019.

40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Housing Financials
Professional Lead Tricia Anderson
Performance measure
HF03 No: of houses sold through
Right to Buy

Cabinet Member: Frank Lawrenson
Data Owner: Tricia
Anderson/Caroline Pearce

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
5
2
7
1

Target
n/a
25
25
25

Council

Trend
30
20

BDC

10
0
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Comments
Tenants can apply to buy their homes under
Right to Buy and can be liable for up to 70%
discount if they meet specific government
criteria. Therefore, a house sold under RTB
will not give us the same funding as it would
if sold on the housing market. The budget
provision for RTB for 2018/19 is 25 houses.

25

Housing Development
Assistant Director Emily Atack
Corporate Manager Anne Bennett
Performance measure
HD01 No: of houses built for HRA

Page 95

Cabinet Member: Frank Lawrenson
Data Owner: Anne Bennett
Performance measure
HD02 No: of houses acquired for
HRA

Cabinet Member: Frank Lawrenson
Data Owner: Anne Bennett

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target

0
0
0
0

Target within the
Affordable Housing
Strategy for 20172020 is 210

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target

Council
BDC

Trend

Comments
Although there has not been any building so
far this year, there are 4 sites (Angel Court,
Brantham, 2 at Shotley) totalling 38 units
which secured planning permission in Qtr 4

Council

Trend

Comments
Addresses for Qtr 4 are as follows:
11 in Holbrook
1 in Sudbury

15

8
10
7
12

Houses acquired
are part of the
overall target of
210 (see above)

10

BDC

5
0
Qtr.1

Performance measure
HD03 Net total of HRA houses
( Acquired + Built - Sold)

Cabinet Member: Frank Lawrenson
Data Owner: Anne Bennett

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
3
8
0
11

Target
n/a

Council

BDC

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Trend

Comments
This is a summary of the net total.

10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix F

Communities
Assistant Director Tom Barker
The Communities Service Area includes: Safe Communities (including community safety, anti-social behaviour, safeguarding and
the Community Safety Partnership)
Strong Communities ( including grants, external funding, community development, and community rights)
Healthy Communities and Policy (including health and wellbeing, health interventions and preventative activity)

Main Achievements

Page 97

April - June 2018

July - September 2018

October - December 2018

January - March 2019

Mental Health work has included a
successful Mental Health Awareness and
Dementia Fortnight in the workplace with
many activities in partnership with SCC
and HR. 11 staff members now trained as
Mental Health First Aiders.
The Communities team recently
completed a full Section 11 Audit which
required the Councils’ to evidence how
well we are meeting our statutory
obligations in relation to safeguarding,
duty of care, and promoting the welfare
of Children and Vulnerable Adults. The
audit takes account of the level of
Corporate commitment toward
safeguarding and how the Councils’
ensure that safeguarding measures are
implicit in our procurement processes
and embedded into our policies. The
Audit was validated by a Panel of
members from the Local Safeguarding
Children’s Board. The Panel confirmed
that Babergh and Mid Suffolk Councils
provided strong evidence of compliance
and agreed we demonstrated a high
standard of service.

1.The Health and Wellbeing team formed a
working group with staff from Ipswich
Borough Council and Suffolk County
Council to collaboratively organize and
deliver a range of health and wellbeing
promoting activities for Workplace Health
Week held between 10 &14 September. In
addition we also held a Prostate Cancer
Day on 12 September to raise awareness of
the condition, helping to raise £250 for the
East Suffolk Prostate Cancer Support Group
(this covers the Babergh and Mid Suffolk
area). The event involved a talk by a
Macmillan nurse, information on diagnosis
and the opportunity for staff to contribute
to a local charity by wearing a sports top of
their choice.
2. A total of 96 women and girls took part
in this year’s Sudbury Women on Wheels
event. This event promotes cycling for
recreation and as an alternative mode of
transport. It has enabled participants to
have the confidence to take part and in
some cases join local cycling clubs.

1. The inaugural ‘Stars of Babergh & Mid
Suffolk’ Community and Business Awards
Event was held at St Mary’s Church in
Hadleigh on Thursday 18 October. Over
150 entries were received for 11
categories and Babergh had a total of 12
overall winners.
2. 57 Members of Staff have received
Child Safeguarding Training and 48
Members of Staff have received Adult
Safeguarding Training during October
and November.
3. £ 3,652 has been secured through the
Awards for All BIG Lottery Programme
for Voluntary & Community Sector
Organisations across Babergh from
October through to December
supporting 5 individual organisations.
This is an independent external funding
stream opportunity, our officers provide
advice.
4. The Babergh Grant Programme has
awarded £ 151.90 to the Acton Good
Neighbour Scheme and £ 1,000 to the
Bildeston Parish Council.

1. Following conversations with Councillors,
partner organisations and staff and a formal
period of consultation, our Communities
Strategy was adopted in March.
2. We have helped to secure the £142,601
LEADER award to the Dedham Vale AONB
and the £50,000 Coastal Revival Fund award
to Shotley Pier. A successful funding event
was supported in Bildeston in February,
aimed at enabling communities to secure
funding for community projects from a range
of sources.
3. A review of the Assets of Community Value
process has been initiated to help streamline
procedures with our Shared Legal Service.
4. 76 older residents have been referred into
the Active Wellbeing programme in Year one
locations, Long Melford and Lavenham since
the project began in July 2018.

Appendix G

Main Achievements continued

Page 98

The Health and Wellbeing Team have
3. The Make, Do & Friends Project has
officially launched a new three-year joint commenced. Suffolk Artlink in partnership
project with Suffolk Sport.
with the Rural Coffee Caravan and Dance
East and supported by the Communities
team are delivering a high-quality outreach
programme led by artists. The programme
has secured Arts Council funding for two
years and has been designed for and coproduced with older people, particularly
those who are rurally isolated or lonely.
4. Lavenham is the most recent village to
form a local Dementia Action Alliance and
supported by the Health and Wellbeing
team held a successful launch event on18
July. It is actively supported by the Parish
Council and the local East of England CoOp. 5. Grants – a capital grant of £25,000
has been offered to the Stevenson Centre
in Great Cornard (overall project £89,000).
Section 106 funding of £16,000 has been
provided to projects including the purchase
of new open space in Cockfield, play
equipment in Lawshall and fencing at
Layham

5. As part of the Active Wellbeing
programme for older residents a
Loneliness and Social Isolation training
event was held in Long Melford with 11
participants taking part.
6. A new project supporting older
people in Hadleigh (including those living
with dementia) to improve their
wellbeing through music-making has
held four taster sessions across 4 older
people care settings in Hadleigh
engaging over 90 older residents .
7. Working in partnership with Public
health, the Health and Wellbeing team
convened a Parental Mental Health
Workshop on 18 October for stakeholder
organisations in the Babergh and Mid
Suffolk area.
8. The team has also supported
Lavenham to develop and launch their
Dementia Action Alliance (DAA).

5. We have worked with Gt Cornard Sports
Centre to ensure the successful GP exercise
on referral scheme continues to expand, with
45 people referred in the last quarter.
6. We have worked with the community in
Lavenham to establish a local Dementia
Action Alliance, which delivered 3 dementia
friends training sessions in the last quarter.
7. We have invested in an innovative new
programme, All Together Now to support
older people in Hadleigh, including those
living with dementia, through creative music
therapy managed by Orchestras Live and
Sinfonia Viva.
8. We have secured £36,400 from the
Heritage Lottery Fund for the Sudbury Stories
of Silk initiative. This project began in January
and will run until August 2019.

Appendix G

Impact on communities/ the way we Active Wellbeing is a bespoke approach 1.The Prostate Cancer Awareness event
to help people living in rural communities was well received by staff and feedback
work
who are physically inactive, into more
active lifestyles. The programme will also
support the development of new
activities, where they are needed, to help
older people to become and stay, active.
Active Wellbeing will initially work with
GP surgeries in Long Melford and
Lavenham.

Page 99

Key for trend graph:
l 2015/16
l 2016/17
l 2017/18
l 2018/19
target

Key:
n/a not applicable
n/av not available

received demonstrated a positive impact.
2. As a result of the Women on Wheels
events there has been an increase in the
membership of local cycling clubs in
Sudbury, Hadleigh and Boxford both of
which now have a women’s section. More
women cycling helps support our wider
aim of helping more people to stay active.
Some women and girls have also joined
Sudbury and District Triathlon Club.
3. Community engagement for the Make,
Do & Friends project started in September.
It is working with older people including
those living with dementia, and it is helping
to reduce rural isolation and loneliness .
4. By developing a network of local
dementia friends and engaging with local
businesses, Lavenham Dementia Action
Alliance is already making a positive
impact.
5.The Council’s grant aid programme
supports services and projects that benefit
our communities and align with our
strategic priorities.

The active wellbeing programme is
supporting increasing numbers of older
residents to improve their wellbeing by
becoming active and reducing social
isolation and loneliness.

The active wellbeing programme is
supporting increasing numbers of residents
to improve their wellbeing by becoming
active and reducing social isolation and
loneliness.

Appendix G

Strong and Safe Communities
Corporate Manager Sue Clements
Performance measure
SSC01 No. of volunteers utilised by
revenue funded organisations by the
council

Period
2018/19

Data
775

Target
2018/19 baseline
year

Council

Trend

Comments

Trend

Comments

Trend

Comments
Monetary amounts/projects funded have
been affected by increased due diligence and
project development, including visiting
project sites, encouraging improved
relationships with Parish Councils, utilising
existing S106 Developer Contributions
monies where possible, utilising Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and where
appropriate accessing external funding
sources.
Comments

BDC
Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Gill Hilder
Performance measure
SSC02 No. of volunteer hours utilised by
revenue funded organisations by the
council

Period
2018/19

Data
73,396

Target
2018/19 baseline
year

Council

BDC
Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Gill Hilder

Page 100

Performance measure
SSC03 Capital Funds awarded to
voluntary and communities sector as a
% of total project costs

Period
2018/19

Data
8.60%

Target
2018/19 baseline
year

BDC

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Gill Hilder

Performance measure
SSC04 Capital funding awarded (£)
against total project costs (£)

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Gill Hilder

Council

Period

Data

Target

2018/19

£57,043 was awarded
against total project
costs of £665,025

N/A

Council

BDC

Trend

This included in Qtr 4 support for Boxford
Playing Fields partial refurb of Pavilion and
Long Melford Community Sports Trust for
new build football and community facilities.

Appendix G
Performance measure
SSC05 % of staff having completed
safeguarding training (based on data at a
specific date annually)

Period
2018/19

Data

Target
100%

Council

Trend

Comments
This measure is currently under review as
with a turnover of staff (new starters and
staff leaving), we do not have a control
baseline to work from. During 2018/19 57
staff received Child Safeguarding training and
75 staff received Adult Safeguarding training.

Trend

Comments
This indicator is derived from the national
Active Lives Survey produced by Sport
England. The survey suggests that just over 3
in 5 adults are meeting the recommended
minimum level of physical activity. The most
recent Active Lives Survey covers the period
May 2017 to May 2018. The survey for May
2018 to May 2019 won’t be available until
around Feb 2020.

Both
Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Joshua Holmes

Health and Wellbeing
Corporate Manager Jonathan Seed
Performance measure
HW01 % of ACTIVE adults as measured
by the Active Lives Survey (Active
defined as more than 150 minutes of
moderate intensity exercise per week)

Period

Data

2015/16
2016/17
2017/18

61.1
60.5
61.8

Target

Council
70
60
50

Increase

40

BDC

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Jon Seed

30
20
10

Page 101

0
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Performance measure
HW02 The total number of new referrals
to the GP exercise on prescription
schemes which will include a breakdown
of:
a) Abbeycroft managed schemes
b) Other funded schemes

Period
2018/19
Qtr.2
Qtr.4

Data
a) 28 b) 39
a) 26 b) 45

Target
No target
currently set,
2018/19 is
baseline year.

Council

Trend

Comments
Our commissioned leisure services operator,
Abbeycroft and Gt Cornard Sports Centre
provide data for each quarter which will give
a baseline for 2018/19. Targets can then be
set for 2019/20 onwards. The Abbeycroft
figures include the sites they manage at
Hadleigh, Sudbury, East Bergholt and
Holbrook.

50
45
40

35
30
25

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Jon Seed

BDC

20
15
10
5
0
Qtr 2 201819
Abbeycroft

Qtr4 201819
Others

Appendix G
Performance measure
HW03 No. of new dementia friends
(Local Dementia Action Alliances)
The data represents combined numbers
from Lavenham and Hadleigh

Period
2018/19
Qtr.2
Qtr.4

Data
49
50

Target

Council

No targets are set by
Dementia Action
Alliances.

Trend
60
50
40

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Jon Seed

30

BDC
20
10
0
Qtr.2

Performance measure
HW04 No. of businesses signed up to
the national Dementia Declaration via a
local Dementia Action Alliance
The data represents combined numbers
from Lavenham, Eye and Hadleigh

Period
2018/19

Data

Target

33

No targets are set by
Dementia Action
Alliances.

Page 102

Trend

Comments
We work with villages and towns to help
them establish local Dementia Action
Alliances. Each DAA recruits local residents
and businesses to become dementia friendly.
We also enable them to deliver Dementia
Friends Workshops to communities and
provide support and information for
Dementia events. We also provide any
support and information for DAA events.
This year Lavenham DAA and Hadleigh DAA
have recruited over 30 local businesses to
become Dementia Friendly organisations.

Trend

Comments
76 clients have been referred into the Active
Wellbeing programme in the Year 1
locations, Long Melford and Lavenham since
the project began in July 2018. This is in line
with the annual target in the SLA of 75
referrals. The programme is making a
significant impact in these communities by
helping older people to become and stay
more physical active and connected to their
local community.

BDC

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Jon Seed

Performance measure
HW05 No. of inactive older people in the
target localities supported to become
more physically active through the
commissioned Active Wellbeing
Programme
Long Melford & Lavenham (cumulative)

Council

Qtr.4

Period
2018/19

Data

Qtr.2
Qtr.4

15
76

Target

Council

75
80

75
75

70
60
50

BDC

40
30

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Jon Seed

20
10
0
Qtr.2

Comments
We work with villages and towns to help
them establish local Dementia Action
Alliances. Each DAA recruits local residents
and businesses to become dementia friendly.
We also enable them to deliver Dementia
Friends Workshops to communities and
provide support and information for
Dementia events. In the last quarter
Lavenham DAA have delivered 3 dementia
friends training with between 15-20
attendees in each session. There were no
new friends for Hadleigh in Q4 but good
progress has been made throughout the year
as a whole.

Qtr.4

Appendix G
Performance measure
HW06 No. of live performing arts events
supported by Village Stage

Period
2018/19

Data
1

Target

Comments
The John Peel's Shed Performance delivered
at Glemsford Library attracted an audience of
48 people.

Trend

Comments
These events were held at the Wheelhouse,
Bildeston and attracted a total of 130
attendees.

BDC

Period
2018/19

Data
3

Target

Council

3

BDC
Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Zoey Banthorpe

Trend

3

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Zoey Banthorpe

Performance measure
HW07 No: of live community-based
arts events supported by The Inn Crowd

Council

Page 103

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix G

Environment and Commercial Partnerships
Assistant Director Chris Fry
The Environment and Commercial Partnerships teams provide the services and expertise to support our communities and businesses to
maintain a sustainable environment and meet the highest possible standards of environmental protection, food safety, energy
efficiency, built environment, heritage protection, waste management and grounds maintenance, street cleansing, arboriculture and
public conveniences.

Main Achievements

Page 105

April - June 2018

July - September 2018

October - December 2018

January - March 2019

• Additional 699 Garden Waste
customers in the first 3 months
• Material Recovery Facility
Procurement documentation
completed and advertised
• Recycling Officers attended
Hadleigh Show
• ‘Solar Suffolk Together’
launched
• Electric Vehicle point in
Hadleigh installed
• Suffolk Climate Change
Partnership successfully bid for
just under £2.8M from the Warm
Homes Fund
• 1445 Environmental enquiries,
complaints and consultations
dealt with

1 The location to plant a
memorial avenue of Oak
trees to commemorate
the end of the 1914-18
Great War has been
agreed. The avenue will
be planted in Beaumont
Park Hadleigh.
2 The Litter Innovation
Fund pilot period has
been extended into
September. Several
parish councils have
expressed an interest in
buying the special bins as
the new design is
encouraging more people
to place their rubbish in
the bins rather than
around them.

Ÿ aste Services - Growth in garden
W
subscribers continues to be a
success. Income growth on track.
ŸThe Commemoration of the
centenary of the Great War event
at Beaumont Park, Hadleigh saw 16
oak trees planted, this was well
attended with over 50 people
present
ŸMajor fly tipping prosecution
concluded after a prolonged
investigation that impacted both
districts at Finningham and Long
Melford, perpetrator in custody
awaiting sentencing.

Waste services - Garden waste
subscribers numbers continue to
rise. Business client base and
income steady. Missed bins well
within target.
The Council has installed a solar
photovoltaic array of around 35
panels on the roof of the South
Suffolk Business Centre, which will
generate around 9,000 kWh of
electricity a year and is predicted
to reduce carbon emissions by
around 91 tonnes over its 25 year
lifespan. The Council will also
receive income for the next 25
years from the 'Feed in Tariffs'
paid by Central Government.

Page 106

Main Achievements (continued)

Central Government gave local
authorities the opportunity to
bid for funding to combat
roadside littering. £10,000
funding was secured and the
project is supported by all 7
Suffolk local authorities, each
authority also put £500 into the
budget and agreed to pledge
officer time for monitoring.

Impact on communities / the way we
work

Support for local events and
continued expansion of garden
waste collection service is
enabling communities to recycle
and compost more waste and by
pursuing prosecutions for flytipping we are helping to protect
communities from illegal and
irresponsible behaviours.

Successful bid to Suffolk TCA fund
by Suffolk Building Control officers
for a 2 year business development
officer to improve the performance
of the local authority building
control.
Bakers Mill, Great Cornard
completion and opening of the
footpath

2 Initial feedback has
indicated that since the
level of rubbish in bins has
been monitored this has
greatly assisted in
deploying staff to areas of
need.

 The newly completed path
provides an extension of the
existing Cornard Riverside Path,
allowing residents and visitors to
enjoy more of the riverbank as well
as providing pedestrian access to
the River Stour Trust's Vistor and
Education Centre at Dovehouse
Meadow.

Building Control - 3 dangerous
structures attended, 1 of which
out of hours.
Food and Safety - the team
finished implementing the Animal
Welfare (Licensing of Activities
Involving Animals) (England)
Regulations 2018 which replaced 6
earlier pieces of licensing
legislation.
Conservation Area Appraisals have
been produced for Great
Waldingfield, Brent Eleigh and
Naughton, providing
Supplementary Planning Guidance
to assist in safeguarding the
character and appearance of the
conservation areas.

Key for trend graph:
l 2015/16
l 2016/17
l 2017/18
l 2018/19
target

Key:
n/a not applicable
n/av not available
highlighted measure, further detail in main report

Building Control
Corporate Manager Paul Hughes
Performance measure
BC01 No. of live cases for building control
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Paul Hughes

Page 107

Period
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target
n/av

154
161
143
155

Trend
200
150

n/av
136
141
130
166

Council

BDC

100
50
0

2017/18 2018/19

Comments
Construction activity appears to be
recovering with March showing a
big influx of applications. We
continue to monitor the situation
against Brexit and possible
legislative changes to the building
control system due to be
announced by the government in
late spring.

Performance measure
BC02 % of market share of building control
applications
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Paul Hughes

Period
2016/17
Qtr.1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target
n/av

Council

Trend
100%

70.90%
70.10%
69.50%
70.40%

90%
80%
70%

n/av
66.00%
62.00%
65.00%
63.00%

60%
50%

BDC

40%

Comments
Increased efforts on our
marketability with the
introduction of the Business
Development Officer post is
starting to impact on our market
share as well as a renewed focus
on digitising the building control
process thereby improving
efficiencies and service levels.

30%

60.00%
64.00%
68.00%

60%
60%
60%
60%

69.00%

60%

20%

10%
0%

16/17 17/18 18/19

Page 108

Waste Services
Corporate Manager Oliver Faiers
Performance measure
WS01 £ Overall income generated through
chargeable waste services (including
business waste) (cumulative total)
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Laura Sewell

Period
2016/17
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
£934,021
£1,071,057
£1,157,230
£1,234,283
£956,383
£1,142,859
£1,236,724
£1,314,492
£985,090
£1,180,485
£1,281,096
£1,369,736

Target
£1,142,369
£1,142,369
£1,142,369
£1,142,369
£1,142,369
£1,295,997
£1,295,997
£1,295,997
£1,295,997
£1,295,997
£1,380,000
£1,380,000
£1,380,000
£1,380,000
£1,380,000

Council

Trend
£1,600,000
£1,400,000

£1,200,000
£1,000,000

BDC

£800,000
£600,000

£400,000
£200,000
£0

16/17 17/18 18/19

Comments
Q3 figure adjusted as finance
advised upload to system after
figure provided. Although the
overall income was short of the
target set it did meet the
budgetary forecast.

Performance measure
WS02 % of household waste sent for reuse,
recycling or composting
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Laura Sewell

Period
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19

Data
42.60%
43.63%
41.95%
43.15%

Target

Council

44%
BDC

Trend
50.00%
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

Comments
Quarter 4 data is based on the
information available and will
updated with the full year data
once available.

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

Performance measure
WS03 Customer Satisfaction levels with
refuse collection service

Page 109

Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Laura Sewell

Period
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19

Data
86.10%
87.20%
92.90%
83.80%

Target

Council

Trend
100.00%

90%

Both

50.00%

0.00%

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

Comments
Drop in customer satisfaction
particularly in the Babergh area.
This appears to be in relation to
rounds not being completed and
work carried over to the next day
on a regular basis in some areas.

Performance measure
WS04 £ Income generated through
business waste services
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Laura Sewell

Page 110

Period
2015/16
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2016/17
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
£470,464
£4,922
£101
£2,241
£505,021
£20,173
£8,792
£4,233
£540,982
£9,174
£7,581
£1,083
£551,345
£6,167
£7,595
£3,007

Target
n/av

Council

Trend
600,000

500,000

477,728
n/av
400,000

538,219
n/av

BDC

300,000

200,000

558,820
£575,000

100,000

0

£568,114

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

Comments
Cumulative figure is plotted on
graph to show the final total
income generated.
Total income short of annual
target by £7k.

Performance measure
WS05 No.of business waste customers
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Laura Sewell

Page 111

Period
2015/16
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2016/17
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2017/18
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target
n/av

Council
1000

824
843
840
836

900
800

n/av
846
872
871
882

700
600

n/av
879
885
881
884
880
882
880
880

Trend

BDC

500
400
300
200

900
900
900
900
900

100

0

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

Comments
Client base stable.

Performance measure
WS06 No. of garden waste subscribers
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Laura Sewell

Page 112
Performance measure
WS07 Missed Bins - rate/100,000
collections (cumulative figure)
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Laura Sewell

Period
2015/16
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2016/17
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
Period
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target
n/av

Council

Trend

Comments
Performance above target.

15,000

12,100
12,257
12,283
12,413

14,500
14,000

n/av
12,695
12,985
12,963
13,127

13,500
13,000

n/av

BDC

13,378
13,567
13,563
13,567
14288
14281
14265
14347
Data
267
98
248
186
267
608
845
1195

12,500
12,000
11,500

14,200
14,200
14,200
14,200
14,200
Target
100
100
100
100
100
1500
1500
1500
1500

11,000
10,500

Council

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

Trend
1600
1400
1200
1000
800

Both

600
400
200
0

1500

2017/ 18

2018/19

Comments
The target for this measure has
been adjusted to take into account
all bin collections covering all bin
types. Figures are now provided
by Waste Services rather than
Serco. We have seen an increase
in the number of road closures,
and road works which has
impacted on bin collection. This
measure is a recognised method
for recording missed bins, and will
allow the councils to undertake
benchmarking in the future.

Food and Safety
Corporate Manager John Grayling
Performance measure
FS01 No. of interventions carried out in line
with the Food Safety Act Code of Practice

Period
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20

Data
908
1017

Target
924
778
953

Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: John Grayling

Council

Trend

Comments
Significantly more interventions
carried out as a result of reactive
work (follow up from
inspections and complaints)

1500
1000

Both

500
0
2017/18

Performance measure
FS02 % of food premises achieving 5 rating

Period
2018
2019

Data
64.13%
64.21%

Target
63.66%
64.20%

Council

Trend

Page 113

Comments
A marginal increase in the
proportion of 5 ratings signifies an
improvement in the standard of
food safety across the district.

80.00%
60.00%

BDC

Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: John Grayling

2018/19

40.00%
20.00%
0.00%
2018

2019

Sustainable Environment
Corporate Manager James Buckingham
Performance measure
SE01 No. of instances of fly tipping

Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Joanna Hart

Period
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
313
291
256
67
61
47
81

Target

n/a

Council

BDC

Trend

Comments
The reports of fly tipping come
from the public and we ensure
that these instances are cleared
within 2 working days. Please see
performance measure CRP04.

100
80
60
40
20
0
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Performance measure
SE02 No. of enforcement actions for fly
tipping e.g investigations, cautions,
prosecutions, penalty notices, warning
letters, vehicle stop and searches

Period
2016/17

Data

2017/18

78
36

2018/19

Target

Council

145

Trend
160

140

n/a

120

Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Corporate Manager: James Buckingham
Data Owner: Joanna Hart

100

BDC

80

60

40

Page 114

20

0
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Performance measure
SE03 No. of planning enforcement cases
referred to team
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Simon Bailey

Period
2017/18
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target
n/a

58
76
49
41

Trend
80
60

n/a
47
42
55
52

Council

BDC

40
20

0

2017/18 2018/19

Comments
The reduction in activity is partially
explained by the reduction in the
number of fly-tips since 2016/17 an 18.2% fall over the last 3 years.
The number of cases the
Environmental Protection team is
able to investigate (and therefore
the number of enforcement
actions it can take) is also
dependant on the number of
witness reports it receives from
the public and the number of
referrals received from Public
Realm of evidence having been
found in the waste at the time
they clear the waste. The removal
of a dedicated cleansing operative
for fly-tipping from the Public
Realm contract with Idverde
appears to have had a significant
impact in recent years.
Comments
For information only.

Performance measure
SE04 No: of planning enforcement
decisions resolved

Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Simon Bailey

Period
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target
n/a

39
83
50
42

Council

Trend
100

80
60

BDC

40
20
0

Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4

Performance measure
SE05 £Solar PV net income generated
Cabinet Member: Tina Campbell
Data Owner: Sharon Bayliss

Page 115

Period
2018/19
Qtr. 1
Qtr. 2
Qtr. 3
Qtr. 4

Data

Target
n/a

£74,277
£103,733
£125,470
£114,550

Council

BDC

Trend
£120,000
£100,000
£80,000
£60,000
£40,000
£20,000
£0
Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4

Comments
In considering the ‘balance’
between incoming work (SE03)
and work undertaken (SE04), it
should be noted that many cases
are carried forward from one
reporting period to the next or
entail complex investigations with
timeframes that span quarterly
periods.
Comments
Target to be developed. Please
note that due to variables outside
of our control, there will be an
impact on target/performance.
Variables include Right to Buy, the
weather and how dirty a solar
panel gets can all affect individual
performance therefore, impacting
the amount of income generated

Countryside and Public Realm
Corporate Manager Peter Garrett
Performance measure
CPR01 Incomed generated from Public
Realm as a % of expenditure
Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Mandy Hall

Period
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19

Data
17%
16%
16%

Target

Council

Trend
20%
15%

n/a
BDC

10%
5%

0%
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Comments
Figures as at 15.4.2019 a slight
adjustment may be made at year
end.
Income £706,909.54
Expenditure £1,831,367.69

Performance measure
CPR02 The amount of waste collected from
litter picks

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Peter Garrett

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
bags collected
180
140
50
75

Target

Council

No target these
are new
programmes
with baselines to
be established

Trend
200
150

BDC

100
50
0
Qtr.1

Performance measure
CPR03 No: of community litter picks
supported by council

Page 116

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Peter Garrett

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data
36
18
8
15

Target

Council

No target these
are new
programmes
with baselines to
be established

Cabinet Member: Margaret Maybury
Data Owner: Peter Garrett

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Trend

Comments
There has been a slight increase in
the number of litter picks over the
final quarter, as the weather
improves.

40
30

BDC

20
10
0
Qtr.1

Performance measure
CRP04 Average response time for fly
tipping from report to collection

Qtr.2

Comments
Counting the individual bags
collected is the only meaningful
measure. It would become too
complicated if individual items
were counted. The volunteers in
the main bag up the litter
collected but on occasion find
individual items that cannot be
removed in this way.

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target

Council

2 working days

1
1
1
1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Trend

Comments
There were 90 incidents of flytipping during quarter 4, of these
82% (74) were cleared within
48hrs.

3

2
2
2
2

2

BDC

1
0
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Appendix H

Economic Development & Regeneration
Interim Assistant Director Marc Cole
Main Achievements

April - June 2018
The Open for Business Team is
working with partners including the
New Anglia LEP to develop an
options appraisal for the Delphi site,
Sudbury.

July - September 2018
Resumed sole landlord responsibility
for South Suffolk Business Centre at
Alexandra Road, Sudbury (24 start-up
office units). Agreed transfer of 2 Lady
Street, Lavenham to Lavenham Parish
Council for Community Hub.

January - March 2019
Progressed projects to key milestones
including Delphi Industries site options
appraisal (Carter Jonas final refined draft
report on 5 options from retention of existing
site to mixed use schemes due by end April
2019). Also Tourism Sector Development
work and Visioning programme has
progressed well to point of Joint Officer
Delivery Group and resumed Sudbury
Steering Group. Traffic congestion relief
scheme also progressed as part of that.
Future High Streets Fund has been submitted
with outcome expected by Summer 2019.
Central Suffolk Chamber development launch
has taken place, with workplan now rolling
out. Sproughton Enterprise Zone work also
progressing with Ipswich Borough and NALEP.

Supporting local businesses and for
improved local services/infrastructure.
Collaborative working - shared delivery
plan and programme development. Local
leadership in place-making. Cost savings
with discontinuation of TIC and income
generation from capital receipt.

Progressing the visioning engagement
outcomes and linking those projects based on
community aspirations/feedback. Supporting
local businesses and for improved local
services/infrastructure. Collaborative working
- shared delivery plan and programme
development. Local leadership in placemaking. Supporting the Council's investments

Page 117

October - December 2018
Received completed options appraisal
report for Delphi site. Reached agreement
with Suffolk Libraries and other locations
for Visitor Information Point Network (8
locations by March 2019). Vision for
Prosperity progressed including
engagement events and set up of officer
delivery group. Supported Central Suffolk
Chamber of Commerce to launch March
2019. Finalised end of service Tourist
Information Centre including staffing
arrangements.

Impact on communities / the way we
work

Protect key employment site and
Supporting SME businesses and jobs.
jobs. Collaborative working including Local leadership demonstrated and
seeking investment opportunities.
partnering negotiations (small profit
making venture)

Key for trend graph:
l 2015/16
l 2016/17
l 2017/18
l 2018/19
target

Key:
n/a not applicable
n/av not available

Open for Business
Corporate Manager Lee Carvell
Performance measure
OFB01 No: Business Enquiries/Business
Assisted directly through the OfB
Team/Project Group

Page 118

Cabinet Member: Simon Barrett
Data Owner: Lee Carvell

Period
2018/19
Qtr.1
Qtr.2
Qtr.3
Qtr.4

Data

Target
n/a

Council

Trend

Comments
This measure reflects individual enquiries so
does not cover broader activity eg group
engagement, project work, business forums
etc. Some were direct into the team, some
were referred by partners. They are from a
variety of different sectors and scales and
matters included grant funding, business rate
relief enquiries, business support,
sites/relocation and growth/export and other
including problem/barrier solving requests.
This is the first data collection for this
measure and provides an initial baseline.

40

20
32
37
35

35
30
25

BDC

20
15
10
5

0
Qtr.1

Qtr.2

Qtr.3

Qtr.4

Agenda Item 11
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL

TO:

Cabinet

FROM:

Cabinet Member for
Customers, Digital
Transformation and
Improvement
John Snell – Corporate
Manager – Internal Audit

FROM:

REPORT NUMBER:

BCa/19/5

DATE OF MEETING: 13 June 2019

KEY DECISION REF NO. CAB114

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) – USE OF
LEGISLATION AND UPDATED POLICY
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To inform members about issues relevant to the use of RIPA and provide a refreshed
policy for approval.

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

The Codes of Practice that cover RIPA require the Councils to report the use of its
powers under the Act and require Cabinet notification for its policy on the use of RIPA.
This report fulfils the Councils’ requirements under the Code of Practice. There are
no alternative reporting or notification options under the Codes of Practice.

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The refreshed Joint RIPA Policy and the changes in respect of officer roles be
approved and the change in the judicial oversight in the United Kingdom noted.
REASON FOR DECISION

3.2

The Protection of Freedoms Act requires members to be advised about the use of
powers under RIPA and to note the Councils’ policy for the use of surveillance.

4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

The attached refreshed Joint RIPA Policy is a high-level document capturing the key
elements of the legislation.
Background

4.2

On 25th September 2000 RIPA was brought into effect in England and Wales. The
purpose of the Act was to ensure that all public authorities were able to carry out
directed (covert) surveillance on a statutory basis without breaching The Human
Rights Act 1998, Article 8, the right to privacy providing specified procedures are
followed. Under RIPA the Home Secretary issues Codes of Practice with which
authorising authorities are expected to comply.

Page 119

4.3

On 1st November 2012, the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 came into effect. This
legislation requires local authorities to obtain judicial approval before using RIPA.
Since this date, all applications must also be authorised by a Justice of the Peace
before they can take effect and the Council has to apply to the Magistrates Court to
grant an order approving the authorisation.

4.4

On the 1st September 2017, The Office of Surveillance Commissioners, The
Intelligence Services Commissioner’s Office and The Interception of
Communications Commissioner’s Office were abolished by the Investigatory Powers
Act 2016. The Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) is now
responsible for the judicial oversight of the use of direct (covert) surveillance by public
authorities throughout the United Kingdom.

4.5

The two Legal officers responsible for acting as the Councils’ Senior Responsible
Officer and RIPA Co-ordinator left the organisation when the Shared Legal Service
was formed. Although it is very unlikely for the Councils to use RIPA, as confirmed
by each Council’s nil statistical return over the past years, there was a recognition
that the existing Joint RIPA Policy should be refreshed and the key roles re-assigned
to appropriate officers.

4.6

A report was recently presented to the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and the key
roles of the Senior Responsible Officer, RIPA Co-ordinating Officer and Authorising
Officers have now been assigned, details of which can be found in Appendix 1 of the
attached Joint RIPA Policy.
Performance Monitoring and Training

4.7

The IPCO have adopted a more flexible approach to the arrangements for inspections
of local authorities as it has become apparent in recent years for a variety of reasons,
which have included reduced resources, greater access to data-matching and overt
rather than covert law enforcement, that most authorities have granted fewer or no
recent surveillance requests.

4.8

An appropriate form of inspection is therefore dependent of the Councils’ current level
of compliance, which may result in:

4.9



No visit by an inspector is necessary on this occasion;



Further information or documentation is required before a final decision
about a visit is made; or



A visit will be undertaken.

On 2nd November 2018 the IPCO advised that based on the information provided the
Councils have demonstrated a level of compliance that removes, for the present, the
requirement for a physical inspection (Note: the last inspection was carried out in
2015). The IPCO noted that the draft Joint Policy document being presented today
was clear and generally comprehensive; and importantly that an all training session
had been organised (the training day took place on 13th November 2018 – see
paragraph 4.11), which put the Councils in a position to be able to apply the Act in a
lawful and efficient way if the need arose.

Page 120

4.10

SLT have nominated the Assistant Director Law & Governance and Monitoring
Officer, as the Senior Responsible Officer whose is responsible for the integrity of the
process in place within the Councils and compliance with the Home Office Codes of
Practice. The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit has been nominated as the RIPA
Co-ordinating Officer who is responsible for the management and oversight of
surveillance requests and authorisations under RIPA.

4.11

RIPA training was undertaken on 13th November 2018 and attended by key officers
and appropriate operational officers in service areas where covert surveillance could
be requested. The one-day training course provided officers with an understanding
of the legal regime imposed under RIPA.

5.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

5.1

The Joint RIPA Policy links to legislative compliance which is mandatory and this
Cabinet is responsible for supporting good governance arrangements and practices
across the Councils, which underpin the Councils’ strategic plan and operational
workings.

6.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work of the key
officers and service areas to undertake directed surveillance and comply with RIPA
legislation is contained and managed within the relevant services’ revenue budgets.

7.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The Legal issues have been set out in the body of the Policy.

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1

This report is most closely linked with the Council’s Significant Business Risk No. 5f
– The Council may be perceived to be untrustworthy and have a poor reputation. Key
risks are set out below:
Risk Description

Likelihood

Failing to comply with the
Unlikely (2)
requirements of RIPA may
entail legal and reputational
risks for the Councils.
Prosecution cases may well
fail if the law has not been
applied correctly and Human
Rights may be breached. It is
also likely that the IPCO
would criticise the Council for
the failure to comply and
may lead to direct
recommendations from this
office.

Page 121

Impact

Mitigation
Measures

Bad (3)

Mitigation to all
these risks involve
having
experienced
officers in this field
with regular
returns to the
governing body
i.e. IPCO, and
appropriate
training for all
relevant officers.

9.

CONSULTATIONS

9.1

The SLT and the Service Manager for Shared Legal Services have been consulted
in the preparation of this report.

10.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

10.1

When using RIPA legislation, the Council will be required to demonstrate a strong
commitment to equality and fairness in their actions and work practices, and
adherence to the Equality Act 2010.

11.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1

When using RIPA legislation, the Council will need to be mindful/aware of any
environmental implications.

12.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Joint RIPA Policy

Attached

Page 122

CORPORATE PROCEDURES DOCUMENT
ON
THE REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000
(RIPA)

Document Control
Document ownership
Local of document
Document review period
Document approval
Enquiries about this document

Senior Responsible Officer
Council website and internet
Every 12 months
Cabinet
Senior Responsible Officer/RIPA
Co-ordinating Officer

Document History
V Description of document or amendment
Date
1 Original document
July 2012
2 Full refresh of Joint Policy and changes to February 2019
key officers

0|Page
Page 123

CONTENTS PAGE
Page No
A Introduction and Key Messages

2

B Roles and Responsibilities

3

C General Information on RIPA

6

D Types of Surveillance

8

E Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS)

14

F Acquisition of Communications Data

15

G Authorisation Procedures

18

H Working with / through Other Agencies

22

I Record Management

23

J Training

24

K Review of this Policy and the Councils’ activities

24

L Concluding Remarks

25

Appendix 1 – List of key officers
Appendix 2 – Link to Home Office forms
Appendix 3 – Magistrate’s Authorisation Procedure

1|Page
Page 124

A. INTRODUCTION AND KEY MESSAGES
1. This document sets out the policy and procedures adopted by Babergh and
Mid Suffolk District Councils based upon the requirements of The Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (‘RIPA’). This policy should be read in
conjunction with the Home Office Codes of Practice on covert surveillance and
covert human intelligence sources; acquisition and disclosure of
communications data, and any guidance issued by the Investigatory Powers
Commissioners Office (IPCO) (formally the Office of Surveillance
Commissioners – OSC).
2. For the purpose of this update, references to the Home Office Codes of
Practice relate to the latest versions which were issued in August 2018 in
relation to covert surveillance and covert human intelligence sources; and 2016
in relation to the acquisition and disclosure of communications data.
The Home Office Codes of Practice can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/home-office/series/ripa-codes
3. Where reference is made in this document to the Senior Responsible Officer
(SRO) this means the Assistant Director – Law & Governance and Monitoring
Officer, whose duties are set out in Section B.
4. Similarly, where reference is made in this document to the RIPA Co-ordinating
Officer this means the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit, whose duties are
set out in Section B.
5. Councillors have a role to play in reviewing the Council’s use of RIPA to ensure
that it is being used consistently with this procedure document. They will also
ensure that the policy is fit for purpose. However, councillors will not be
involved in making decisions on individual authorisations.
6. The authoritative position on RIPA is, of course, the Act itself and any officer
who is unsure about any aspect of RIPA should, if unsure, contact, at the
earliest possible opportunity the SRO or the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer
before any request is formally made.
7. Appropriate training and development (including refresher training) will be
provided or arranged by the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer for Authorising Officers
and Investigating Officers.
8. The RIPA Co-ordinating Officer will maintain and check the Central Register of
all RIPA Authorisations, Reviews, Renewals, Cancellations and rejections. It is
the responsibility of the relevant Authorising Officer, however, to ensure the
RIPA Co-ordinating Officer receives the originals of the relevant Forms within 1
week of authorisation, review, renewal, cancellation or rejection.
9. RIPA and this Policy are important for the effective and efficient operation of
the Councils’ actions with regard to covert investigations. This Policy will,
therefore, be kept under annual review by the SRO. Authorising Officers
2|Page
Page 125

must bring any suggestions for continuous improvement of this Policy to
the attention of the SRO at the earliest possible opportunity. If any of the
Home Office Codes of Practice change, this Policy will be amended in light of
these changes.
10. In terms of internal monitoring of e-mails and internet usage, it is important to
recognise the important interplay and overlaps with the relevant Council’s email and internet policies, the Telecommunications (Lawful Business Practice)
(Interception of Communications) Regulations 2000, and the General Data
Protection Regulations (GDPR) 2018. Under normal circumstances, the
Councils’ e-mail and internet policies should be used, as any surveillance is
likely to be more relevant under the contract of employment terms as opposed
to RIPA.
11. This August 2018 update includes the changes to RIPA brought about by the
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012. This includes judicial approval of all covert
surveillance carried out by local authorities and restricting use of directed
surveillance to serious criminal offences.
12. At no time should the Council undertake any surveillance that interferes
with any private property. Placing tracking devices on a subject’s vehicle
or person is not authorised for local authorities and must not be used.
13. The Councils take seriously its statutory responsibilities and will, at all
times, act in accordance with the law and take necessary and
proportionate action in investigation matters.
14. It should be noted that any use of activities under RIPA will be as a last
resort and Councils’ policy is not to undertake such activities unless
absolutely necessary.
15. Before any action is contemplated it is strongly advisable that early
consultation with the Authorising Officer or Co-ordinating Officer is
undertaken to ensure all actions are fully considered.
B. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (see also Appendix 1)
Senior Responsible Officer (SRO)
1. The role of SRO will be undertaken by the Councils’ Assistant Director for Law
& Governance and Monitoring Officer.
2. In accordance with good practice the SRO will be responsible for:


The integrity of the process in place within the Councils for the
management of Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS);



Compliance with Part 2 of the Act and with the Home Office Codes of
Practice;

3|Page
Page 126



Oversight of the reporting of errors to the relevant Commissioner and
the identification of both the cause(s) of errors and the implementation
of processes to minimise repetition of errors;



Engagement with the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office
(IPCO) inspectors when they conduct their inspections, where
applicable; and



Where necessary, oversight of the implementation of post-inspection
action plans approved by the relevant oversight Commissioner.

Authorising Officers
3. It is essential that Authorising Officers take personal responsibility for the
effective and efficient operation of this Policy. Authorising Officers are listed in
Appendix 1. They can be added to or substituted by the SRO.
4. The SRO has and will ensure that a sufficient number of Authorising Officers
are, after suitable training on RIPA and this Policy, duly authorised to take
action under this Policy.
The Authorising Officers must ensure the following:


That staff who report to them follow this Policy and do not undertake or
carry out any form of surveillance without first obtaining the relevant
authorisations in compliance with this Policy.



Pay particular attention to Health and Safety issues that may be raised
by any proposed surveillance activity. Under no circumstances should
an Authorising Officer approve any RIPA form unless, and until they are
satisfied the health and safety of Council employees/agents are suitably
addressed and/or risks minimised, so far as is possible, and
proportionate to/with the surveillance being proposed. If an Authorising
Officer is in any doubt, they should obtain prior guidance on the same
from the Council’s Health & Safety Manager and/or the SRO.



Acquaint themselves with the relevant Codes of Practice issued by the
Home Office regarding RIPA and ensure that the original forms are sent
to the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer in a sealed envelope marked ‘Strictly
Private & Confidential’. Forms must be provided to the RIPA Coordinating Officer within 1 week of signing by the Authorising Officer.
Any failure to comply exposes the Council to unnecessary legal risks
and criticism from the IPCO. Any cancellations must be dealt with
promptly.



Proper regard is had to necessity and proportionality of the
surveillance before any forms are signed. ‘Stock phrases’ or cut and
paste narrative must be avoided at all times as the use of the same may

4|Page
Page 127

suggest that insufficient detail had been given to the particular
circumstances of any person likely to be the subject of the surveillance.
Any equipment to be used in any approved surveillance must also be
properly controlled, recorded and maintained for audit purposes.
5. There are enhanced authorisation levels for directed or intrusive surveillance
by public authorities when knowledge of confidential or privileged
information is likely to be acquired (see the Covert Surveillance Code 2018
Chapters 5 and 9, and Annex A). In such cases the surveillance authorisation
must be signed by the Councils’ Chief Executive as failure to do so may
invalidate the admissibility of any evidence obtained.
6. Each of the Authorising Officers can authorise applications, for onward
consideration by a Magistrate. Each Authorising Officer may authorise
renewals and cancellations, and undertake reviews, in relation to any
investigation carried out, or proposed to be carried out, by officers. Authorising
Officers may not sub-delegate their powers in relation to RIPA to other
officers.
7. The officer who authorises a RIPA application should also carry out the review,
renewal and cancellation. If the original Authorising Officer is not available to
undertake the review, renewal or cancellation, this can be undertaken by any
other Authorising Officer.
RIPA Co-ordinating Officer
8. The appointed RIPA Co-ordinating Officer shall:

Have overall responsibility for the management and oversight of
requests and authorisations under RIPA;



Issue a unique reference number to each authorisation requested under
RIPA (this must be before the application has been authorised);



Retain a copy of the application and authorisation together with any
supplementary documentation and notification of the approval given by
the Authorising Officer.



Maintain a central RIPA records file matrix entering the required
information as soon as the forms/documents are received in accordance
with the relevant Home Office Code of Practice.



Review and monitor all forms and documents received to ensure
compliance with the law and guidance and this policy and procedures
document and informing the Authorising Officer of any concerns;



Chase failures to submit documents and/or carry out
reviews/cancellations;

5|Page
Page 128



Be responsible for organising a corporate RIPA training programme;



Ensure corporate awareness of RIPA and its value as a protection to the
Councils is maintained; and



Produce an annual position statement on the Councils’ use of RIPA to
the Cabinet.

Councillors
9. Members of the Councils’ Cabinet will note the RIPA policy and thereafter
following any significant changes to working practices and receive an annual
position statement on the Councils’ use of RIPA.

C. GENERAL INFORMATION ON RIPA
1. The Human Rights Act 1998 requires the Council, and organisations working
on its behalf, pursuant to Article 8 of the European Convention, to respect the
private and family life of citizens, their home and their correspondence.
2. The European Convention did not, however, make this an absolute right, but a
qualified right. Accordingly, in certain circumstances, the Council may interfere
in the citizen’s right mentioned above, if such interference is:(a) in accordance with the law;
(b) necessary for the prevention and detection of crime or
preventing disorder; and
(b) proportionate (as defined in this Policy).

3. RIPA provides a statutory mechanism (i.e. ‘in accordance with the law’) for
authorising covert surveillance and the use of a ‘covert human intelligence
source’ (‘CHIS’) – e.g. undercover agents. However, the Councils are
reluctant to use CHIS as an investigatory tool, and if any such application is
contemplated prior advice must be sought from the SRO or the RIPA Coordinating Officer. RIPA also permits local authorities to compel
telecommunications and postal companies to obtain and release
communications data to themselves, in certain circumstances. It seeks to
ensure that any interference with an individual’s right under Article 8 of the
European Convention is necessary and proportionate. In doing so, the RIPA
seeks to ensure both the public interest and the human rights of individuals are
suitably balanced.
4. Directly employed Council staff and external agencies working for the Council
are covered by RIPA for the time they are working for the Council. All external
agencies must, therefore, comply with RIPA and the work carried out by
6|Page
Page 129

agencies on the Councils’ behalf must be properly authorised by one of the
Councils’ Authorising Officers.
5. If the correct procedures are not followed, evidence may be disallowed by the
courts, a complaint of maladministration could be made to the Local
Government Ombudsman, and/or the relevant Council could be ordered to pay
compensation. Such action would not, of course, promote the good reputation
of the Council and will, undoubtedly, be the subject of adverse press and
media interest. It is essential, therefore, that all involved with covert
investigations comply with this Policy and any further guidance that may be
issued, from time to time, by the SRO.
6. The Councils treat the powers given to it under RIPA very seriously and
expects Authorising Officers and the investigating officers to do so. Failure to
adhere to this Policy by Authorising Officers or the investigating officers may
result in disciplinary action being taken against them by the Council.
7. Social Networking Sites and Internet Sites
Whilst it is the responsibility of an individual to set privacy settings to protect
against unsolicited access to their private information on a social networking
site (e.g. Facebook, Twitter, Instagram etc. – refer to the OSC’s Procedures
and Guidance – paragraph 289 refers), and even though the data may be
deemed published and no longer under the control of the author, it is unwise to
regard it as ‘open source’ or publicly available; the author has a reasonable
expectation of privacy if access controls are applied. Where privacy settings
are available but not applied the data may be considered open source and an
authorisation is not usually required.
The Councils need to give consideration to 3.4 of the new Code of Practice for
covert surveillance and property interference which states, “Whilst a person
may have a reduced expectation of privacy when in a public place, covert
surveillance of that person’s activities in public may still result in the obtaining
of private information. This is likely to be the case where that person has a
reasonable expectation of privacy even though acting in public and where a
record is being made by a public authority of that person’s activities for future
consideration or analysis. Surveillance of publicly accessible areas of the
internet should be treated in a similar way, recognising that there may be an
expectation of privacy over information which is on the internet, particularly
where accessing information on social media websites.”
If it is necessary and proportionate for the Councils to covertly breach access
controls, the minimum requirement is an authorisation for directed surveillance.
An authorisation for the use and conduct of a CHIS is necessary if a
relationship is established or maintained by the officer (i.e. the activity is more
than mere reading of the site’s content). This could occur if an officer covertly
asks to become a ‘friend’ of someone on a social networking site.
8. A flowchart of the procedure for Magistrates’ approval of surveillance
operations is at Appendix 3.
7|Page
Page 130

D. TYPES OF SURVEILLANCE
1. ‘Surveillance’ includes


monitoring, observing, listening to persons, watching or following their
movements, listening to their conversations and other such activities or
communications.



recording anything mentioned above in the course of authorised
surveillance.



surveillance, by or with, the assistance of appropriate surveillance
device(s).

Surveillance can be overt or covert.
2. Overt Surveillance
Most of the surveillance carried out by the Councils will be done overtly – there
will be nothing secretive, clandestine or hidden about it. In many cases, officers
will be behaving in the same way as a normal member of the public (e.g. in the
case of most test purchases), and/or will be going about Council business
openly (e.g. food and safety inspections).
3. Similarly, surveillance will be overt if the subject has been told it will happen
e.g. where a noisemaker is warned (preferably in writing) that noise will be
recorded if the noise continues, or where an entertainment licence is issued
subject to conditions, and the licensee is told that officers may visit without
notice or identifying themselves to the owner/proprietor to check that the
conditions are being met.
4. Covert Surveillance
Covert Surveillance is carried out in a manner calculated to ensure that the
person subject to the surveillance is unaware of it taking place (Section 26(9)
(a) of RIPA). It cannot, however, be “necessary” if there is reasonably available
an overt means of finding out the information desired.
5. RIPA regulates three types of covert surveillance: Directed Surveillance,
Intrusive Surveillance and the use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources
(CHIS).
6. Directed Surveillance is surveillance which:

is covert;



is not intrusive surveillance (see definition below – the Council must
not carry out any intrusive surveillance or any interference with
private property);

8|Page
Page 131



is not carried out in an immediate response to events which would
otherwise make seeking authorisation under the Act unreasonable,
e.g. spotting something suspicious and continuing to observe it;



is pre-planned; and



is undertaken for the purpose of a specific investigation or
operation in a manner likely to obtain private information about an
individual whether or not that person is specifically targeted for
purposes of an investigation (Section 26(10) of RIPA).

7. Private information in relation to a person includes any information relating to
their private and family life, their home, their correspondence and their
business relationships. The fact that covert surveillance occurs in a public
place or on business premises does not mean that it cannot result in the
obtaining of private information about a person. Prolonged surveillance
targeted on a single person will undoubtedly result in the obtaining of private
information about them and others that they come into contact, or associate,
with.
8. Similarly, although overt town centre CCTV cameras do not normally require
authorisation, if the camera(s) are to be directed for a specific purpose to
observe particular individual(s), authorisation will be required. The way a
person runs their business may also reveal information about their private life
and the private lives of others.
9. The use of CCTV must be accompanied by clear signage in order for any
monitoring to be overt. If it is intended to use CCTV for covert monitoring, for
example by using either hidden cameras or without any signs warning that
CCTV is in operation, then RIPA authorisation is likely to be required as
mentioned above.
Note 272 of the OSC’s 2016 Procedures & Guidance document:
272. It is recommended that a law enforcement agency should obtain a written
protocol with a local authority if the latter’s CCTV system is to be used for
directed surveillance. Any such protocol should be drawn up centrally in order
to ensure a unified approach. The protocol should include a requirement that
the local authority should see the authorisation (redacted if necessary to
prevent the disclosure of sensitive information) and only allow its equipment to
be used in accordance with it.
10. For the avoidance of doubt, Authorising Officers for the purpose of RIPA
can authorise ‘Directed Surveillance’ if, and only if, the RIPA
authorisation procedures detailed in this Policy are followed.
Authorisation can only be granted if it is necessary for the purposes of
investigating serious crimes (as defined in Section G – paragraph 9).

9|Page
Page 132

11. Intrusive Surveillance
This is when the surveillance:

is covert;



relates to residential premises and / or private vehicles; and



involves the presence of a person in the premises or in the vehicle or
is carried out by a surveillance device in the premises/vehicle.
Surveillance equipment mounted outside the premises will not be
intrusive, unless the device consistently provides information of the
same quality and detail as might be expected if they were in the
premises/vehicle.

Surveillance of a place ordinarily used for legal consultation; at a time when
they are being used for such consultations is also a form of intrusive
surveillance.
12. Areas of a building that are readily visible and accessible to the public are not
residential premises. For example, a communal stairway, canteen, reception
area, driveway, front garden and so on.
13. Intrusive Surveillance cannot be carried out or approved by the Councils.
Only the police and other law enforcement agencies are permitted to use
such powers. Likewise, the Councils have no statutory powers to
interfere with private property.
14. When considering directed surveillance the following basic points to consider
are:
Element type
Is it surveillance?
Is it covert?

Is it a specific investigation or
operation?

Consideration
Are you monitoring/observing the
activities/movements of people etc?
Are you doing it in a way designed to
ensure the person is unaware that
surveillance is or may be taking place?
Overt CCTV systems in the town
centre are usually ok, but even they
can be used covertly if targeting a
specific person/group to
record/monitor their activities etc.
Town centre CCTV is not usually used
for general prevention/detection of
crime purposes rather than for a
specific investigation (e.g. in relation to
a particular individual/group) or a
specific operation (e.g. targeting a

10 | P a g e
Page 133

Are you likely to obtain private
information?

Is it preplanned?

hotspot such as an area known for
anti-social behaviour or fly-tipping)
This area is a bit vague but probably
quite wide.
It’s not just private information about
the suspect but also anyone else.
It extends beyond personal
relationships and includes professional
relationships.
Private information can include
personal data like names, telephone
numbers, addresses etc.
Recording people’s movements and
activities (even in public places) for
future analysis or consideration.
If this surveillance was an immediate
response to something that was not
reasonably foreseeable then you won’t
fall within the definition of directed
surveillance.

15. “Proportionality”
Proportionality involves balancing the intrusiveness of the activity on the target
subject and others who might be affected by it against the need for the activity
in operational terms. Consider the expected benefit to the investigation of the
surveillance. The activity will not be proportionate if it is excessive in the
circumstances – each case will be judged and be unique on its merits – or if
the information which is sought could be reasonably be obtained by other less
intrusive means. All such activity must be carefully managed to meet the
objective in question and must not be arbitrary or unfair. Extra care should also
be taken over any publication of the product of the surveillance.
When authorising covert surveillance, the following elements of proportionality
should therefore be considered:


balancing the size and scope of the proposed activity against the
gravity and extent of the perceived crime or offence;



explaining how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the
least possible intrusion on the subject and others;



considering whether the activity is an appropriate use of the
legislation and a reasonable way, having considered all reasonable
alternatives, of obtaining the necessary result including overt
methods of evidence gathering; and

11 | P a g e
Page 134



evidencing, as far as reasonably practicable, what other methods
had been considered and why they were not implemented.

16. Examples of different types of Surveillance
Type of
Surveillance
Overt

Examples
Police Officer or Parks Warden on
patrol
Signposted Town Centre CCTV
cameras (in normal use).
Recording noise coming from outside
the premises after the occupier has
been warned that this will occur if the
noise
persists.
Most test purchases (where the officer
behaves no differently from a normal
member of the public).

Covert but not
requiring prior
authorisation

CCTV cameras providing general
traffic, crime or public
safety information.

Directed must be
RIPA authorised

Covert CCTV cameras at a fly-tipping
hotspot.
Covert and targeted following of a
benefit claimant who is
suspected of failing to declare earnings
from a job.

Intrusive or
interfering with
private property –
the Council cannot
do this!

Planting a listening or other electronic
device (bug) or camera in a person’s
home or in / on their private vehicle
or on their person.
Surveillance of a place used for legal
consultations.

17. Further Information on different types of surveillance can be found in the
Home Office Code of Practice on Covert Surveillance:
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/home-office/series/ripa-codes

12 | P a g e
Page 135

18.Confidential Information
Special safeguards apply with regard to confidential information relating to
legal privilege, personal information, journalistic material and confidential
constituent information. Only the Chief Executive, or in his absence an
appointed deputy, can authorise surveillance likely to involve confidential
information. The investigating officer must understand that such information is
confidential and cannot be obtained. Further guidance is available in the Home
Office Codes of Practice: https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/homeoffice/series/ripacodes
19. Is the proposed surveillance discriminatory?
The Councils are under a legal obligation to avoid either direct or indirect
discrimination in carrying out their functions. As surveillance can interfere with
rights contained in the European Convention on Human Rights, discrimination
can also amount to a breach of the HRA. The Councils need to be sensitive to
this issue and ensure that they apply similar standards to seeking or
authorising surveillance regardless of ethnic origin, sex or sexual orientation,
disability, age etc. They should be alert to any assumptions about people from
different backgrounds which may not even be consciously held.
20. Collateral Intrusion
Before authorising surveillance, the Authorising Officer should also take into
account the risk of intrusion into the privacy of persons other than those who
are directly the subjects of the investigation or operation (known as collateral
intrusion). Measures should be taken, wherever practicable, to avoid or
minimise unnecessary intrusion into the lives of those not directly connected
with the investigation or operation.
21. Those carrying out the surveillance should inform the Authorising Officer if the
investigation or operation unexpectedly interferes with the privacy of
individuals who are not covered by the authorisation. If the original
authorisation is sufficient, consideration should be given to whether the
authorisation needs to be amended and re-authorised or a new authorisation
is required. Further guidance is available in the Home Office Code of Practice.
22. Retention and destruction of product of surveillance
Where the product of surveillance could be relevant to pending or future
criminal or civil proceedings, it should be retained in accordance with
established disclosure requirements for a suitable period and subject to
review.
There is nothing in RIPA which prevents material obtained from properly
authorised surveillance from being used in other investigations. Authorising
Officers must ensure, therefore, that arrangements are in place for the
handling, storage and destruction of material obtained through the use of
covert surveillance. Authorising Officers must also ensure compliance with the
13 | P a g e
Page 136

appropriate GDPR requirements and any relevant codes of practice produced
by the Councils relating to the handling and storage of material.

E. COVERT HUMAN INTELLIGENCE SOURCE (CHIS)
1. Who is a CHIS?
This is someone who establishes or maintains a personal or other relationship
for the covert purpose of using that relationship to obtain information. This
would include, for example, a situation where a Council officer establishes a
relationship with another person through social media, even where there is no
physical contact with the CHIS. However, a CHIS does not apply in
circumstances where members of the public volunteer information to the
Councils as part of their normal civic duties, or to contact numbers set up to
receive information (e.g. benefit cheat hotlines).
THE COUNCIL IS RELUCTANT TO USE CHIS, AND IF AN OFFICER IS
CONTEMPLATING THE USE OF THIS TYPE OF SURVEILLANCE HE/SHE
MUST OBTAIN PRIOR ADVICE FROM THE SRO OR RIPA COORDINATING OFFICER. HOWEVER, THE COUNCIL DOES RECOGNISE
THAT CIRCUMSTANCES MAY ARISE THAT MAKE THE USE OF A CHIS
NECESSARY AS AN INVESTIGATIVE TOOL.
In order to mitigate the risk of a CHIS arising inadvertently during the course of
an investigation the Councils will ensure that Authorising and investigating
officers are trained in the identification of a CHIS as part of corporate training
on RIPA.
Management of a CHIS
Always seek advice from the SRO or the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer prior to
authorising a CHIS. In all cases, prior to authorising a CHIS a risk assessment
must be undertaken in relation to the source. A CHIS may only be authorised
if there will at all times be an officer (referred to as the handler) within the
Councils who will have day to day responsibility for dealing with the source on
behalf of the Councils in order to protect both the security of the source. The
handler is normally the Investigating Officer. In addition, another officer must
be appointed (known as the controller) who will have general oversight of the
use made of the source. This person is normally the investigating officer’s line
manager. Lastly, an officer must be identified to maintain certain prescribed
records (as specified in the codes of practice) of the use made of the source.
Special requirements apply to the use of a vulnerable individual or a juvenile
as a CHIS. Before considering the authorisation of such a person the
Authorising Officer must seek legal advice from the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer
or the SRO.

14 | P a g e
Page 137

2. Test Purchases
Carrying out test purchases will not require the purchaser to establish a
relationship with the supplier with the covert purpose of obtaining information
and, therefore, the purchaser will not normally be a CHIS. For example,
authorisation would not normally be required for test purchases carried out in
the ordinary course of business (e.g. walking into a shop and purchasing a
product over the counter).
By contrast, developing a relationship with a person in the shop, to obtain
information about the seller’s suppliers of an illegal product would require
authorisation as a CHIS.
3. Anti-social behaviour activities (e.g. noise, violence, race etc.)
Persons who complain about anti-social behaviour, and are asked to keep a
diary, will not normally be a CHIS, as they are not required to establish or
maintain a relationship for a covert purpose. Recording the level of noise (e.g.
the decibel level) will not normally capture private information and, therefore,
does not require authorisation.
Recording sound (with a DAT recorder) on private premises could constitute
intrusive surveillance, unless it is done overtly. For example, it will be possible
to record if the noisemaker is warned that this will occur if the level of noise
continues. Placing a stationary or mobile video camera outside a building to
record anti-social behaviour on residential estates will require prior
authorisation.
If the sound recording equipment is so sensitive that it can record
conversations as if you were in the room, this would be intrusive surveillance
and cannot be authorised under RIPA. The noisemaker shall be warned so
that it can be overt surveillance.
F. ACQUISITION OF COMMUNICATIONS DATA
What is Communications Data?
1. Communication data means any traffic or any information that is or has been
sent over a telecommunications system or postal system, together with
information about the use of the system made by any person.
2. RIPA defines communications data in three broad categories: (a) Section 21(4) (c) Information about communications service users.
This category mainly includes personal records supplied to the
Communications Service Provider (CSP) by the customer/subscriber. For
example, their name and address, payment method, contact number etc.
(b) Section 21(4) (b) Information about the use of communications
services.
15 | P a g e
Page 138

This category mainly includes everyday data collected related to the
customer’s use of their communications system. For example, details of the
dates and times they have made calls and which telephone numbers they
have called.
(c) Section 21(4) (a) Information about communications data (traffic
data).
This category mainly includes network data generated by the CSP relating
to a customer’s use of their communications system that the customer may
not be aware of. For example, cell site data and routing information.

3. The Councils only have power to request data under Section 21(4) (b) and
Section 21(4) (c) but NOT Section 21(4) (a).
What types of communications data is available to the Councils?
4. Section 21(4)(c) - Information about communications service users


Name of account holder/subscriber;



Installation and billing address;



Method of payment/billing arrangements;



Collection/delivery arrangements for a PO Box (i.e. whether it is
collected or delivered – not where it is collected from or delivered to);



Other customer information such as any account notes, demographic
information or sign up data (not passwords or personalised access
information).

5. Section 21(4)(b) - Information about the use of communications services


Outgoing calls on a landline telephone or contract or prepay mobile
phone



Timing and duration of service usage;



Itemised connection records;



E-mail logs (sent);



Information about the connection, disconnection and re-connection
of services;



Information about the provision of conference calling, call
messaging, call waiting and call barring;

16 | P a g e
Page 139



Information about the provision and use of forwarding/redirection
services (postal and telecom);



Records of postal items, such as records of registered, recorded or
special delivery postal items, records of parcel consignment, delivery
and collection.

What Purpose Can Communications Data Be Accessed?
6. The Councils can only access communications data for the prevention and
detection of crime or preventing disorder (Section 22(2) (b) of RIPA).
Applying for Communications Data
7. The Investigating Officer must complete an application form
(https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/home-office/series/ripa-forms-2) in full with no sections omitted. (The form is subject to inspection by the
Interception of Communications Commissioner and the applicant may be
asked to justify their application).
8. Two forms of authorisation are possible: (a) An authorisation under Section 22(3) of RIPA. This authorises the applicant
to personally extract the data from the CSP’s records. (This will rarely be
used by the Councils as its intended use is where there may be a security
breach at the CSP and asking the CSP to provide the data would forewarn
or alert the subject).
(b) A notice under Section 22(4) of RIPA requiring the CSP to extract the
communications data specified from its records and to send that data to
the Single Point Of Contact (SPOC) (normal request).
The applicant must indicate which authorisation they seek.
9. The application form is then submitted to the SPOC for the Council, which is
the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN).
10. The idea of only having one point of contact for each public authority was
agreed between the Home Office and the CSP’s to ensure data was only
supplied to those entitled to obtain the data. Only the SPOC can acquire
communications data on behalf of the Council.
11. The SPOC will then assess whether the form is completed properly, that the
request is lawful, the request is one to which the CSP can practically respond
and that the cost and resource implications for the CSP / Council are within
reason.
12. The SPOC will then submit the form to the Authorising Officer for authorisation.
(As previously stated, the application form is subject to inspection by the

17 | P a g e
Page 140

Interception of Communications Commissioner and therefore the Authorising
Officer may be called upon to justify any decisions made).
13. The application must then be approved by a Magistrate. The Investigating
Officer should liaise with the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer to obtain this
authorisation.
14. The RIPA Co-ordinating Officer will arrange a hearing with the Court to seek
the Magistrate’s approval. They should provide the Court with the application
form and supporting information. The investigating officer will be required to
attend Court with the Councils’ solicitor to seek the Magistrate’s approval.
15. Guidance on the procedure for seeking Magistrate’s approval can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/changes-to-local-authority-use-ofripa
16. If the application is rejected by either the SPOC or the Magistrates, the SPOC
will retain the form and inform the applicant in writing of the reasons for its
rejection.
17. Once authorised by the Magistrates, the SPOC will forward the application to
the CSP.
18. Once the data sought is returned to the SPOC, a copy of the information will be
passed to the applicant.
19. All original documents will be retained by the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer.
20. There are a number of other administrative forms that the SPOC’s are obliged
to complete as the application is progressed, although these will not
necessarily involve the Investigating Officer.
21. Authorisations to collect communications data under s22 (3) have a life span of
one month. However, they can be renewed by serving a new authorisation or
notice for further months, within any time within the current life of the notice.
Magistrates would need to approve any renewal.
22. If you are at all unsure about anything to do with acquiring communications
data, please contact the SPOC, the SRO or the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer for
advice before applying.
G. AUTHORISATION PROCEDURES
1. Directed surveillance can only be lawfully carried out if properly authorised, and
in strict accordance with the terms of the authorisation.
2. All RIPA surveillance authorisations (i.e. Directed Surveillance and the
acquisition of Communications Data) must be approved by a Magistrate before
they take effect.
18 | P a g e
Page 141

Authorising Officers
3. RIPA Forms can only be signed by Authorising Officers.
4. Authorisations under RIPA are separate from delegated authority to act under
the relevant Councils’ Scheme of Delegation. All RIPA authorisations are for
specific investigations only, and must be reviewed, renewed or cancelled once
the specific surveillance is complete or about to expire. The authorisations do
not lapse with time! The Authorising Officer must ensure that an
authorisation is cancelled as soon as it is no longer required.
Training Records
5. Appropriate training will be given (or approved) by the RIPA Co-ordinating
Officer before Authorising Officers are certified to sign any RIPA Forms.
6. If the SRO feels that an Authorising Officer has not complied fully with the
requirements of this Policy, or the training provided to them, she is duly
authorised to retract that officer’s authorisation until they have undertaken
further approved training.
Application Forms
7. Only the Home Office approved RIPA forms must be used. Any other forms
used, will be rejected by the Authorising Officer and/or the RIPA Co-ordinating
Officer. All the RIPA forms can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/home-office/series/ripa-forms--2
Grounds for Authorisation
8. Acquisition of communications data can only be authorised by the Councils on
the grounds of preventing/detecting crime/disorder. No other grounds are
available to local authorities.
9. Directed Surveillance can only be authorised for investigating serious criminal
offences. ‘Serious’ means criminal offences that are punishable, whether on
summary conviction or on indictment, by a maximum term of at least 6 months
of imprisonment. Serious criminal offences would include dangerous waste
dumping and serious or serial benefit fraud. We cannot carry out Directed
Surveillance for offences that would only result in a fine or less than sixth
month’s imprisonment, such as littering or dog fouling.
Assessing the Application Form
10.Before an Authorising Officer signs an application form, they must:(a)

Be mindful of this Policy, the training provided or facilitated by the RIPA
Co-ordinating Officer and any other guidance issued, from time to time,
by the SRO or the Home Office on such matters.

19 | P a g e
Page 142

(b)

Satisfy themselves that the RIPA authorisation is:(i) in accordance with the law;
(ii) necessary in the circumstances of the particular case and on the
grounds of preventing or detecting crime or preventing disorder;
(iii) for directed surveillance, it must be necessary for the investigation of
a serious criminal offence; and
(iv) proportionate to what it seeks to achieve (see comments in Section
D).

(c)

In considering necessity, remember that the surveillance must be
necessary for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime or of
preventing disorder. There should be details of the crime(s) relied
upon in the application form. In addition you need to ensure that
the crime attracts a custodial sentence of a maximum of 6 months
or more, or involves an offence under section 146, 147 or 147A of
the Licensing Act 2003. Authorising Officers also need to
demonstrate that there were no other means of obtaining the same
information in a less intrusive way.

(d)

In assessing whether or not the proposed surveillance is proportionate,
an Authorising Officer should consider the following:(i)

balance the size and scope of the proposed surveillance against
the gravity and extent of the perceived crime or offence;

(ii)

will the surveillance method to be used cause the least possible
intrusion on the target and others?

(iii)

is the surveillance an appropriate use of RIPA and a reasonable
way, having considered all reasonable alternatives, of obtaining
the evidence? And

(iv)

what other methods of evidence gathering have been considered
and why were they not used?

(e)

Always remember that the least intrusive method will be considered
proportionate by the courts.

(f)

Take into account the risk of intrusion into the privacy of persons other
then the specified subject of the surveillance (Collateral Intrusion).
Measures must be taken wherever practicable to avoid or minimise (so
far as is possible) collateral intrusion and the matter may be an aspect
of determining proportionality.

20 | P a g e
Page 143

(g)

Set a date for review of the authorisation and review on that date using
the relevant form. Authorisations for directed surveillance should be
reviewed at least once a month.

(h)

Ensure that the originals of all RIPA forms (applications, review,
renewal and cancellation) are forwarded to the RIPA Co-ordinating
Officer, within 1 week of the relevant authorisation, review,
renewal, cancellation or rejection.

(i)

In the case of notices relating to communications data, these will be
kept by the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer.

(j)

If unsure on any matter, obtain advice from the SRO or the RIPA
Co-ordinating Officer before signing any forms.

Magistrate’s Approval
11. After the Authorising Officer has signed the RIPA application form, it must be
approved by a Magistrate before the operation can commence. The
Investigating Officer should liaise with the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer to seek
this authorisation.
12. The RIPA Co-ordinating Officer will arrange a hearing with the court to seek
the Magistrate’s approval. They should provide the court with the RIPA
application form (signed by the Authorising Officer) and supporting
information. The Investigating Officer and Authorising Officer will be required
to attend court with the Council’s Solicitor to seek the Magistrate’s approval.
13. Guidance on the procedure for seeking Magistrate’s approval can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/changes-to-local-authority-usefripa
Duration
14. The RIPA authorisation must be reviewed or renewed in the time stated or
cancelled once it is no longer needed. Authorisation to carry out Directed
Surveillance lasts for a maximum of 3 months from authorisation. However,
whether the surveillance is carried out/conducted or not, in the relevant period,
does not mean the authorisation is ‘spent’. In other words, the authorisation
does not expire! The authorisation has to be reviewed, renewed and/or
cancelled once it is no longer required.
15. Magistrate’s approval is required to renew an authorisation. There is no
requirement for Magistrates to consider either cancellations or internal reviews.
16. Notices/Authorities issued under s22 compelling disclosure of communications
data are only valid for one month but can be renewed for subsequent periods
of one month, at any time. Again, Magistrate’s approval will be required for a
renewal.
21 | P a g e
Page 144

17. Authorisations can be renewed in writing before the maximum period in the
Authorisation has expired. The Authorising Officer must consider the matter
afresh, including taking into account the benefits of the surveillance to date,
and any collateral intrusion that has occurred. Magistrate’s approval will then
be required.
18. An Authorisation cannot be renewed after it has expired. In such event, a fresh
application will be necessary.
H. WORKING WITH / THROUGH OTHER AGENCIES
1. When another agency has been instructed on behalf of the Council to
undertake any action under RIPA, this Policy and the Home Office approved
application forms must be used (as per normal procedure) and the agency
advised or kept informed, as necessary, of the various requirements. They
must be explicitly made aware what they are authorised to do.
2. When another agency (e.g. Police, DWP, Trading Standards, etc):(a) wish to use the Councils’ resources (e.g. CCTV surveillance systems), that
agency must use its own RIPA procedures and, before any Officer agrees
to allow the Councils’ resources to be used for the other agency’s
purposes, they must obtain a copy of that agency’s RIPA form for the
Councils’ record (a copy of which must be passed to the RIPA Coordinating Officer for the Central Register) or relevant extracts from the
same which are sufficient for the purposes of protecting the Council and the
use of its resources;
(b) wish to use the Councils’ premises for their own RIPA action, and is
expressly seeking assistance from the Councils, the Officer should,
normally, co-operate with the same, unless there are security or other good
operational or managerial reasons as to why the Councils’ premises should
not be used for the agency’s activities. Suitable insurance or other
appropriate indemnities may be sought, if necessary, from the other agency
for the Councils’ cooperation in the agent’s RIPA operation. In such cases,
the Council does not require its own RIPA form as the Council is only
‘assisting’ not being ‘involved’ in the RIPA activity of the external agency.
3. In terms of 2(a) above, if the Police or other Agency wish to use Council
resources for general surveillance, as opposed to specific RIPA operations, an
appropriate letter requesting the proposed use, extent of remit, duration, who
will be undertaking the general surveillance and the purpose of it must be
obtained from the Police or other Agency before any Council resources are
made available for the proposed use.
4. If in doubt, please consult with the SRO or the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer
at the earliest opportunity.

22 | P a g e
Page 145

I. RECORD MANAGEMENT
1. The Council must keep a detailed record of all Authorisations, Reviews,
Renewals, Cancellations and Rejections for each respective service area.
A Central Register of all Authorisation Forms will be maintained and
monitored by the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer. All original forms
(Authorisation, Review, Renewal, Cancellation) must be sent to the RIPA
Co-ordinating Officer as soon as practicable.

2. Records maintained in the Service Area
The following documents must be retained by the relevant Assistant Director (or
their designated administrator) for such purposes:


a copy of all RIPA forms together with any supplementary
documentation and notification of the approval given by the
Authorising Officer;



a record of the period over which the surveillance has taken place;



the frequency of reviews prescribed by the Authorising Officer;



a record of the result of each review of the authorisation;



a copy of any renewal of an authorisation, together with the
supporting documentation submitted when the renewal was
requested;



the date and time when any instruction was given by the Authorising
Officer; and



the Unique Reference Number for the authorisation (URN).

Central Register maintained by the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer
3. Each form will have a unique reference number (URN). The RIPA Co-ordinating
Officer will issue the relevant URN to Applicants. The cross-referencing of each
URN takes place within the forms for audit purposes. Rejected Forms will also
have URN’s.
4. Authorising Officers must forward a copy of every completed RIPA form to the
RIPA Co-ordinating Officer for the Central Register, within 1 week of the
Authorisation, Review, Renewal, Cancellation or Rejection. The RIPA Coordinating Officer will monitor the same and give appropriate guidance, from
time to time, as necessary.

23 | P a g e
Page 146

5. The Council’s will retain records for a period of at least three years from the
ending of the Authorisation. The IPCO can audit/review the Councils’ policies
and procedures, and individual Authorisations, Reviews, Renewals,
Cancellations and rejections.
J. TRAINING
1. Appropriate corporate training will be arranged by the RIPA Co-ordinating
Officer for all officers likely to make applications or authorise them.
2. The RIPA Co-ordinating Officer will ensure suitable training is in place for all
members of staff who undertake an enforcement role. This may be by way of
an external trainer; briefing to officers or an e-learning module. Managers of
enforcement teams must ensure new staff undertake RIPA training within six
months of their starting date.
3. Authorising Officers must receive regular training as described above.
4. The cost of such external training should be met from the budget of the
individual service areas affected.
5. No officer will be permitted to undertake the role of the Authorising Officer
unless they have undergone suitable training approved by the RIPA Coordinating Officer.
K. Review of this Policy and the Councils’ activities
1. This Policy will be regularly reviewed by the Senior Responsible Officer and the
RIPA Co-ordinating Officer in relation both to legal developments and for the
purpose of monitoring practice and procedure.
2. Members of the Councils’ Cabinet will approve the RIPA Policy on an annual
basis or before if there are any significant legal developments impacting on the
Councils.
3. Members will also receive the following information:
Information to be provided
The number of RIPA authorisations
requested and granted
The number of joint operations
where RIPA authorisation has been
sought and granted by another
authority
The number of times social
networking sites have been viewed
in an investigatory capacity

24 | P a g e
Page 147

Frequency
Annual report
Annual report

Annual report

L. CONCLUDING REMARKS
1. Where there is an interference with the right to respect for private life and family
guaranteed under Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights, and
where there is no other source of lawful authority for the interference, or if it is
held not to be necessary or proportionate to the circumstances, the
consequences of not obtaining or following the correct authorisation procedure
set out in RIPA and this Policy, may be that the action (and the evidence
obtained) will be held to be unlawful by the Courts pursuant to Section 6 of the
Human Rights Act 1998.
2. Obtaining an authorisation under RIPA and following this Policy will ensure,
therefore, that the action is carried out in accordance with the law and subject
to stringent safeguards against abuse of anyone’s human rights.
3. Authorising Officers will be suitably trained and they must exercise their
minds every time they are asked to consider a RIPA form. They must
never sign or rubber stamp forms without thinking about their own
personal and the Council’s responsibilities.
4. Any boxes not needed on the form(s) must be clearly marked as being
‘NOT APPLICABLE’, ‘N/A’ or a line put through the same. Great care must
also be taken to ensure accurate information is used and is inserted in the
correct boxes. Reasons for any refusal of an application must also be kept on
the form and the form retained for future audits.
5. For further advice and assistance on RIPA, please contact the SRO or the RIPA
Co-ordinating Officer.

25 | P a g e
Page 148

Appendix 1
Responsible Officers
Senior Responsible Officer
Emily Yule

Post Held
Assistant Director – Law &
Governance and Monitoring Officer

RIPA Co-ordinating Officer
John Snell

Post Held
Corporate Manager – Internal Audit
(and Deputy Monitoring Officer)

Authorising Officers
Arthur Charvonia
Tom Barker

Post Held
Chief Executive
Assistant Director – Planning for
Growth
Assistant Director - Housing

Gavin Fisk

Appendix 2
For the latest forms please go to this link:
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-forms--2

Appendix 3
26 | P a g e
Page 149

Magistrate’s Court Authorisation Procedure

27 | P a g e
Page 150

Agenda Item 12
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL

BCa/19/6

TO:

Cabinet

REPORT NUMBER:

FROM:

Cabinet Member for
Customers, Digital
Transformation &
Improvement

DATE OF MEETING: 13 June 2019

John Snell, Corporate
Manager – Internal Audit
Claire Crascall, Audit & Risk
Management Services

KEY DECISION REF NO. CAB146

OFFICERS:

END OF YEAR RISK POSITION STATEMENT AND PROGRESS REPORT AND REVISIONS
TO RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The attached report details movements of Significant Risks up to 31 st March 2019,
revisions to the Risk Management Strategy and the work undertaken around risk
management processes since April 2018.

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

Risk management as an activity must accomplish the following tasks: identify and agree
objectives; identify risks and assess (i.e.: Treat, Transfer, Tolerate or Terminate the
risk); allocate risk owners; manage and control and monitoring and reporting.

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

That the contents of this report, supported by Appendix A, B and C, be approved.
REASON FOR DECISION

To provide assurances that risk management processes in place are robust and effective.
4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

This report details movements of Significant Risks up to 31st March 2019 (see Appendix
A) and the work undertaken around risk management processes since April 2018.

4.2

There are currently 27 risks on the register, of these risks; 16 are scored as medium,
9 as high and 2 as very high.

4.3

The risk register has been enhanced to now include Target Scores. These scores are
based on the successful completion of actions in the ‘Further Actions/Comments’
column as seen in Appendix A. The tables below demonstrate the movement of risk
scores from Original to Current and also detail the anticipated Target score derived as
above. Also, below is a brief update on outstanding actions for each risk, this should
be read in conjunction with the register and risk matrix (Appendix A and B).

Page 151

Key:

Low score
(1-3)

Medium score
(4-6)

Score increased

High score
(8-9)

Score stayed the same

(since previous qtr)

(since previous qtr)

V. High score
(12-16)

Score decreased
(since previous qtr)

Theme 1 – Housing Delivery

5.1

current scores
Original scores
Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities / AD - Housing

Objective 1: Housing Delivery

Impact / Consequence

1a

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

1b, 1c,
1d, 1e

Noticeable
/Minor

2

1a

Minimal

1

1b
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores
Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities / AD - Housing

Impact / Consequence

Objective 1: Housing Delivery

Disaster

1c

4
1b, 1c,
1d, 1e

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

1a

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

1d

Probability / Likelihood

Target scores
Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities / AD - Housing

Impact / Consequence

Objective 1: Housing Delivery

Disaster
Bad/Seri
ous
Noticeab
le /Minor
Minimal

4
3

1b, 1c,
1d

2

1a, 1e

1e

1
1

2

3

4

Highly
Highly
Unlikely Probable
Unlikely
Probable
Probability / Likelihood

Page 152

Risk: We may not have an up to date
understanding of housing need and
demand.
Further Action(s): Joint Local Plan for
consultation; Support for Local Housing
Needs Surveys.
Risk: We may not have a sufficient,
appropriate supply of land available
in the right
locations.
Further Action(s): Joint Local Plan for
consultation; Continue to endeavour to
unblock 'stalled sites' – with support
from Navigus Planning.
Risk: We may be unable to meet the
Governments new Housing Delivery
test.
Further
Action(s):
Developing
relationships with Developers; Working
on Infrastructure Strategy; Navigus
appointed to bring forward delivery.
Risk: Development may be stifled
and/or unsustainable
Further Action(s): Creating Local Plan
Infrastructure Delivery Plan; Working
closely with infrastructure providers;
Review of Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL).
Risk: There may be an insufficient
local supply to appropriate homes
for the ageing population.
Further Action(s): Implementation of
Homes and Housing Strategy Action
Plan; Development of Housing Action
Plan; Development of a BDC/MSDC
Older Person Strategy.

5.1.1 There have been no changes to current scores since the previous report.
Theme 2 – Business Growth and Increased Productivity

5.2

current scores
Original scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 2: Business Growth &
Increased Productivity
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

2a

Owner: AD - Economic
Development & Regeneration

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

2a, 2b, 2c

2d

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

2b

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 2: Business Growth &
Increased Productivity
Disaster

Owner: AD - Economic
Development & Regeneration

2c

4
2a, 2b,
2c, 2d

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

2d

Probability / Likelihood

Target scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 2: Business Growth &
Increased Productivity
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

Owner: AD - Economic
Development & Regeneration

Risk: We may not understand the
needs and aspirations of our
businesses.
Further Action(s): Develop close
relationships with new Central Suffolk
Chamber of Commerce Board
Members; Establish Visitor Economy
Sub Group of Board.
Risk: We fail to deliver on the
aspirations articulated in the Vision
for Prosperity.
Further Action(s): Develop Future
High Street capital bids.
Risk: We fail to deliver on the
aspirations articulated in the Vision
for Prosperity.
Further
Action(s):
Establish
Stowmarket Steering Group to guide
Vision
of
Prosperity
Delivery
Programme; Develop Future High
Street capital bids.
Risk: We may not identify and
provide the right amount of
employment land and property in
the right places.
Further Action(s):
Complete
Stowmarket
Technology
Hub
feasibility study.

2a, 2b,
2c, 2d

1

2

3

4

Highly
Highly
Unlikely Probable
Unlikely
Probable
Probability / Likelihood

5.2.1 There have been no changes to current scores since the previous report.

Page 153

Theme 3 – Community Capacity

5.3

current scores
Original scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 3: Community Capacity
Building and Engagement
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

3a

Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities

3a

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Risk: We may not be able to help
communities
become
more
sustainable.
Further
Action(s):
Formal
mechanisms agreed to consult on
Local Plan; Engagement with key
Town
Councils;
Direct
officer
engagement
with
communities;
Creation of Delivery Plan in
association with Community Strategy.

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 3: Community Capacity
Building and Engagement
Disaster

Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities

4

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

3a

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Highly
Probable
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Target scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 3: Community Capacity
Building and Engagement
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities

3a

1

2

3

4

Highly
Highly
Unlikely Probable
Unlikely
Probable
Probability / Likelihood

5.3.1 There have been no changes to current scores since the previous report.

Page 154

Theme 4 – Assets and Investments

5.4

current scores
4a

Original scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 4: Assets and Investments
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

Owner: AD - Assets and
Investments and AD - Housing
4a

4d
4b, 4c

4b

1
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Highly
Probable
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 4: Assets and Investments
Disaster

Owner: AD - Assets and
Investments and AD - Housing

4c

4

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

Risk: We may be unable to meet
the income projections for the
Councils.
Comments: Revised Business Plan
being prepared for approval.

4a, 4b

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

4c, 4d

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

4d

Probability / Likelihood

Risk: The affordable homes
programme does not achieve the
forecast returns on investment.
Further Action(s): Agree project
plans for the site development of the
HQ sites.
Risk: We may not manage our
asset portfolio effectively.
Further
Action(s):
Asset
Management Plan being prepared;
Data project to cleanse data; Staff
recruitment exercise.
Risk:
Income and Capital
projections
and
economic
outcomes may not be delivered.
Further
Action(s)/Comments:
Developing Delivery Model.

Target scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 4: Assets and Investments
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

Owner: AD - Assets and
Investments and AD - Housing

4a, 4b,
4c, 4d

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

5.4.1 One risk from theme 4 was removed in quarter 3. ‘We may fail to deliver the
financial projection set out within the BMBS business plan’ All associated
risks are now captured within the operational risk register and there is a revised
business plan. This Business Plan has now moved from profit to net cost of
service.
5.4.2 All current scores for the remaining risks, remain unchanged.
Page 155

5.5

Theme 5 – An Enabled and Efficient Organisation
current scores
Original scores

5a

Objective 5: An Enabled and Efficient
Organisation

Owner: Various
5c, 5d

Disaster

4

5j (MSDC)

5d (BDC),
5g

(MSDC)

5j (BDC)
Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

5a, 5b,
5e, 5i, 5k

5f, 5h

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

5b

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores
Objective 5: An Enabled and Efficient
Organisation
Disaster

4

Owner: Various

5c
5c, 5j (BDC) 5d (BDC),
5d (MSDC)
5g

5j (MSDC)

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1
1

5b, 5e, 5i,
5k

5a, 5f,
5h

2

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

5d
MSDC

Probability / Likelihood

5d
Objective 5: An Enabled and Efficient
Organisation

Disaster

4

5j (MSDC)

Owner: Various

BDC
5d (MSDC),
5d (BDC),
5g, 5j
(BDC)

Bad/Serious

3

5a, 5b,
5c, 5i, 5f

Noticeable
/Minor

2

5e, 5k

Minimal

1
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

5h

5e

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Page 156

Risk: We will not transform, and
become more efficient using IT.
Further Action(s):
HR Training
programme including IT skills; Training
underway for applications such as
PowerBI; Developing actions from
Partnership review; Developing ICT
Strategy with SCC IT.
Risk: Our data sources will not be
reliable.
Further Action(s): Data cleanse
ongoing; Joining up and reconciling
various databases; Plans to reconcile
HR database with Payroll system.
Risk: We may not deliver a robust
HRA business plan.
Further Action(s):
Review of
scenarios in light of removal of HRA
borrowing
cap;
Train
Housing
Management staff to embed new
business model. Modelling of Business
Plan to support council house build
programme.
Risk: We may be unable to respond
in a timely and effective way to
financial demands.
Further Action(s): Identifying options
over next 4 years under Review,
Remodel and Reinvent.
Risk: We will be unable to
successfully target and provide our
services.
Further Action(s): Prototyping other
forms of customer service; Undertaking
lean review across all services of
transactional processes.

current scores
Risk: The Councils may be perceived to be untrustworthy and have a poor
reputation.
Further Action(s): Values and Behaviours Natural Work Team ongoing; 4 year
rolling Member Development Programme roll out following elections May 2019;
Recruitment to Comms Team.

5f

Risk: The safety, health, welfare and wellbeing of individuals may be
compromised.
Further Action(s): Annual review of H&S Policy; Service Areas to complete Risk
Assessments; H&S Training programme; Review of IOSH Managing Safely course;
Lone working IT solution to be rolled out to Members; Review of H&S action plan;
Ending Violence at Work Charter standards to be met.

5g

Risk: Rent arrears will increase.
Further Action(s)/Comments: Developing Income Management Policy; Changes
to Universal Credits benefit; CAB taking responsibility from UC Financial Advisors;
Review of Income Management Strategy and its outcomes.

5h

Risk: There may be staff shortages within service areas
Further Action(s)/Comments: Developing People Strategy and action plan;
Revision of current Recruitment Policy and development of toolkit.

5i

5j

MSDC

Risk: The Councils may not be financially sustainable
Comments: Work on exploring alternative structural models for both Councils is
currently on hold.

5j

BDC

Risk: We may not be as efficient as we need to be, including the use of new
technologies
Further Action(s): Actions identified from recent staff survey; Other practices
planned e.g. daily meetings / target setting / target tracking / rewards and
recognition; Microsoft TEAM sites and mobile phone technology enabling remote
working and regular comms.

5k

5.5.1

There have been no changes to current scores since the previous report.

Page 157

5.6

Current scores for all Significant Risks have been plotted on the matrix below to provide
an overview of levels of risks across the five themes:

Impact / Consequence

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

5c,
5j (BDC),
5d (MSDC)

5j (MSDC)

1b, 1c, 1d, 1e,
2a, 2b, 2c, 2d,
4a, 4b, 5b, 5e,
5i, 5k

5d (BDC), 5g

3a, 4c, 4d, 5a,
5f, 5h

1a

1

2

3

4

Highly Unlikely

Unlikely

Probable

Highly Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Operational Risks:
5.7

Risk registers are now in place for all service areas and the Risk Officer prompts the
update of these on a quarterly basis and oversees that this is done. More time has been
allocated to the Risk Officer helping ensure these registers are of a better, more
consistent quality going forward into 19/20. In addition, the introduction of a
performance measure relating to completion of operational registers is being devised
which will enable closer monitoring and reporting of this process on a monthly basis.

Project Risks:
5.8

Project risk registers are beginning to be created and provided to the Risk Officer for
uploading to the Connect site along with the Significant and Operational registers.
Project Managers and Corporate Managers will need to work together to highlight links
between Operational risks and Project risk registers. This will help further embed the
risk process at operational level and highlight areas where there is cross over into
different service areas.

Other work:
5.9

The Audit and Risk Management Services team continue to work with report authors
offering guidance and assistance with capturing and recording the appropriate risks and
scores in Committee/Cabinet reports. The creation and maintenance of the operational
and project risk registers assist with this process enabling officers to identify relevant
risks. Once reviewed, reports are ‘signed off’ before submission to ensure correct use
of risk wordings and scorings.

Page 158

5.10 The annual review of the Risk Management Strategy has been undertaken and is
attached at Appendix C. Minor revisions have been made to the risk matrix which now
includes more detailed descriptors for impact/consequence on the risk matrix, enabling
the risk owner to determine the appropriate impact rating. The example risk register at
the end of the document has also been updated to reflect the new format of reporting
which includes a target score. Finally, the wording in the risk appetite section of the
Strategy has slightly altered to acknowledge that due to the nature of services provided
‘one size’ does not fit all (Operational/Service Delivery Risk).
5.11 Lastly, plans have been made to slightly amend future risk reporting dates to ensure
they align with both performance and finance reports thus enabling Councillors to gain
the ‘full picture’ at the same meeting. The frequency of reporting remains unchanged.
The half year report for all three areas will be presented to Cabinet in December.
6.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

6.1

The Joint Strategic Plan and the Work Programme to deliver it covers all of the service
delivery and development activity planned to be undertaken across both Councils in the
next five years. The way we manage key corporate risk is therefore intrinsic to this
strategy and plan of work, and will be embedded in each key activity, project and
programme.

7.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

8.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.

9.

RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1

As set out in the body of this report.

10.

CONSULTATIONS

10.1

Risk owners were consulted on their relevant risks.

11.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required.

12.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1

N/A

Page 159

13.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Significant Risk Register

Attached

(b) Risk Matrix

Attached

(c) Risk Management Strategy

Attached

Authorship:
Claire Crascall
Audit and Risk Management Officer

Tel: 01449 724570
Email: claire.crascall@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk

Sponsor:
John Snell
Corporate Manager – Internal Audit

Tel: 01473 296336
Email: john.snell@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk

Page 160

Appendix A
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK SIGNIFICANT RISK REGISTER - MARCH 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

2

3

6

1 - HOUSING DELIVERY
CAUSE:

Having the right evidence base e.g.
making use of Suffolk Housing Need
Survey and existing Local Housing Need
Surveys.

If we do not have the
appropriate evidence base
RISK:
RISK
1a

We may not have an up to date
understanding of housing need
and demand

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

2

6

CONSEQUENCE(S):
We will not know if we are
addressing and delivering the
housing need and demand

Published the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment as part of evidence base for
Joint Local Plan. Assessment as part of
evidence base for Joint Local Plan.
Creating Joint Local Plan. Creating
Housing Strategy.

2

2

4

Stayed the
same

Creating Joint Local Plan - next
stage due for consultation.

June 2019

Page 161

Support for Local Housing Needs
Surveys (6 completed to date)

Ongoing

New Joint Local Plan with
comprehensive site allocations
currently being drafted - due for
consultation.

June 2019

Continue to endeavour to unblock
'stalled sites'. Navigus Planning are
engaged to help unblock stalled
sites.

May 2019

Housing Strategy created and approved
by Full Council.

CAUSE:
If planning permissions are not
granted for deliverable
schemes

Current local plans in place, call for sites
undertaken.

RISK:
RISK
1b

We may not have a sufficient,
appropriate supply of land
available in the right locations
CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may be unable to meet
housing needs in the district.
The reputation of the Councils
may be impacted

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Current land supply for MSDC - 5.06
years, BDC - 6.7 years unblock 'stalled
sites'. Navigus Planning are engaged to
help unblock stalled sites. Current land
supply for MSDC - 6.5 years, BDC - 6.7
years

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

RISK
1c

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

CAUSE:
If development does not come
forward in a timely way or sites
become stalled
RISK:
We may be unable to meet the
Governments new Housing
Delivery test
CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may be unable to deliver
the right housing in the right
locations.

Current scores

I

S

L

I

3

9

2

3

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Have Infrastructure and Delivery Officer
in post.
3

Further Actions / Comments

6

Approach to unblocking stalled sites
which has been agreed by Cabinet.

Stayed the
same

Develop relationships with
Developers e.g. client side panel
hosted by Development
Winter 19/20
Management. Working on
Infrastructure Strategy and working
Suffolk-wide to understand
infrastructure funding and delivery.
Additional resources provided in
Mid Suffolk to bring forward
delivery - Navigus Planning engaged
to undertake this.

Unable to unlock future
housing growth.

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

May 2019

Housing targets not met,
reputation of the Councils may
be impacted
CAUSE:
Page 162

If we do not secure investment
in infrastructure
Adopted Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) and CIL expenditure framework
adopted by Council.

RISK:
Development may be stifled
and/or unsustainable
RISK
1d

CONSEQUENCE(S):
Housing targets not met.
Reputation of the Councils may
be impacted.
Quality of life for residents
could be affected.

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Secured investment on infrastructure via
planning process (e.g. S106).
New Anglia LEP Economic Strategy,
endorsed by Cabinet in October 2017.
Suffolk Framework for Inclusive Growth
endorsed by Cabinet in May 2018.

Access to services may be
restricted.
Ongoing

Creating Local Plan Infrastructure
Delivery Plan.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Currently working closely with
infrastructure providers to provide
evidence to inform Local Plan
allocations.
Review of Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

June 2019

Ongoing

June 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

2

3

6

CAUSE:
If consideration is not given to
the demographics of the
districts in relation to housing
needs

Implement of Homes and Housing
Strategy Action Plan - including
Mar 19 to April
actions relevant to older person
2023
housing

RISK:
There may be an insufficient
local supply of appropriate
homes for the ageing
population
RISK
1e

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Assistant
Director Housing

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Housing targets not met.
Our communities may
experience a reduced quality of
life.

Creating BMSDC Housing Strategy,
Creating Joint Local Plan, Health and
Housing Charter, Suffolk Older Persons
Housing Strategy, Housing strand being
developed for Suffolk Growth
Programme Board

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Housing Strategy signed off

Page 163

There will be cost implications
to the public sector.

Development of Local Plan to be
discussed at Cabinet

June 2019

Development of a Housing Action
Plan led by the Suffolk Housing
Board and agreed by Suffolk Chief
Officer Group

Ongoing

Development of a Babergh/Mid
Suffolk Older Person Strategy

2019/2021

There will be a reduced
turnover in housing stock
2 - BUSINESS GROWTH AND INCREASED PRODUCTIVITY
CAUSE:
Lack of engagement with
businesses and failure to
undertake data gathering and
analysis
RISK:

RISK
2a

We may not understand the
needs and aspirations of our
businesses

CONSEQUENCE(S):
We will be unable to focus our
interventions and resources in
a way which will provide the
right support

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Implementing a two-tier method of
Business Relationship Management
/Linking our business data and intel into
FAME CRM system facilitated by NALEP/
Increasing our direct business
engagement with key sectors through
our Chambers of Commerce, Growth Hub
and other business support
organisations/networking opportunities
including joint lobbying on significant
issues such as major infrastructure and
national Industry Strategy / We have
increased evidence based including
Visitor Economy 'Volume and Value'
studies and the draft NLP Ipswich Area
Economic Sector needs data now in
which is informing our Economic
Development Strategy / Economic Open
for Business Strategy has now been
adopted and published / Central Suffolk
Chamber of Commerce launched

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Develop close working relationships
with new Central Suffolk Chamber
of Commerce Board Members

Ongoing

Establish Visitor Economy Sub
Group of Board

September
2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

S

2

3

6

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

CAUSE:

9

1.) Continued evolution of a delivery
programme and actions/interventions to
deliver growth projects
2.) Regeneration activities through
investment programme, collaborations
and enabling communities e.g.
Gainsborough House, Kingfisher Leisure
Centre, Customer Service Centre
3.) Established inter-authority officer
level working group to coordinate Vision
for Prosperity Delivery Programme
4.) Future High Street funding bid
approved
5.) Re-established Sudbury Steering
Group to guide the Vision of Prosperity
Delivery Programme

9

1.) Continued evolution of a delivery
programme and actions/interventions to
deliver growth projects
2.) Regeneration activities through
investment programme, collaborations
and enabling communities e.g.
Gainsborough House, Kingfisher Leisure
Centre, Customer Service Centre
3.) Established inter-authority officer
level working group to coordinate Vision
for Prosperity Delivery Programme.
4.) Investigated establishment of
Stowmarket Steering Group to guide the
Vision of Prosperity Delivery Programme.
5.) Future High Streets funding bid
approved

Failure to engage with the
communities of Sudbury
Failure to secure necessary
investment
RISK:
RISK
2b

We fail to deliver on the
aspirations articulated in the
Vision for Prosperity

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may not maximise the
economic potential of our
largest market towns.

Stayed the
same

Develop Future High Street capital
bids

Summer 2020

Page 164

CAUSE:
Failure to engage with the
communities of Stowmarket
Failure to secure necessary
investment
RISK:
RISK
2c

We fail to deliver on the
aspirations articulated in the
Vision for Prosperity
CONSEQUENCE(S):

We may not maximise the
economic potential of our
largest market towns.

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Establish Stowmarket Steering
Group to guide Vision of Prosperity
Delivery Programme.
Develop Future High Street capital
bids.

June 2019

Summer 2020

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

CAUSE:
Lack of engagement with land
owners, developers, investors
and businesses
RISK:

RISK
2d

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

We may not identify and
provide the right amount of
employment land and property
in the right places

Current scores

4

3

12

Our current businesses may
not be able to remain in our
districts and we may not attract
new businesses

1.) The development of our Joint Local
Plan
2.) Delivery of the Economic Open for
Business Strategy
3.) Provision of officer support and
expertise to ensure Space to Innovate
and Food Enterprise Zones are delivered
within timescales
4.) Our Open for Business engagement
approach including with investors,
developers and businesses (existing and
new) facilitating retention and growth
within the district. 5.) Planning
permission granted for Gateway 14
(Stowmarket) and for infrastructure and
first occupier at Sproughton.

L

I

S

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

Complete Stowmarket Technology
Hub feasibility study

June 2019

Joint Scrutiny Committee review
undertaken.

Formal mechanisms agreed to
consult on the joint Local Plan consultation due.

June 2019

Town and Parish Council Liaison
meetings in place and frequency
increased.

Engagement with key Town
Councils by Strategic Directors.

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

3 - COMMUNITY CAPACITY BUILDING AND ENGAGEMENT
Page 165

CAUSE:
Officer capacity added to help
communities deliver Neighbourhood
Plans.

Lack of effective engagement
with communities to
understand their future needs
RISK:

RISK
3a

We may not be able to help
communities become more
sustainable
CONSEQUENCE(S):
Increased demand on services
Reduced quality of life
Reduced access to services

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Communities

3

3

9

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

ongoing

Tenant involvement strategy creates a
full menu of involvement options.

Officer employed to engage directly
with communities in the Council's
own development.

ongoing

Statement of Community Involvement:
Planning Matters approved by Full
Council.

Create Delivery Plan in association
with Community Strategy

September
2019

Community Strategy adopted by full
Council.

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

S

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

4 - ASSETS AND INVESTMENTS
CAUSE:
If the Capital Investment Fund
(CIF) does not generate
forecast investment returns
RISK:
RISK
4a

We may be unable to meet the
income projections for the
Councils

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Assets and
Investment

2

4

8

Phase 1 CIFCO has now invested 100% of
the fund in line with its business plan.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Revised business plan is being
prepared for approval.

March 2021

2

3

6

12

1) Project team in place to ensure early
liaison with planners and adequate preapp advise is sought
2) Iceni engaged to act as development
partner with strong track record /
Judicious use of consultancy support
resource
3) Development Partner and Project
team in place including cost and viability
consultants included in project team / A
higher percentage of open market sale
homes are included in the programme /
Ability to 'couple' schemes within the
programme resulting in a policy
compliant position across all schemes
even though individual schemes might
fall short
4) Local authorities with revised
indebtedness determinations will be able
to draw down additional borrowing from
April 2019 onwards.
5.) Mid Suffolk Growth and Babergh
Growth Limited established to aid
delivery of housing within our region.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Agree project plans for the
development of the HQ sites

September
2019

2

3

6

CONSEQUENCE(S):
There may be a drain on
General Fund resources
CAUSE:

Page 166

Lack of specialist advice in the
fields of delivery, design and
engagement with planners

RISK:

RISK
4b

The affordable homes
programme does not achieve
the forecast returns on
investment

CONSEQUENCE(S):

There may be a drain on the
Housing Revenue Account and
General Fund resources

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Housing

4

3

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

RISK
4c

We may not manage our asset
portfolio effectively
CONSEQUENCE(S):

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Assets and
Investment

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

CAUSE:
Lack of understanding of the
capabilities of our assets and
how to operate them
RISK:

Current scores

4

I

3

S

12

L

1.) Dedicated Strategic Asset expertise
within the Councils staff teams to
maximise opportunities
2.) Partnership with SCC and IBC in One
Public Estate Board Programme

I

Asset Management Plan is being
prepared.
3

3

Page 167

RISK
4d

Income and Capital projections
and economic outcomes may
not be delivered
CONSEQUENCE(S):
Land remains under-utilised

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

9

Stayed the
same

This may result in lost
opportunity, loss of capital
value, increased revenue costs
and loss of public confidence
CAUSE:
Gateway 14 Ltd fails to bring
forward the development of
site
RISK:

Further Actions / Comments

Data project to cleanse data and
sort into appropriate database.

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

September
2019

December
2019

Staff recruitment exercise
December
2019

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Assets and
Investment

3

4

12

Appropriate treasury management advice
being applied. Gateway 14 Ltd has
engaged a knowledgeable and
experienced Board of Director to enable
the delivery of the scheme and is being
supported by market leading experts in
preparing a delivery strategy for the site.

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

Developing Delivery Model

July 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

5 - AN ENABLED AND EFFICIENT ORGANISATION
CAUSE:
If we do not keep abreast of
new information technology,
developments and
opportunities, and improve our
skills.

A new IT Board has been set up to
monitor a range of IT projects including
some managed by SCC. Regular
meetings take place between us and SCC
to further develop relationships and
deliver upon requirements.

RISK:
RISK
5a

We will not transform, and
become more efficient using IT.

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Page 168

We will be unable to provide
the services people need in the
most appropriate way.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

A refreshed Customer Access Strategy
identified new technological
developments.
An IT review has been carried out by
Foresight

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

A training programme is being
developed by HR which will include
IT skills.

TBC

Specific and focused training is
underway for software applications
and tools such as PowerBI.

June 2019

Working on plan to take forward
actions from partnership review.
In conjunction with SCC IT we are
developing our ICT Strategy based
on our needs of our Customer
Access Strategy. Next phase is to
work with our service areas to
understand how we can develop
and deliver our services more
effectively in a digital age.

November
2019

June 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

CAUSE:
We are continuing to cleanse the
enforcement data and running
approximate 2 months behind - this
is due to two initial members of the
5 cleansing team members finding
other jobs. We have decided to let
the project slip by two months,
rather than re-hire and spend time
training new staff members up
again (which balances out time
wise).

If we do not hold up to date,
accurate and clean data.

We are setting clear data standards as
part of General Data Protection
Regulations and are currently
undertaking a review to ensure that all
staff have competed the GDPR training.

RISK:

RISK
5b

Our data sources will not be
reliable.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

CONSEQUENCE(S):
Page 169

The Information Asset Register has now
been completed and provides a clear
understanding of all the data sets we
own, who the information asset owner is
and their retention periods. This will be
reviewed annually.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

We will not have a strong
evidence base to support
organisational decisions and
assumptions.

Further plans in place to reconcile
the HR database with the Payroll
system to look for any potential
errors.

CAUSE:
If there is no understanding,
collective responsibility and
ownership by the Housing
Management Team of the HRA
business plan
RISK:
RISK
5c

We may not deliver a robust
HRA business plan
CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may be unable to meet our
stated ambitions and
responsibilities for our
residents

Power BI has enabled us to join up
and reconciling various databases
to enable us to make better
decisions. For example: We are
looking at sickness records, verify
who has done the GDPR training,
how often mobile phones are used,
how many people use the office
space on Gold and Lime, Printer
usage, BT landline usage from
external properties.

Assistant
Director Housing

Cabinet
Members for
Housing

3

4

12

Data quality issues to be addressed /
HMT to undertake quarterly reviews of
the HRA 30 year business plan to ensure
it is realistic and relevant / Develop an
understanding of the HRA Finance
Modelling software within the HRA
Finance Team and Corporate Managers
through examination and training /
Develop and maintain a set of scenario
tests and stress tests / Review the
structure and links between Asset
Management, Property Services, Building
Services and Finance / Corporate Finance
Team taken on responsibility / New
business model implemented / Quarterly
budget monitoring with Corporate
Managers taking responsibility

Review of scenarios in light of the
removal of the HRA borrowing cap

2

4

8

Stayed the
same

Train Housing Management staff to
embed new business model
Modelling of Business Plan to
incorporate additional
borrowing/use of reserves to
support council house build
programme

August 2019

September
2019

June 2019

September
2019
August 2019

August 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores
Mitigation to date

L

I

S

L

I

MSDC

CAUSE:

If we do not understand our
financial position

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

3

4

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

MSDC

12

2

4

8

Use of one-off funding to change the
business model and support functions
during change

I

S

MSDC

Stayed the
same

2

4

8

RISK:
BDC
RISK
5d

We may be unable to respond
in a timely and effective way to
financial demands

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Assistant
Director Corporate
Resources

Cabinet
Members for
Finance

4

4

16

Engagement of councillors to understand
options
19/20 budget set in February 19

Page 170

We may be unable to deliver
the entirety of the Joint
Strategic Plan

BDC

Modelling and analysis to understand
impact (e.g. Capital Investment Fund),
Identifying income generating activities
to replace government grants (e.g. PV
panels, rental income from properties)

BDC
Identifying options over next 4
years under 3 categories of; review,
remodel and reinvent. Aim to have
4 year costed action plan rather
than looking at just the next year.

3

4

12

Stayed the
same

Jun-19

2

4

8

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

CAUSE:

We are prototyping other forms of
customer service to ensure
geographical coverage i.e. using
pop-up or self-service kiosks in
libraries and we will be reviewing
the aesthetics of our Stowmarket
customer access point.

If we don’t provide effective
public access arrangements

RISK:

RISK
5e

We will be unable to
successfully target and provide
our services.

Page 171

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Our customers will not receive
the service and support that
they need.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

We have a refreshed Customer Access
Strategy which will form the basis to
scope a range of customer centred
projects to improve our public access
arrangements.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

We will undertake a lean review
across all services to better
understand the number of
transactions we process, how long
they take and how we process
them either over the phone, face to
face or online, so that we can make
improvements where needed. We
are seeking to understand our
online user journeys on our website
so as to ensure it is easy to use and
transactions are clear and concise.
Further work will be undertaken to
encourage our customers to use
our online services where possible.

June 2019

March 2020

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

CAUSE:

RISK:

I

Chief Executive

Cabinet
Members for
Assets &
Investments

4

3

12

To ensure more effective communication
and engagement a dedicated Strategic
Communications Lead Officer has been
recruited, Communications Strategy is
being put in place, which will include proactive engagement through all channels
e.g. social media and dedicated training
and support for media management.

Page 172

Strengthened Parish / Town Council
relationships have been put in place
through dedicated officer liaison links,
regular clerks meetings and refreshed
Parish Liaison Meetings.
Council will adopted the constitutional
amendments .

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

L

I

S

2

3

6

June 2019
The Values and Behaviours Natural
Work Team is ongoing and will
overlap with the equivalent
Rewards & Recognition work.

Work has commenced to introduce a
thorough and integrated Member
Development, Senior Management and
Leadership programmes.

The Councils may be perceived
to be untrustworthy and have a
poor reputation

This may prevent us from
entering into positive
partnerships, secure funding
and ultimately may affect our
ability to work with partners,
businesses and key
stakeholders in achieving the
strategic priorities.

L

Further constitution reviews are
underway of governance systems and
processes to optimise openness,
transparency and engagement in all our
approaches .

If we do not maintain the trust
of our stakeholders and
promote our public image and
reputation

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

RISK 5f

Current scores

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

The 4 year rolling Member
Development Programme will roll
out in full following elections in
May 2019.
Recruitment to the one remaining
position within the
Communications Team.
The Councils approach to
engagement will be finalised upon
completion for the Communities
Strategy consultation and adoption
of that strategy.

May 2019

September
2019

September
2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Annual Review of H&S Policy
Development of a H&S Training
programme: IOSH Managing Safely
course has been rolled out for Managers
and Team Leaders

If we fail to protect our
employees and other persons
to whom we owe a duty of care

A lone working IT solution has been
rolled out to relevant staff

The safety, health, welfare and
wellbeing of individuals may be
compromised
Page 173

Chief Executive

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Cabinet
Members for
Finance

The creation of a Corporate Manager
post for Health and Safety to ensure
focus and a consistent approach
throughout the organisation
4

4

16

An organisational H&S action plan has
been developed with status monitored
by the H&S Board
A H&S working group meets with
representation from high risk services to
discuss and develop focus and strategy

Injury or harm to employees.
Fines from the HSE.
Reputational impact to the
Councils

Development of wellbeing resources,
participation in the national Mental
Health Awareness week (14-20 May) and
introduction of Mental Health First
Aiders
The Stress Management Toolkit has been
completed and was launched on the 1st
of this month.

L

I

S

2

4

8

April 2019

Generic Risk Assessments
completed, Service areas to
complete theirs as part of the
Service Plan round for 2019/20.

A comprehensive H&S Training Matrix
has been developed and budgeted for all
staff and is being implemented

RISK:

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

CAUSE:

RISK 5g

Further Actions / Comments

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

3

4

12

Stayed the
same

H&S Training programme: matrix
for Health and Safety and
Loneworking created. Most
managers having completed the
IOSH Managing Safety training and
remaining Corporate Managers will
be scheduled to do this - this year.
In addition there have been some
Managing Personal Safety Courses
and all managers with staff who
work alone/remotely will complete
this during this year.
Some trials of courses have been
undertaken but not published;
some managers have completed
IOSH Managing Safely course, a
review required at H&S Board
Lone working IT solution to be
rolled out to Members

March 2020

August 2020

April 2019

Review of H&S action plan
Both Councils have committed to
The Ending Violence at Work
Charter and have 12 months to
meet the standards.

May 2019

April 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Income Management Policy
currently in development

If tenants in receipt of
Universal Credits do not utilise
this benefit for payment of
their housing rent
RISK:
Rent arrears will increase
CONSEQUENCE(S):
Resulting in increased costs in
rent collection, enforcement
action and possible tenant
evictions

Assistant
Director Housing

Cabinet
Members for
Housing

4

3

12

Working with DWP and stakeholders to
increase awareness / stakeholder events
/ Increased bad debt provision by 0.25%
/ Income Strategy / Income Management
Policy / Forming relationships and
partnerships - working with the Job
Centre / Looking and learning best
practice from others / Training and
awareness for staff / Increasing the
capacity of Tenancy Support Officers /
Affordability assessment tools / Income
Strategy review undertaken.

Government slowed down
Universal Credits (UC) roll out /
Changes to UC benefit

3

3

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

CAUSE:

RISK 5h

Further Actions / Comments

9

Stayed the
same

CAB taking responsibility from UC
Financial Advisor
Affect monitoring of rent arrears
cases by staff and effective
performance monitoring by
managers
Review of Income Management
Strategy and its outcomes

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

3

3

9

June/July 2019

Ongoing

April 2019

Ongoing

May 2019

Page 174

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

If we experience challenges
with staff recruitment and
retention

RISK:
Assistant
Director Corporate
Resources

Cabinet
Members for
Finance

3

3

9

Page 175

This may start to impact on
performance, our income, the
costs of potential legal
challenge, government
scrutiny, staff morale and
public confidence.

CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may be unable to deliver
key services in the future

A report to Babergh Overview and
Scrutiny Committee in January 2019
showed that the number of people
leaving April-September 2018 was 20,
compared to 122 in the whole of
2017/18.

2

3

S

L

I

S

6

Stayed the
same

In process of developing a People
Strategy and action plan that will
include elements aimed at
improving recruitment and
retention. Unable to give clear
timescale until the new Corporate
Manager HR & OD is recruited.

TBC
(new post)

2

3

6

Work is underway to revise the
current recruitment policy and to
develop a toolkit to sit alongside
the policy to improve the
recruitment experience.

MSDC

If the Councils do not adopt a
new delivery model

The Councils may not be
financially sustainable

Planned
completion
date(s)

The Councils adopted the Violence at
Work Charter in March 2019.

CAUSE:

RISK:

I

Key policies and toolkits have been
developed or reviewed to give greater
clarity around how staff will be managed.
These are sickness absence,
organisational change and mental health
and wellbeing as well as a new
behavioural framework linked to the
Values.

CONSEQUENCE(S):

RISK
5j

L

Further Actions / Comments

Workforce Strategy in development,
Suffolk-wide People Strategy in place,
memorandum of understanding in place
between partner agencies is
standardising a new approach to appoint
and retain skilled staff

CAUSE:

There may be staff shortages
within service areas

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

RISK 5i

Current scores

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

2

Assistant
Director - Law &
Governance

4

MSDC

8

BDC

Leaders of the
Councils

3

4

12

The Cabinets have committed to
exploring alternative forms of council
structure which could potentially
generate financial savings and
efficiencies / the councils have an
integrated workforce and joint strategic
plan / the councils have a joint medium
term financial strategy

1

4

4

MSDC

Stayed the
same
Work on exploring alternative
structural models for the Councils is
currently on hold.

BDC

2

4

8

1

Stayed the
same

4

4

BDC

N/A

2

4

8

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

CAUSE:

If we fail to take advantage of
the benefits of working in an
agile environment.

RISK:

RISK 5k We may not be as efficient as
we need to be, including the
use of new technologies.

CONSEQUENCE(S):
Valuable time and effort will be
wasted with a de-motivated
workforce.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

A People Strategy is under development
underpinned by a significant piece of
work with staff to develop our values and
behaviours. Corporate managers will
receive support from HR to manage staff
remotely and a range of tools are
available such as Skyguard. Staff now
use a range of technologies such a Skype
(voice, video technology and screen
sharing)

A recent staff survey identified a
number of actions with regard to
agile working and these are
underway, with a repeat of the
survey in the future.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Other practices are in planned such
as daily meetings, target setting,
target tracking, rewards and
recognition.
Microsoft team sites, mobile phone
technology etc all enabling remote
working and regular
communications.

June 2019

December
2019

June 2019

Page 176

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Impact

Impact / Consequence

Appendix B

1

Minimal

4 (Medium)

8 (High)

12
(Very High)

16
(Very High)

3 (Low)

6 (Medium)

9 (High)

12
(Very High)

2 (Low)

4 (Medium)

6 (Medium)

8 (High)

1 (Low)

2 (Low)

3 (Low)

4 (Medium)

1

2

3

4

Highly
Unlikely

Unlikely

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood
Likelihood

1

Highly Unlikely

2

Unlikely

3

Probable

4

Highly probable

Less than 25%
Has never occurred before
Would only happen in exceptional circumstances
26% - 50%
Not expected to occur but potential exists
Has occurred once in the last ten years
51% - 75%
May occur occasionally
Has occurred within the last 5 years
Reasonable chance of occurring again
Over 76%
Expected to occur
Occurs regularly or frequently

Impact / Consequence
Finance

Compliance

Safety

Service Delivery

Reputation
No
noticeable
media
interest
Local media
coverage

1

Minimal

Minor loss
<£5,000

Small, single
noncompliance

No harm to
persons
/community

Very minor
disruption (less
than 1 day)

2

Noticeable
/ Minor

Moderate
loss
£5,001 –
£50,000

Potential for illhealth, injury
or equipment
damage

Some service
disruption,
(more than one
day)

3

Bad /
Serious

Significant
loss
£50,101 –
£250,000

Sustained
single or few
short-term
noncompliance
Multiple
sustained
noncompliance

Potential for
serious harm
or injury (nonlife
threatening)

Critical service
disruption
(statutory
services not
delivered)

Adverse
local/national
media
coverage

4

Disaster

Substantial
loss
>£250,000

Significant
noncompliance Litigation,
custodial
sentence

Fatality, major
injury (life
threatening or
life impacting)

Systemic or
sustained
service loss

Adverse/
prolonged
national
media
coverage

Red text = Health and Safety Descriptors
Page 177

*

Appendix B

Red text = Health and Safety Descriptors
Page 178

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

1|Page
Page 179

Document Control
Reference
Risk Management Strategy
Date
January 2016
Author
Corporate Manager – Internal Audit and the Lead for Risk
Emily Yule – Assistant Director – Law & Governance and
Monitoring Officer (sponsor)
Approved by
Management Board and Joint Audit and Standards
Committee
Version History
Date
January 2016
May 2016
December 2017
January 2019

Version Number Revision Notes
V0.1
First Draft of revised Strategy
V0.2
Second Draft of Strategy following
Administration meetings
V0.3
Update of Roles and Responsibilities
following introduction of Cabinet model
V0.4
Recognition of the corporate ‘Values’
within the Councils’ Risk Appetite.

2|Page
Page 180

CONTENTS
1

Policy Statement

2

Statement of Commitment

3

Our Approach

4

Risk Management Principles

5

Risk Appetite Statement

6

Risk Management Levels

7

Escalation of Risks

8

Risk Management Process

9

Risk Matrix

10

Risk Register System

11

Roles and Responsibilities

12

Guidance, Education and Training

13

Summary

14

Review

3|Page
Page 181

1. Policy Statement

The effect of uncertainty on an organisation’s objectives is risk. Risk management is
the process of ascertaining what might go wrong, what the potential consequences
may be, what could trigger the occurrence and deciding how best to minimise the risk
materialising. If it does go wrong, as some things inevitably will, proactive risk
management will ensure the impact is kept to a minimum.
To structure and formalise the risk management arrangements across all functions,
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils have developed a systematic and logical
process of managing business risk within a comprehensive framework to ensure it is
managed effectively, efficiently and coherently across the organisation. The Councils’
adopted approach sets out the methodology for identification, evaluation and control
of risk to ensure the continued financial and organisational well-being of the Councils.
Council wide ownership and accountability for managing risk is critical to the success
of the organisation.
When implemented and maintained, the effective management of risk enables the
organisation to:


Increase the likelihood of achieving its goals and delivering outcomes



Improve the identification of opportunities and threats



Improve governance, stakeholder confidence and trust



Establish a reliable basis for decision making and planning



Effectively allocate and use resources for risk treatment



Improve organisational resilience.

It is the role of the Audit and Risk Management Services team within the Councils to
provide support, guidance, professional advice and the necessary tools and
techniques to enable the organisations to take control of the risks that threaten
delivery. The role of the team is also to provide a level of challenge and scrutiny to the
risk owners. The work of the team will be directed to effect the achievement of the
following risk management objectives:


Align the organisations culture with the risk management framework



Integrate and embed the risk management framework across the organisations



Enable the organisations to recognise and manage the risks it faces



Minimise the cost of risk



Anticipate and respond to emerging risks, internal & external influences and a
changing operating environment



Implement a consistent method of measuring risk.

4|Page
Page 182

2. Statement of Commitment

Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils are committed to adopting good practice in
its management of risk to ensure retained risk is of an acceptable and tolerable level
in order to maximise opportunities and demonstrate it has made full consideration of
the implications of risk to the delivery and achievement of outcomes.
The Councils are clear that the responsibility for managing risk belongs to everyone
and that there needs to be an appropriate level of understanding of the nature of risk
by all stakeholders.
As a corporate body, the Councils are obligated to protect its material assets and to
minimise its losses and liabilities. It recognises the need to equip its workforce with the
skills and expertise to manage risk on its behalf and provides the necessary resources
to ensure this can be delivered.
The Councils’ risk management objectives are a long term commitment, inherent to
good governance practices and fully supported by senior management and its
Councillors.
John Snell – Corporate Manager – Internal Audit
Emily Yule – Assistant Director Law & Governance
and Monitoring Officer - Sponsor

3. Our Approach

For risk management to be successful, it is imperative that there is a single approach
for the management of business risk, adopted through all levels of the organisation.
This risk management strategy is one part of the overall risk framework, the essential
elements of which include:





Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy (including governance and
accountabilities)
Risk Management Methodology, Tools and Guidance to support the methodology
and Training
Risk Management Reporting
Risk Assurance Statement.

Our approach is that the discipline of effectively managing risk is integrated throughout
the organisation and involves all key stakeholders including - but not limited to officers,
senior management, Councillors, partners and suppliers.
5|Page
Page 183

Primarily Councillors and senior management will be focussed on the strategic and
business critical risks that could impact on the achievement of objectives or successful
delivery of outcomes. More detailed business operations risks will be the primary
concern of services and functions, where managers will be controlling and monitoring
their risks and escalating these to a strategic level if they are no longer containable
and manageable at a functional level.
Identified key risks and mitigations are managed through the Councils’ Significant Risk
Register and is regularly discussed, reviewed and updated. Frequent risk reporting
takes place across all levels of the organisation. The governance and reporting
arrangements which set out what risk information is reported to which audience and
when is covered in more detail in section 11 of this Strategy.
It is the role of the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit and his team to develop and
set the framework for the organisation to follow; ensuring that this adds value to the
organisation.
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Council’s risk management framework is our end to
end process of managing risk
Objective Setting
Risk
Management
Policy
Statement
and Strategy

Process/Delivery
Risk
Management
Methodology,
Tools,
Guidance,
and Training

Governance
Risk
Governance &
Reporting
Framework and
Accountabilities

Assurance
Risk
Assurance
Statement

4. Risk Management Principles

At Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils, we are committed to ensuring risk
management is embedded across the whole organisation. To do this, we ensure we
adhere to the spirit of the principles of risk management as set within the OGC’s
Management of Risk Framework and in accordance with the International Risk
Management Standard (ISO:31000).

6|Page
Page 184

Enbles
Achievement
of our Goals
Facilitates
Continual
Improvement

Fits the
Context

Risk
Management
Principles
Informs
Decision
Making

Engages
Stakeholders

Provides
Clear
Guidance

5. Risk Appetite Statement

Risk Appetite is the level of risk we are prepared to tolerate or accept in the pursuit of
our strategic outcomes. Our aim is to consider all options to respond to risk
appropriately and make informed decisions that are most likely to result in successful
delivery whilst also providing an acceptable level of value for money.
The acceptance of risk is subject to ensuring that all potential benefits and risks are
fully understood and that appropriate measures to mitigate risk are established before
decisions are made. We recognise that the appetite for risk will vary according to the
activity undertaken and the ability to exercise controls and hence different appetites
and tolerances to risk apply.
Underpinning our approach to risk management are the Councils’ Values. Having our
values will help establish trust, understanding and behaviour change from our
residents, and enable us to be able to make decisions, confident in the knowledge that
we have the support of the wider organisation. It is critical therefore that our values
now become real for us all through everything we do, how we do it and our wider
behaviours.
The Councils’ appetite for risk reflects the different types of risk that could impact on
the Councils’ ability to meet its statutory requirements and strategic outcomes,
including likely reputational impact and potential financial implications and are
described in more detail below.
7|Page
Page 185

These risks can be defined as follows:
Strategic Transformational Risk
This is the risk arising from the possible consequences of strategic decisions taken by
the Councils, or the risk of a failure to achieve our strategic vision. The environment
the Councils’ work in is continually changing through both its internal operations and
the services it provides. The Councils recognise that this may require increased levels
of risk and is comfortable accepting the risk subject to always ensuring that risks are
appropriately managed.
Operational/Service Delivery Risk
This is the risk arising from the nature of the Councils’ business and operations, for
example, the risk of a failure to deliver statutory or other services to residents, to fail
to provide required quality in services, or to provide appropriate services in the event
of an emergency and as such accepts a high level of risk arising. In terms of risk
appetite it is acknowledged that due to the nature of services provided ‘one size’ does
not fit and therefore each service area would determine their level of risk appetite
based on a risk-reward basis.
People and Culture Risk
The Councils’ recognise that its staff are critical to achieving its objectives and
therefore the support and development of staff is key to making the Councils’ an
inspiring and safe place to work. It has a high appetite for decisions that involve staffing
or culture to support transformational change and ensure the Councils’ are continually
improving.
Financial Risk
This is the risk of changes in the Councils’ financial condition and circumstances, such
as for example, in its balance sheet assets and liabilities, its funding, income and
spending levels. The Councils’ aims are to maintain its long term financial viability and
its overall financial strength whilst aiming to achieve its strategic and financial
objectives.
Reputational Risk
It is regarded as essential that the Councils’ preserve a high reputation and hence it
has set a moderate appetite for risk in the conduct of any of its activities that puts its
reputation in jeopardy through any adverse publicity.
Legal and Compliance Risk
The Councils’ recognise the need to place high importance on compliance, regulation
and public protection and has no appetite for breaches in statue, regulation,
professional standards, ethics, bribery or fraud and corruption.

8|Page
Page 186

Duty of Officers
All of the Councils’ elected Councillors and its officers, including when they are working
in partnership with other organisations, have a duty and responsibility as part of their
actions to manage risk as an integral part of their role, which includes ensuring they
comply at all times with provisions of the risk appetite of the Councils’ as outlined in
this document.
General Risk Appetite Statement
The Councils’ recognise that its long term sustainability depends upon the delivery of
its strategic objectives and its relationship with its partners. As such, the Councils’ will
not accept risks that are in breach of legal compliance, regulations and ethical
behaviour. However, the Councils’ have a greater appetite to take considered risks in
terms of their impact on strategic and organisational issues and actively encourage
officers to pursue innovation and creativity and challenge current working practices
where positive benefits can be anticipated within the constraints of the regulatory
environment.

6. Risk Management Levels

Our approach to risk management is founded upon ensuring risk is effectively and
consistently managed across all levels of the organisation. The risk culture that
emanates from the senior management throughout the organisation is essential in
ensuring all levels buy into and adhere to the corporate risk process.
The Levels:
Service Level: The day to day management activities provide reasonable assurance
that the main tactical and operational risks arising from service operations are
identified, assessed, managed and monitored. Close links between the service
managers and the Audit and Risk Management Services’ team strengthen the process
and ensure consistency in the risk messages delivered within the services.
Programme/Project Level: The identification of risks from the initial business case
stage in a programme/project and continued risk management throughout the project
lifecycle to ensure the objectives can be achieved.
Leadership/Strategic Level: The highest level of risk is managed at this level.
Reports on the top business critical risks are reviewed quarterly by the Senior
Leadership Team and the Audit and Risk Management Services’ team. This level sets
the tone for effective risk management across the whole organisation. At this level, the
risk management strategy is agreed and endorsed and its principles championed by
senior management of the Councils.
9|Page
Page 187

7. Escalation of Risks

In the event that a single risk or group of risks exceed a pre agreed threshold, then
the risks should be escalated to a senior level and the Audit and Risk Management
Services’ team. The Risk owner will initially be responsible for either deciding on a
course of action or escalating the information further up the process to a senior level.
Similarly it should also be clear where a risk can be delegated to a lower level for
action.
Process
If as a risk owner you identify that the risk needs to be moved because it fits into one
of the categories as stated above, initially seek the advice of the Audit and Risk
Management Services’ team regarding moving the risk. If a risk is multi service or
organisation wide the risk owner should consult with other relevant parties before
recommending a change of level.

Strategic/
Leadership level
Programme/Project level

Service level

A risk may need to be escalated to a higher level if:


the risk becomes too unwieldy to manage at the current level



the risk rating cannot be controlled/contained within its current level



the risk remains very high even after mitigations are implemented



the risk will impact on more than one service/project if the risk event materialises



instinct tells the owner it is out of their control

10 | P a g e
Page 188



the risk moves outside the appetite boundaries / comfort zone.

A risk may need to be moved to a lower level if:


the risk can be controlled / managed at a lower level



the risk rating decreases significantly



the risk event will only affect one service area / team and the impact will be limited
then this should be controlled more locally at a lower level.

8. Risk Management Process

The risk management process is a series of logical steps which are carried out in
sequence to progress through each stage of managing a risk. The process is cyclical
and it is often necessary to revisit earlier steps and carry them out again to ensure you
have a complete picture of the risks to the activity/outcome you are assessing.
The process consists of six main stages:

Identify

Monitor
and
Reporting

Assess
Objective

Setting

Manage
and Control

Ownership

 Objective setting – Identify and agree the objectives for the Councils including how
services, projects and partnerships support the delivery of these projects.

11 | P a g e
Page 189

 Risk identification - Identify and record the risks, relating to the achievement of the
Councils’ objectives/priorities. An Example risk register template is shown in
Section 11 – Risk Register System.
 Risk Assess - Having identified areas of potential risk, we assess them with the use
of a risk matrix to give an assessment of impact and likelihood and calculate and
overall risk score (See Section 9 – Risk Matrix). Firstly the ‘Inherent’ score is
assessed (the score with no controls in place) then a ‘current’ score (with controls
in place). The results are recorded in the risk register.
 Risk ownership – the identified risks need to be allocated a risk owner to take
responsibility for managing the risk.
See also Section 11 – Roles and
Responsibilities.
 Manage and Control – Assess what is already in place to manage the risk and
planning to put further controls in place if required; progress of projects linked to
strategic priorities, action plans (use the 4 T’s to determine if we will tolerate,
terminate, transfer or treat the risk). This would also include maximising any
positive opportunities.
 Identify how the risk is currently controlled and then what gaps there are, how these
can be addressed and who by. Risks can be managed in the following ways:o Tolerating – The benefits gained by undertaking the process causing the
risk, outweigh the costs involved to mitigate the risk entirely, or there is
no justification of the expense involved in introducing measures to
control the risk, therefore it is simply accepted that there is a risk.
o Treating – Control the risk as much as possible to bring it back to an
acceptable level that can be tolerated.
o Terminating – To get rid of the risk altogether by either controlling it fully
or not doing the task causing the risk, so that there is no risk.
o Transferring – Transfer the risk to another party so that they become
responsible, for example insurance. If insurance is an option this should
be discussed with the Risk Lead who would liaise with the Finance Team
who oversee the insurance function.
Remember – more risk can be taken if it is felt that the benefits in doing so would
outweigh the risk itself. The idea of Risk Management is not to become risk averse,
but to ensure that risks are managed i.e. Risk Management.


Monitoring and reporting – Risks can change over time and therefore need to be
monitored on a regular basis to ensure that controls in place remain effective and
actions have been implemented. New risks can also be added to the risk register
and those that are no longer a risk can be removed. All changes must be recorded
and reported appropriately.

12 | P a g e
Page 190

9. Risk Matrix

A risk matrix is used to evaluate the risks so that there is an understanding of the risk
exposure faced, which in turn influences the level of risk treatment that should be
applied to manage/reduce/prevent the risk from occurring. At Babergh and Mid Suffolk
District Councils the adopted matrix for assessing risk is shown in the diagram below
supported by guidance on how to determine the appropriate score for both probability
and impact.

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Impact

Impact / Consequence

Ensuring that all business risks are assessed and managed through the adopted risk
management methodology drives consistency through the risk management
framework and enables risks to be compared and reported on against a like for like
basis. It also provides the Councils with the ability to map their collective risk exposure
of a particular activity, objective, outcome, function(s) or indeed whole Councils’
operation.

1

Minimal

4 (Medium)

8 (High)

12
(Very High)

16
(Very High)

3 (Low)

6 (Medium)

9 (High)

12
(Very High)

2 (Low)

4 (Medium)

6 (Medium)

8 (High)

1 (Low)

2 (Low)

3 (Low)

4 (Medium)

1

2

3

4

Highly Unlikely

Unlikely

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Likelihood
1

Highly Unlikely

2

Unlikely

3

Probable

4

Highly probable

Less than 25%
Has never occurred before
Would only happen in exceptional circumstances
26% - 50%
Not expected to occur but potential exists
Has occurred once in the last ten years
51% - 75%
May occur occasionally
Has occurred within the last 5 years
Reasonable chance of occurring again
Over 76%
Expected to occur
Occurs regularly or frequently

13 | P a g e
Page 191

Impact / Consequence
Finance

Compliance

Safety

Service Delivery

Reputation

1

Minimal

Minor loss
<£5,000

Small, single
noncompliance

No harm to
persons
/community

Very minor
disruption (less
than 1 day)

No noticeable
media interest

2

Noticeable /
Minor

Moderate
loss
£5,001 –
£50,000

Potential for illhealth, injury or
equipment
damage

Some service
disruption, (more
than one day)

Local media
coverage

3

Bad /
Serious

Significant
loss
£50,101 –
£250,000

Sustained
single or few
short-term
noncompliance
Multiple
sustained noncompliance

Potential for
serious harm or
injury (non-life
threatening)

Adverse
local/national
media
coverage

4

Disaster

Substantial
loss
>£250,000

Significant
noncompliance Litigation,
custodial
sentence

Fatality, major
injury (life
threatening or
life impacting)

Critical service
disruption
(statutory
services not
delivered)
Systemic or
sustained service
loss
*

Adverse/
prolonged
national
media
coverage

Red text = Health and Safety Descriptors

10. Risk Register System

As part of good governance, the Councils’ manage and maintain a register of its
Significant Risks - assigning named individuals as responsible officers for ensuring the
risks and their treatment measures are monitored and effectively managed.
The risk register is a critical tool for the service in capturing and reporting on risk
activity and the organisations risk profile. The risk register is a working spreadsheet
where new risks are captured, others are managed to extinction and some require
close and regular monitoring.
The data within the register is used to inform the business of the threats it faces in
delivering outcomes and services to the Councils. It is part of the Councils’ internal
governance and performance frameworks and is used to ensure the organisation
operates effectively. An example of the risk register template is shown at Appendix
A.

14 | P a g e
Page 192

11. Roles and Responsibilities

The importance of establishing roles and responsibilities within the risk management
framework is pivotal to successful delivery. The focus must be on ensuring that
consideration of risks is embedded into policy approval (Strategic) and into service
delivery (Operational).
The agreed roles and responsibilities within the risk management framework at
Babergh and Mid Suffolk Councils’ are outlined in the table below.
Group/Stakeholder
BDC and MSDC Cabinet

Role Description
 Strategic decision-making in respect of ‘Strategic
Risk Management’
 Responsible for approving the Risk Management
Strategy

Joint Audit and Standards
Committee



To ‘consider the effectiveness of the joint risk
management arrangements’



‘Be satisfied that the joint Annual Governance
Statement properly reflects the risk environment
and any actions taken to improve it’.



This Committee discharges the Audit Committee
function for the authorities providing a strengthened
governance assurance mechanism to Members as
a focussed control mechanism in this time of
change and increased risk of governance failure.



Responsible for noting the Council’s risk
management strategy and reviewing and
monitoring the arrangements for managing risk.

Babergh and Mid Suffolk
Audit Committees

 To ‘support the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit

Leader of each Council

 To sign the Annual Governance Statement.

Lead Cabinet Members



for ensuring that effective arrangements are in
place with regard to risk management
arrangements’.

A clear understanding and responsibility of the
nature of the key risks facing the Councils,
particularly those within their allocated portfolios.

15 | P a g e
Page 193

Group Leaders



A clear understanding and responsibility of the
nature of the key risks facing the Councils.

Chief Executive



To ensure that risk management is included within
the job descriptions of Management Team.

 To sign the Annual Governance Statement.
The Accounts and Audit
Regulations

 Require that the Council’s financial management is

S151 Officer

 Is responsible for providing advice to underpin the

adequate and effective and that there is sound
system of financial control that facilitates the
effective exercise of the Council’s functions and
that includes risk management arrangements.

financial regulations that Members, officers and
others acting on behalf of the authority are required
to follow.
Assistant Directors



Responsible for ensuring that all staff in their
service are aware of the existence and content of
the authority’s financial regulations and associated
procedures/guidance that is issued and that they
comply with them.



Can identify the risks & implications of various
courses of action and can articulate how business
continuity can be maintained.



Engagement with Lead Cabinet Members



Oversight of Corporate Manager’s Operational Risk
Registers

Senior Leadership Team
and Extended Leadership
Team

 Are responsible for reviewing the effective

Corporate Managers

Produce and maintain their operational risk registers
and any projects / programmes they are responsible
for.

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit



management of risks and internal controls and
governance, supported by the Corporate Manager
– Internal Audit and the s151 Officer.

Is responsible for preparing the Council’s risk
management strategy and for promoting it
throughout the Council and maintaining and
reporting on the Council’s Integrated Significant
Business Risk Register.

16 | P a g e
Page 194



Will advise and report to management and the Joint
Audit and Standards Committee on whether the
Council’s governance
–
appropriate risk
management processes, control systems and
operational procedures – are in place and operating
properly.

Note: This scope will extend to systems or services
provided wholly by, or in conjunction with other
organisations, including partnership arrangements.
Councillors



Employees involved in
appointments

 Must ensure that these are made on the basis of

New employees



To apply the rules in the Planning Charter which
seeks to explain and supplement the Members
Code of Conduct and the law on decision making
for the purposes of planning control. If Members do
not abide the Charter they put:
o The Councils at risk of proceedings on the
legality of the related decision or
maladministration; and
o Themselves at risk of being named in a
report made to the Council or, if the failure is
also likely to be a breach of the interest
provisions of the Localism Act 2011, a
complaint being made to the police to
consider criminal proceedings.

merit. There is a strong risk of illegality if an
employee makes an appointment based on
anything other than the ability of the candidate to
undertake the duties of the post.
Required to read the ‘New Employee Induction
Pack’, which provides all new staff with an overview
and general understanding of risk management
across the Councils.

12. Guidance, Education and Training

The Audit and Risk Management Services team are responsible for developing
workforce risk management capability across the organisation, through the provision
of guidance, education, training and support.

17 | P a g e
Page 195

Guidance materials are under regular review to ensure they reflect the needs of the
organisation and are compatible with the organisations structure having the flexibility
to adapt to new and changing structures.
The risk management strategy, guidance and training materials are reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure they continue to meet the needs of the organisation and
incorporate the very latest industry best practice.

13. Summary

Risk management is a continuous and improving process that the Councils are
committed to. Risk management should be embedded into the culture of the Councils,
led by senior management but with responsibility assigned through all levels of the
Councils’ structure. Risk management is therefore not an add-on to the role and
responsibilities of management but is actually a fundamental and inherent part of it.

14. Review

The Risk Management Strategy, guidance and associated working templates will be
annually reviewed by the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit as part of the Councils’
overall approach to the risk management process and overseen by the Assistant
Director Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer as Management sponsor.
The Risk Management Strategy and Significant Business Risk Register are available
to Members and staff and placed on the Authorities websites and intranets.

18 | P a g e
Page 196

APPENDIX A

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion
of all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

1 - HOUSING DELIVERY
CAUSE:

Having the right evidence base e.g.
making use of Suffolk Housing Need
Survey and existing Local Housing Need
Surveys.

If we do not have the
appropriate evidence base

Page 197

RISK:
RISK
1a

We may not have an up to
date understanding of housing
need and demand
CONSEQUENCE(S):
We will not know if we are
addressing and delivering the
housing need and demand

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

2

6

Published the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment as part of evidence base for
Joint Local Plan. Assessment as part of
evidence base for Joint Local Plan.
Creating Joint Local Plan. Creating
Housing Strategy.
Housing Strategy created and approved
by Full Council.

19

2

2

4

Stayed the
same

Creating Joint Local Plan - next
stage due for consultation.

June 2019

Support for Local Housing Needs
Surveys (6 completed to date)

Ongoing

This page is intentionally left blank

